11/18/2019 Information Statement

CR06959-2019

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-IS

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17.1(b)
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

1. Check the appropriate box:
Preliminary Information Statement
Definitive Information Statement
2. Name of Registrant as specified in its charter
Bright Kindle Resources & Investments, Inc.
3. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization
Manila, Philippines
4. SEC Identification Number
102165
5. BIR Tax Identification Code
000-803-498-000
6. Address of principal office

16th floor, Citibank Tower, Paseo de Roxas, Makati City
Postal Code
1227

7. Registrant's telephone number, including area code
(+632)8821-2202
8. Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders

December 10, 2019, Kamagong Function Room, Manila Golf Club, Harvard Road,
Forbes Park, Makati City

9. Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security holders
Nov 19, 2019
10. In case of Proxy Solicitations:

Name of Person Filing the Statement/Solicitor

Address and Telephone No.

11. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA
(information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate registrants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock Outstanding and Amount of Debt Outstanding
COMMON 1,528,474,000

13. Are any or all of registrant's securities listed on a Stock Exchange?
Yes No

https://edge.pse.com.ph/openDiscViewer.do?edge_no=66afedd8f5a977e0efdfc15ec263a54d
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11/18/2019 Information Statement
If yes, state the name of such stock exchange and the classes of securities listed therein:
Philippine Stock Exchange

The Exchange does not warrant and holds no responsibility for the veracity of the facts and representations contained in all corporate
disclosures, including financial reports. All data contained herein are prepared and submitted by the disclosing party to the Exchange,
and are disseminated solely for purposes of information. Any questions on the data contained herein should be addressed directly to
the Corporate Information Officer of the disclosing party.

Bright Kindle Resources
& Investments, Inc.

Bright Kindle Resources & Investments Inc.
BKR

PSE Disclosure Form 17-5 - Information Statement for Annual or
Special Stockholders' Meeting
References: SRC Rule 20 and
Section 17.10 of the Revised Disclosure Rules

Date of Stockholders’ Dec 10, 2019

Meeting

Type (Annual or

Special) Annual

Time 2PM

Venue Kamagong Function Room, Manila Golf Club, Harvard Road, Forbes Park, Makati City
Record Date Nov 11, 2019

Inclusive Dates of Closing of Stock Transfer Books
Start Date N/A
End date N/A

Other Relevant Information

Please see attached.

Filed on behalf by:
Name Raquel Frondoso

Designation Compliance officer

https://edge.pse.com.ph/openDiscViewer.do?edge_no=66afedd8f5a977e0efdfc15ec263a54d
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SEC Numbher 102165
File Number

BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS INC.
(formerly BANKARD INC,)

16" Floor Citibank Tower,
8741 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City

M December 2018 : 10 December 2019
{(Fiscal Year Ending) {Annual Meeting)

Definitive Information Statement
SEC Form 20 - 18
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-18

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION, 20/ -
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE ' :

1. Check the appropriate box: [ 1] Preliminary: in'furm(@u_%(&n'tcnmﬁ :
[X]  Definitive Information Stalement /2% 7~
2. Name of Registrant as specified in its charter:  BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES &

INVESTMENTS INC. (FORMERLY BANKARD INC.)

3 Province, country or ather jurisdiction of incorporation or argamzation:
METRO MANILA, PHILIPPINES

4, SEC Identification Number: 102165
3 BIR Tax Identification Code: 000-803-498-000
6. Address of principal office; 16" Floor Citibank Tower, Paseo de Roxas, Makati City
i Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: {0632) 8176046
8, Date, time and place of the meeting of sccurity holders
DATE - 10 December 2019
TIME - Zpm
PLACE - Kamagong Function Room, Manila Golf & Country

Club, Mckinley Road, Forbes Park, Makati City

9, Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security
holders: 19 November 2019

10, Securilies registered pursuant to Scetions § and 12 of the Code or Section 4 and & of the RSA
(information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate
regisirants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock
Outstanding or Amount of Debt Outstanding

COMMON SHARES 1,528,474,000 (as of 30 September 2019)

1. Are any or all registrant’s securities lisied on a Stock Exchange? Yes (/) Noi )
All common shares are listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange

Tuforniation Statermcnt
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS® MEETING

To All Stockholders:

Notice is hereby given that the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders of Bright Kindle
Resources & Investments Inc, (formerly Bankard Inc.) (the “Company™) will be held on Tuesday,
10 December 2019 a1 2:00 pm at the Kamagong Function Room, Manila Golf & Country Club,
Meckinley Road, Forbes Park, Makati City. (o consider and act on the following:

AGENDA
1. Call to Order
2 Certiication of Quorum
% Approval of Minutes of the previous meeting
4, Approval of Management Report and Audited Financial Statements
6. Ratification of Management’s Acts
7 Election of Directors
B Appointment of External Auditor
9. CHher Matlers
14, Adjourniment

An organizational Board of Directors’ meeting will follow right afier the adjournment of the
stockholders’ meeting,

In case you cannot persanally atlend the meeting, you may appoint a proxy to represent you by
accomplishing the proxy form, Such proxy form should be submitted to the Office of the Corporate
Seeretary not later than 5:00 pm on 29 November 2019 (o:

Adtention: Maila Lourdes (. De Castro
Bright Kindle Resources & Investment Ine.
/o 4" Floor Citibank Center, 8741 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City

Na proxy bearing a signature which is not legally acknowledged by the Secrelary and verified
by the authorized signatory of the Company”s Stock Transfer Agent, Stock Transler Services Tne, shall
be honored al the meeting. Tt the stockholder is a corporation. a secrelary’s Certilicale of the board
resclution designating the proxy and the authorized officer 10 cxecute the proxy should be submitted
together with the proxy. Validation of proxies will be made on 05 December 2019, Standing proxics
on file with the Company will be recognized unless specifically revoked or a new proxy is received by
the Company,

Unly stockholders of record al close of business on 11 November 2019 shall be entitled to
natice of or to vote or be voted at the scheduled meeting.

The Management is not asking you for a proxy nor is it requesting you to send a proxy in its
favar,

Yery truly vours,
—

Mailh Lourdes G, De Castro

Corporate Seovetary

fformation Stavemcni
2009 dnmve Stockholders” Meeting
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FART 1
INFORMATION REQUIRED IN INFORMATION STATEMENT

A. GENERAL INFORMATION
Item 1. DATE, TIME AND PLACE OF MEETING OF SECURITY HOLDERS

d. Date, time and place of the meeting 10 December 2019
2:00pm
Kamageng Function Room, Manila Golf
awd Country Club. Harvard Road,
Forbes Park, Makati City

b. Complete mailing address of
principal office: 16™ Floor Citibank Tower, Paseo de Roxas, Makati City

. Approximate date on which the Information
Statemert s first to be sent or given lo
sceurity holders: 19 November 2019

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND
YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY

Item 2. DISSENTERS® RIGHT OF APPRAISAL

Fhere are no matters to be taken up during the annual stockholders® mecling with respect to which the
law allows the excreise of appraisal right by any dissenting stockholder. The Corporation Code Hnils
the excreise of the appraisal right Lo the following instances:

a: In case any amendmenl Lo the articles of incorporation has the effeet of changing or resiricling
the rights ol any stockholder or class of shares, or of authorizing prefercnces in respect superior to those
of outstanding shares of any class, or of extending or shortenin £ the term of corporate cxistence (Scetion
LB

b, In case of the sale, lease, exchange, transter, mortpage, pledge or other disposition of all or
substantially all of the corporate property and assets (Section 8173

C In case ol merger or consolidation (Section &1 );
d. In case of investments in another corporation, business or purposc (Section 42),

The appraisal right may be exercised by making a written demand on the corporation within thirty (30)
days aficr the date on which the vote was taken [or payment of the [wr value of his sharcs: provvigled,
that failure 1o make the demand within such period shall be deemed a waiver of the appraisal nght. It
the proposed corporate action is implemented or effected, the co rporation shall pay to such stockholder,
upon surrender of the certificate(s) of stock representing his shares. the fair value thereol as of the day
prior to the date on which the vote was taken, excluding any appreciation or depreciation in anlicipation
ot such corporate aetion.

IT" within a period of sixty (60) days from the daic the corporiate action was approved by the
stockholders, the withdrawing stockholder and the corporation cannot agree on the fair value of the
shares, it shall be determined and appraised by three (3) disinterested persons, one of whom shall be

n
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named by the stockholder, another by the corporation, and the third by the two thus chosen. The
findings of the majority of the appraisers shall be final, and their award shall be paid by the corporation
within thirty {30} days after such award is made; Provided, That no pavment shall be made to any
dissenting stockholder unless the corporation has unresiricled retained earnings in its books to cover
such payment; and Provided, further, That upon payment by the corporation of the agreed or awarded
price, the stockholders shall forthwith transfer his shares to the corporation.

The appraisal right shall be exercised in accordance with Title X of the Corporation Code.

Item 3. INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS IN OR OPPOSITION TO MATTERS TO BF
ACTED UPON

There is no substaniial interest, dircet or indirect, by security holdings or otherwise, of each of the
following persons in any matler to be acted upon, other than the election 1o office:

1. Each person who has been a dircetor or officer of the reeistrant at any time since the beginming
ol the last fiscal year:

2. Fach nominee for election as a director of the registrant;

3, Each associate ol any of the forcgoing persons,

There is no director of the registrant who has informed the company in writ ing that he intends to oppase
any action to be taken by he registrant al the meeting and indicated the action which he intends to
oppose,

B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Item 4. VOTING SECURITIES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS THEREOT

Voting Sccurities
As of 30 September 2019, 1,528,474.000 Common shares are outstanding, and are entitled to he
represented and vote al the Annual Stockholders” Meeting, Fach share is entitled (o one vole,

Record Date
Only stockholders of record as of 11 November 2019 shall be entitled (o notice and vole at the meeting.

Manner of Voting

The By-Laws of the Company provides that every stockholder shall be entitled to vote in person or hy
proxy, for each share of stock held by him which has voting power upon the matler in question. The
votes for the clection of dircctors, and, except upon demand by any stockholder, the voles upon any
question before the meeting, except with respect o the procedural questions determined by the
chainman of the meeting, shall be by viva voce or show of hands.

Article Il Section § of the By-Laws of the Company provides fhal the Directors shall be clected by
plurality vote at the annual meeting of the stockholders for that year al which a quorum is present, At
each election for directors every stockholder shall have the right to vole, in person or by proxy. the
number of shares owned by him for a5 many persons as there are dircetors to he clected, or to cumulate
hiz voles by giving one candidate as many votes as the number of such directors multiplied by the
number of his share shall equal, or by distributing such votes in the same principle among any number
ol candidates,

&
drifomiction Staiewment
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As of 3) September 2019

Local | Total Outstanding
1,521,027.947 sharcy [.525.474.000 sharey
99.51% percent of class | 100%: percent of class

Foreign
7,446,053 shares
(3,49% pereent of class

" Title of Class _

Conmmnon

Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners and Management

(1) Owners of more than 5% of voting seeurities as of 30 September 2019

| |
Mame, Address of Name of Benel[icial
Title of Record and Owner Relationship Citizen- MNumber of Percent
Class Relationship with with Record Owner % Shares Held of Class
i ship
Issuer
Common | -PCD Nominee -Y'M Business
Corporation' Management Comp./ Filipino 1170,159.989 | 76.56%
-Tower | - Ayala Client
Triangle
Makali Avenue cor,
P'asen de Roxas Makati
City
-Registered owner in
the books of stock
& {ransfer agent _
Total 1,170,159,989 76.56% |

Alty, Remegio Dayandayan Jr. as President ol RYM shall represent and vote the shares held by RYM in
the Annual Stockholders” Mecling,

(2} Security Ownership of Management as of 30 September 2019;

Title of Name Beneficial Owner | Amount and Nature | Cilizensh | Percent
Class of beneficial ip of Class
ownership
Common | Cesar C, Zalamen 1000/ Direct Filipino (.00%
Cormmon | Isidro C. Alcantara, Jr. 100/ Direct Filipino 287%
43,919,000/ Indirect
Common | Macario U, Te 16,001,000/ Direct; Filipino 3.33%
35,000,000/ Indirect ,
Common | Remegio C. Davandavan, Jr. 1000/ Direct Filipino 0.00%
Common | Augusto C, Serafica, Jr. 1000/ Direct Filipino (LON%
Common | Hermogene H. Real 1000/ Direct Filipino 0,005
Common | Rolando S. Santos | 1000/ Direct Filipino 0.00 %

PCD Nominee Corporation, a whollv-owned subsidiary af Philippine Central Depository, Ine
(PCINY) is the regisiered owner of the shares in the books of the Company s transfer agenis in fhe
Philippines.  The beneficial owners of such shares are PCD 'y pariicipants, who hold the shares on
behall of their clients.  PCD is a private company organized by the mafjor institutions actively
participating in the Philippine capital markets to fmplement an awtomated haok-cntry system of
fandling securities transactions in the Philippines,

diformaiion Stefement
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| Common | Minda de Paz | 1000/ Direct Filiping {.00%;,
Common | Carlos Alfonso T, Ocampo 1000/Direct Iilipino 0.00% |

Common | Leddie D, Gutierrez 0 Filipino (0.00%

Common | Reuben F. Alcantara 0 Filiping (.00

Total — Directors as a group 04,928 000 Filiping 6.2%

Total — Officers as a group l FHiliping 0%,

There is nothing to disclosc with respect to voting trust holders of 5% or more.
Item 5. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE/CORPORATE OFFICERS

1. Current Directors and key executive officers of the Corporation:

Cesar C. Zalamea 88 | Chairman of the Board/Director [iliprino
| Lsidro C. Alcantara, Jr. 65 | President/Director _ Filipino
Macario U, Te | 87 | Dircclor Filipino
| Augusto C. Seralica. Jr, 57 | Director Filipine
 Carlos Alfonso 1. Ocampo | 54 | Independent Direetor Filipino
*Vicenie V . Mendoza | Independent Director Filipina
Remegio C, Davandayan Jr. | 38 | Director ] Filipino
Minda P, de Paz 74| Direclor Filipino.
Rolando S. Santos 69 | Dircctor! Vice President and Treasurer | Filipino
Hermogene H, Real 63 | Director! Assistant Corporate Sceretary ,_Fili]:rinn_
| Maila 1.ourdes G. De Castro | 44 | Corporate Secretary Filipino
Kenneth Peter Molave Co-Asst, Corporate Sceretary Tilipino
| Reuben F. Alcantara 35 | Vice President for Marketing Filipinn
Leddie D. Gutierrez 56 | Vice President for Internal Audit Filipino

- .":’Rusigned on Dctober 16, 2019

All Directors shall hold oftice until the new Board of Directors are clected during the
Company’s annual stockholders” meeting.

Tcrom bent Divectors

Cesar C. Zalamea
Chairman of the Board
Junuary 03, 2014 to present
K8 vears old/Filipino

Mr. Cesar C. Zalamea was elected Chairman of Bright Kindle Resources Inc. (lormerly
Bankard Inc.) in January 2014, Ile also scrves as Chairman of Marcventures Holdings Inc., and
Chairman of Marcventures Mining and Development Corp. Currently. he 1s an Independent
Director of Araneta Properties Inc., a company he joined as Dircetor in Decenmber 2008, He is
also a member of the Advisory Board of Camphel] Lutyens & Co. Ltd.. an investment advisory
compatyy based in the LK. In 1945, Mr, Zalamea joined AIG where he started as an Tnvestment
Analyst at the Philippine American Lile Insurance Company (PHILAMLIFE). He went up the
corporale ladder of Philamlife and he became President of the Compa ny in May 1969, While
at Philamlife. he was loaned to the Program Implementation Ageney (PLA) in 1964 as Deputy
Dhireelor General. PLA was an economic group that reported directly 1o the President of the
Philippines. He retuned to Philamlile in 1965, In 1969, Mr. Zalamea was appoinied Member
at the Monetary Board of the Central Bank of the Philippines representing the privale sector,
In 1981, he left Philamlife to become Chairman ol the Development Bank of the Philippines
(DTP) and had to resign from being a member of the Monetary Board in view thereol, In 1936,

bafivrmation Statcmend
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he lefl the DBP 10 go back to ATG, He was then stationed in Hong Kong 1o be the firs| President
of the AIG Tnvestment Corporation (Asia) Lid . At this time, he was elected {0 serve as
Dircetor in many ALG affiliated companies in Asia, like the ALA Insurance Co_, Nan Shan Life
Insurance Co, and Philamlife. Tn 2005 he lefi AIG to work directly with Mr. Maurice R.
Greenberg at the C.V.STARR Companies. He was appointed President and CEO of the Starr
Investment Co. {Asta} Led. In 2008 he became Chairman of this Company until he retired in
2010. e obtained his B.S. in Accounting and Banking from the Caolegio de San Juan de Letran
where he gradualed as valediclorian. Mr. Zalamea reccived his MBA from New York
University,

Isidro C, Alcantara, Jr.
Dhircetor and President
January 03, 2014 to present
65 years old/Filipino

Isidro C. Alcantara, Jr. was elecled as President and Director in January 2014, Mr, Alcantara
is the President of Financial Risk Resolution Advisory, Tne, He also serves as Direclor and
President of Mareventures Holdings Tne. and Vice Chairman and Director of Marcventures
Mining and Development Corporation. He has been a Director of Benguet Corp. since
November 2008, He served as Senior Vice President & Head of Corporate & Instilulional
Banking at Hongkong and Shanghai Corporation {IISBC). e was clected President and Chicl
Executive Oflicer of Philippine Bank of Communications {PBCom), Manila, Philippines from
2000 10 2004, Tn addition, he served as Executive Vice President of Corporate Banking Group
of Fquitable PC1 Bank (EPCIB) from 1981 to 2000. He served as Direclor of Bankers
Association of the Philippines from 2000 to 2003, Mr. Alcantara also served at Baneom Finance
Corporation, PCI Bank & Insular Bank of Asia & America (a Bank of America Affiliate) from
1975 to 1981, He is a Certified Public Accountant, He obtained his BSC Accounting and BS
Economics degrees from De la Salle University graduating Magna cum Laude, He also
attended the Special Studies in Tnternational Banking at the Wharton Scheol, U niversity of
Pennsylvania,

Macario U, Te

Direcior

Jamuary 03, 2014 to present
87 wears old/Tilipino

Mr. Macario U, Te was elected Dircctor in January 2014, He is the current direclor of
Mareventures Holdings Inc. He was the previous President of Macle International Corp. and
Linkwealth Construction Corp, Chairman of Autobus Indusiries Corporation and CEO of M. T,
Holdings Inc. Ie previously sat as director in the following compunies: Bulawan Mining Corp.,
PAL Holdings Inc,, Philippine National Bank, Oriental Petroleum and Minerals Corp., Gotesco
Land Inc., PNB Capital and Investment Corp., PNB General Insurers Co, Inc.. PNB Holdings
Corp., PNB Remittance Center, PNT3 Sceurities Tne., PNB-IFL, PNB Thaly SIPA. Balabac
Resources and Holdings, Nissan North FDSA, Beneficial- PNB Lifc and Insurance Co.., Ing.,
Walerlront Phils,, Fontana Golf Club, Inc., Baguio Gold Holding Corp., Traders Royal Bank,
"Traders Hotel, Pacific Rim Oil Resources Corporation, Link World Construction Development
Corporation, Suricon Resources Corporation, Alcom Petroleum & Mincrals Corp., Associated
Devt, Corp., and Palawan Consolidated Mining Corporation, Mr. I'e obtained his Bachelar of
Science in Commerce from Far Eastern University.

9
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Augusto C. Serafica, Jr.
Director

January 03, 2014 to present
57 years old/Filipino

Mr. Augusto C. Serafica, Jr. was elected Independent Director in January 2014, He sits as
Chairman of Board in the following companics: Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation,
Digiwave Solutions Inc., AOB Management Corporation, T1LC Manna Consulting Inc., Global
ldealogy Corporation He is also the Managing Dircetor of Asian Alliance Investmenl
Corporation and Asian Alliance Holdings and Development Corp. He is currently the Treasurer
ot Sinag Energy Philippines Inc,, Ardent Property Development Corporalion. e serves as
director of Marcventures Holdings Inc. and Investment House Association of the Philippines,
He is the Chairman of the AIM Alumni Association, Treasurer of the AIM Leadership
Foundation Inc.. and Chapter Head of the Brotherhood of Christian Businessmen and
Protessionals- Makati Chapter. He was previously conmected with Sycip, Garres, Velayo & Co.
[rom 1985-1989. He obtained his Bachelor of Commerce in Accountamey from San Beda
College and Master in Business Management [rom Asian Institute of Management, Mr.
Serafica is a Certified Public Accountant,

Carlos Alfonso T. Ocampo
Independent Director
January 03, 2014 to present
Sdvears old/Filipino

Alty. Carlos Alfonso ‘1. Ocampo was elected as Independent Director in January 2014, He is
also an independent dircetor of Marcyventures Holdings, Ine. He is the founder of Ocampo &
Manalo Law Firm. He is a member of the Board in various corporations, including MAA
General Assurance Phils. Ine., Columbian Aulaear Corporation. Asian Carmakers Carp., Jlam
Transit Ine., Prestige Cars Inc., Autohaus Quezon City Inc., Timcbound Trading Corp., and
Subic Air, Inc, He is the Corporate Secretary of PSI Heallheare Development Services Corp.,
PSI Prescription Solulions Corp., Adrianse Phils. Inc., Bluelion Mators Corp., First Charters
and Tours Transpart Corp., Bryel Resorls and International Inc,, AVK Philippines Inc., Jam
Liner Inc., and Manila Golf and Country Club, He previously served as Vice President and
General Counsel of Air Philippines Corporation, Atty, Ocampo oblained his Bachelor of Luws
from the University of the Philippines. Upon graduation [rom college, he was admitted into the
honor societies of Phi Kappa Phi and 1% Gamma Mu. He completed an Exceutive Management
Program at the Asian Institute of Management in 1997 and previously taught business law at
the College of St. Benilde at De La Salle Uhniversity. In 2013, he was named as a leading advizser
as well as a eommercial law expert by Acquisition International and Global Law Experts,
respectively, In 2014, Asialaw named him as one of the leading lawyers in the Philippines
primarily for his contributions in commercial law. He was awarded a cerlificate of completion
for the Mastering Negotiation: Building Agreements Across Boundaries Program, April 2016,
from the John F. Kennedy School of Government at Harvard U niversity, Execulive Education.

Vicente V. Mendoza
Tndependent Diregtor
{Resigned on October 16, 2019)
86 years old/Filipino

Tustice Vicente V. Mendoza was clected Independent Direetor in April 2008, He was as an
Associale Justice of the Supreme Court [rom 1994 to 2003, In 1980, he served as an Associsle
Justice of the Court of Appeals until his appointment as i1s Presiding Justice in 1994, He was
a member of the Presidential Mlectoral Tribunal from 1994-2003 and of the House of
Representatives Electoral Tribunal from 1999-2003. He served in the office of the Solicitor
General, Departnient of Justice, first as a Solicitor from 1971-1973 and later as Assistant

I
Injermation Siatemen:
HE Anmaa! Sockhidders Meeting
SEC Farm 20 -18



Solicitor General from 1973 (o 1980, successlully handling constitutional litigation for the
Government. He has been a Faculty member at the University of the Philippines College of
Law since 1967 to the present and gave bar review classes from 1978 10 1994,

Tustice Mendoza was admitted to the Philippine Bar in 1955 and was a viziting scholar at the
Harvard Law School in the fall term in 1976, He has authored several law books and has writien
sevenil articles published in law journals. e was conferred an LLM degree by Yale Law
School in 1971 and graduated from the UP College of Law in 1957,

He resigned as the Company’s Independent Dircetor on Oclober 16, 2019 due to personal
reasans,

Remegio C. Davandayan, Jr.
Director

March 26, 2014 1o present

38 years old/Filipino

Atty. Remegio C. Dayandayan. Jr. was elected Director in March 2014, He currently sits as
Dircetor and President of RYM Business Management Corporation and the Philippine Manila
Standard Publishing Tnc. He was previously an associale of Dum lao Moraleda Antonane and
Tuvera Law OlTices from February 2008 to March 2009, He was also a subjective Discovery
Reviewer of Tscaler and Company Inc.-LPO from May 2008 to March 2009, Adly. Davandayan
obtained his degrees in Bachelor of Arts major in Political Science from the U niversily of San
Carlos in 2001 and Bachelor of Laws from San Beda College-Mendiola in 2007, He was
admitted to the Philippine Bar in 2008,

Minda P. de Paz
Lirector

March 26, 2014 to present
7% years old/Filipino

Ms. Minda P. De Paz was eleeted Director in March 2014, She serves as Director and President
of Philippine Collective Media Corporation and Universal Re Condominium © orporation as
well as Direetor and Treasurer of RYM Business Management Corporation and Tubenico Inc,
She is also a Director of Sequion Business Management Corp. and a project coordinator of
CPG Joint Venture, Ms, De Paz previously worked at the Philippine National Bank {(PNE)-
Ormoc Cily from 1963 10 1977, She then bueame a Supervising Commission on Audit {COA)
Auditor of PNB-Escolta from 1977 to 1979, She served as COA Corporale Auditor of the
National Home Morlgage Finance Corpuration from 1979 to 1984 and Home Mutual
Development Fund from 1981 to 1982, She also became an accountant of Nieva Realty and
Development Corporation, D.8. Tantuico and Associates Law Oflice, Almega Managment and
Investments Inc. from 1984 to 2005, Ms. de Paz oblained her Bachelor af Commerce in
Accountancy [rom 5t. Paul’s College, Tacloban City. She is a Certified Public Accountant

Rolando 5, Santos

Direcior and Vice President and Treasurer
Jamuary 03, 2014 to present

69 years old/Tilipine

Mr. Rolando 8. Santvs was elected Dircetor in May 2014 and Vice President and Treasurer in
fanuary 2014, He serves as Treasurer of Marcventures Holdings Inc.. Mareventures Mining
and Development Corp. and Prime Media Holdings Ine. He was previously the Branch Head!
Cluster Head for Makati Branches of Fquitable PCI Bank which was cventually acquired by
BDO from 2001 1o 2013, He served as Branch Head in Diliman, Quezon Cily to Area Head for
Metro and Provineial branches of the Bank of Commerce from 1984 to 2001, He also served
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as Branch head in West Avenue, Quezon Ci tv and Marikina branches of the Peoducers Bank of
the Philippines from 1981 to 1984, He worked at the Far Fast Bank and Trust Co. from 1972
lo 1981. He was also emploved as a liaison officer of the Malacanang Information and
Assistance Unit from 1970 to 1972, He oblained his degree in Bachelor of Science in Business
Adminisiration from the Universily of the Fast.

Hermogene H. Real

Dircetor and Assistanl Corporate Secrelary
January 03, 2014 to present

63 years old/Filipina

Ally. Hermogene H. Real was elected Director in May 2014 and Assistant C orporate Seeretary
in January 2014, She serves as Director of Philippine Collectivemedia Corporation (2008 to
present), as Corporate Secretary ol Benguet Corporation (2000 to present) and Universal Re
Condominium Corporation {1997 1o 2009, 2010 o present), as Assistant Corporale Secretary
of Dofia Remedios Trimidad Ronmalde: Medical Foundation, Tne, (1996 to present),
Benguetcorp Nickel Mines, Inc, (2009 to present). She is a lawyer in D.S. Tantuico and
Associates (1998 1o present). She previously held the fol lowing positions: Chairman of the
Board and President of Philippine Collectivemedia Corporation (2008 to 2010): Corporate
Secretary of Truns Middle Fas| Phils. Equities. Inc. (1996 (o 2006): and Assistamt Corporale
Sceretary of Equitable PCI Bank, Tne. (2005-2006).

Key Officers:

Maila Lourdes ;. De Castro
Corporate Secretary
september 03, 2019 to prescnt
44 years old/Tilipino

Alty, Maila Lourdes G. De Castro elected as Corporate Secretary in September 2019, She also
serves as the Asst, Corporate Sceretary for Marcventures Holdings Inc and subsidiaries, She
camed her master’s degree in Business Administration from the Asian Institute ol Management
(AIM} in 2006 and her juris Doctor from the Ateneo de Manila School of Law in 2000 and was
admitted to the Integrated Bar of the Philippine in vear 2001, She completed her Bachelor of
Arts in Mass Communications from the University of the Philippines in 1996, She worked
with the Belo Gozon Flma Parel Law as Legal Associale and Special Projects Counsel [rom
2000-2006. She was also the Corporate Counsel and Vice PresidentHead of Legal and
Corporate Planning of UNITEL from 2006 - 2013, subscquently wenl in to private practice for
the past six (6) years and concurrently the Chairperson of the Rules Charge Committee of the
Philippine Fleetricity Market Corporation. During her stint on the ahove-mentioned positions
and fimelions, she worked in the arcas of Contract Managemenl. Representation in
Administrative and Regulatory Agencies, |abaor, Intellectual Property, Tax, Contract Review,
Management and Negotiations, Legal Advisory and Good Governance-Compliance,

Kenneth Peter Molave
Co-Assl. Corporate Secretary
October 16, 2019 (o present
30 years olds Filiping

Ally. Kenneth Peter Molave is a practicing lawver with expetience in civil and criminal
litigation, corporate secretarial services and business taxation. In January of 2017, he worked
as an underbar assoeciate assigned 1o the Business Tax Services division at the accounting firm,
Syeip Gorres Velayo & Co. Upon obtaining his license Lo practice law, he worked us part of
the Legal Services Group of the Departiment of Finance. In 2018, he transferred to Libra Law
Firm as a Junior Associate assigned to the litigation department. Afier almost two VUHTE, OF in
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August of 2019, he joined at Marcventures Mining and Development Corporation (MMDC) as
in-house legal associate. He has a Legal Management degree from the Atenco de Maga
University and oblained his Juris Doctor from the University of the Philippines.

Mr. Reuben F. Alcantara
Vice President for Marketing
May 26, 2016 to present

36 years old/Tiliping

Mr. Reuben F. Alcantara was appointed Vice President for Marketing in May 2016, He
currently scrves as Vice President for Marketing, Business Development, and Strategic
Planning of Marcventures Holdings, Inc. He is also the Company's Investar Relations Officer.
He previously served as the Vice President for Markeling of AG Finance, Inc., as Relationship
and Credit Officer for Security Bank and has had stints in Corporate Banking in Bunk of
Commerce amnd Maybank Philippines. Mr. Alcantara obtained his Exceutive Masiers in
Business Administration Degree from the Asian Institute of Management in the year 2016,

Mr. Leddic I). Gutierrez

Vice President [or Internal Audit
May 26, 2016 to present

56 years old/Filipina

Mr. Leddic Gulierrez was appoinled as Viee President for Internal Audit in M ay 2016, Heis
a Certified Public Accountant and has held key posilions in internal audit, corporate services
and compliance and control since 19935, Mr. Gutierrez is currently the Vice President for Audii
and Risk Management of Marcventures Mining and Development Corp. (MMDC). He
previously served as Vice President [or Internal Audit of AG Finance, Inc., as Division Head
(Assistant Vice President) ol Strategic Support Division under Instilutional Banking Sector of
Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company, where, since joini ngin November 2011 as Compliance
and Control Officer {Scnior Manager). he oversaw IBS’s compliance to policies, procedurces
and regulations set by the Bank. BSP and repulatory agencies and led in systems and process
impravements for the Group, From April 2005 to October 2011, Mr, Guticrrez served as Head
of Internal Audit of PLDT Global Corporation (PGC), a subsidiary and international market ing
firm of PLDT Co. In this role, he carried oul operational, information lechnology, Ananeial,
network and complisnce audits of PGC. Mr, Gulicrrez is a graduate of the University of the
Fast.

Nomination Committee and Nominees for Elcction as Members of the Board of Dircetors

The Nomination Committee is composed of three (3) members with one (1} independent

director. This committee is responsible for assisting the Boatd of Directors in evaluating gualifications
ol all persons nominated to the Board or to other positions requiring Board appointment; evaluating
whether individual directors are able to carry out histher duties: making recommendations to the Board
on continuing education of directors, and assignment 1o board committees; and determining
compensation of officers and directors of the Company base on their gualificalions and duties,

Nomination Committee

Cesar C. Zalamea Chairman
Isidre C, Alcantara, Jr, Member
Carlos Alfonso T, Ocampo Member

The Nominalion Committee has come up with the final list of nominges in the coming Election of
Dircetors during the Annwal Stockholders” Meeting on 10 December 2019 as folliws:
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Reaular Dhrectors:

Cesar C, Zalamea

Isidro €. Alcantara, Ir.
Macario L. Te

Remegio C. Dayandayan, Ir.
Augusto C, Serafica, Ir,
Hermogene H. Real
Rolando 5. Santos

Minda P, De Paz

Independent Directors:

Carles Allonso T, Ocampo
Felix Cesar Zerrudo

The Nomination and Compensation Committee determined that the candidates possess all the
qualifications and none of the disqualifications as director or independent dircetor.

None of the directors and executive officers named ahove 1s related.

The Independent Directors, Atty. Carlos Alfonso T. Ocampo and Mr. Felix Cesar Zermdo, were
normnated by Mr, Tsidro C. Alcantara, Ir. Both nominees arc not related 1o Mr, Alcantara, They possess
the qualifications and nonc of the disqualifications of an independent dircetor pursuand Lo the
nomination and election of independent directors in SRC Rule 38, The Company will submit updated
Certilications within thirty (30) days after their election,

At each election for directors, every stockholder shall have the right 1o vote, in person or by proxy, the
number of shares owned by him for as many persons as there are directors to be elected. or 10 cumulate
his votes by giving one candidale as many votes as the number of such directors multiplied by the
number of his sharcs shall equal, or by distributing such votes in the same principle among any numbers
of candidates.

The additional nominees for regular divectors o the Board may be submitted on the floor [or the election
of directors during the mecting, However, only nominees whose names appear on the Final List of
Candidates shall be eligible for clection as Independent Director’s.  No otheér nominations [or
Independent Directors shall be entertained afler the Final List of Candidates shall have heen prepared,
No further nominations shall be entertained or allowed on the loor during the actual stockholders
mceting,

Period in Which Divectors and Executive Officers Should Serve
The directors and cxeeulive officers should serve for a period of one (1) vear.
Term of Office of a Director

The dircelors shall be stockholders and shall be elected annually by the stockholders DA TN
majorily of the outstanding capital stock for a term of one (1) year and shall serve until the election and
qualification ol their successors.

Any vacancy in the board of directors other than removal or expiration of term may be filled
by a majority vole of the remaining members thereof at a meeting called for thal purpose il they still
constitute a quoram, and the director or dircetors so chosen shall serve [or the unexpired term.

Tnformaiion Statement
208 Annued Steckholders Mecting
SEC Foen 20 - 18



Significant Emplayec

The company is not highly dependent on any individual who is not an exeeutive officer,
Family Relationships

Fhere are no Lumily relationships among the officers listed.
futerest on Certain Matters to be Acted Upon

No director or officer of the Corporation has substantial interest, direel or indirect. in Iy
maliler to be acted upon in the meeting.

INVOLVEMENT IN CERTAIN LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

As tar as the Corporation is aware, none of the dircctors, officers or members of the Company’s
senior management have, during the last five years and to date, been subject to any of the
tollowing:

a) any bankrupiey, petition filed by or against any business of which such person was a
general partner or exceutive officer either at the time of the bankruptey or within lwo (2
wears prior to the time;

b} any conviction by final judgment of any offense in any pending criminal proceeding,
domestic or foreign, excluding traffic violations and other minor offenses;

c) any order, judgment or deerce, nol subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of any
court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanent Iy or temporarily cnjoining,
barmng, suspending or otherwise limiting his involvement in any (ype of husincss,
securities, commeodities, or banking activities; and

d) Tound by a domestic or foreign courl of competent jurisdiction (in a civil aclion), the
Commission or comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign exchange or electronic
marketplace or self-regulatory organization, to have violated a securities or commodities
law, and the judgment has not been reversed, suspended or vacated,

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIP AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
There are no significant transactions entered into by the Company in the normal course of
business with related parties except as discussed in note 13 to the audited Financial Statements,
Item 6. COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
Summary of Compensation Table
Information as to aggregate compensation paid or accrued during the last two fiscal vears and
1o be puid in the ensuing fiscal vear to Bright Kindle Resources & Invesiments. Ine.’s Chief
Executive Oflicer and four other most highly compensated executive officers follows:
Summary of Compensation Table
Informalion as to aggregale compensation paid or accrued during the last two fiscal years and

to be paid in the ensuing fiscal year 1o Bright Kindle Resources & Investments, Inc.'s Chief Execufive
Officer and four other most highly compensated exceutive officers follows:
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SUMMARY OF COMPENSATION TABLE

| NAMES POSITION SALARY BONUS PEE DIEM
Cesar O, Zalamea Chairman
ls1dro C. Alcantara. Jr. President
Rolando S, Sanlos Treasurer
Diane Madelvn Ching Corporate Sceretary
Hermogene H. Real Asst, Corporate
Scerctary
Reuben I'. Aleantara VP Markecling
Leddic D, Gutierrez YW1* Internal Audii
All above named 2017 PLOOOO0.00
officers as a group 2018 ) BA0.000,00
2019 Estimated PLOO.ODG.00
NAMES POSITION SALARY BONLS PR DIEM
All other officers and | 2017 PRO,000.00
directors as group S £60,000.00

unnamed

| 2019 Estimated

£140.000.00

The 2019 cstimated compensation for directors and exccutive officers is subject to changes as the
BOD through the Compensation Committee is continuously reviewing the directors’ and executive
officers’ compensation which shall be in accordance with the parameters set by the Company s hy-
laws and other industry standards.

Compcensation of Directors

fu) Standard Arrangemenis

Except Lor nominal per diem for attending board & committee meetings, there are no standard
arrangements by which Directors are compensated direetly or indirectly.,

(&) Other Arrangenients

None.

Employment Contract and Termination of Employment and Change-in-Control Arrangements

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company engaged consultants and emplovees [rom
outsourcing agencies to perfonm its day to day fransactions,

Warrants and Options Outstanding: Repricing

The ahove-named executive officers and directors, and all officers and directors as a group, do
not hold equity warrants or options as the company docs not have any outstanding equity
warranls or options,

Item 7. INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

a) Independent Public Accountants, Reyes Tacandong & Co, (RTC) will stand for re-election
as the Corporation’s external auditors for the vear 2019 which shall be subject to
shareholders’ approval during the Annual Meeting in compliance with SRC Rule 68,
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Paragraph 3(b){iv) which provides that the external auditor should be rotated every five (3)
years or earlier or the handling pariner shall be changed.

b) RTC was first elected as the Company’s Independent Public Accountan! in May 2015,
Representatives of RTC will be present during the ammual meeting and will be given the
opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so, They are also expected to respond
to appropriate questions il needed. There was no event where RTC and the Company had
any disagreemenl with regard to any matler relating 1o accounting principles or practices,
linancial statemen disclosure or auditing scope or procedure. Except as staled in the reporl
of independent auditors, the Corporation has no disagreements with its auditars,

¢) Brighl Kindle Resources & Investments, Ine. re-appointed Reves Tacandong & Co. (RTC)
as its independent external auditor for the calendar year ended December 31, 2018, R1C is
a leading professional services finm with a proven track record of high quality work, They
provide value-added services to clients through their client caring team of outstanding
audit, lax and business profcssionals who utilize leading-edge systems and 1echnology and
are guided by the highest standards of quality, integrily and compelence.

d) Tor the audit of the Company’s Anmual financial statements and services provided in
connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements, the ageregate amounts to
be billed or already billed excluding VAT and out of pocket expenses {OPLE) by RTC
amountsfamounted to P30 million and P0.25 million for 2018 and 2017 respeetively.

The Audit Committee recommends to the Board the selection of external auditors considering
independence and effectiveness.

Audit Committee

Carlos Alfonzo T, Ocampo -Chairman
Aupusto C, Serafica, I -Member
Vicente ¥V, Mendows -Member

The Audit Committee is composed of three members with two independent directors. As
provided for in ils charter, the objective of the Audil Committee is 1o assist the board of
directors in fulfilling its oversight responsibilitics by reviewing the financial reporling process,
the system of mternal control, risk management, governance processes, the audit process and
the company’s process for monitoring compliance with Taws and regulations and its own code
of business conducet.

Item 8. COMPENSATION PLANS

Na action is proposed to be taken during the stockholders™ meeting with regard 1o any bonus, profit
sharing, pension/retirement plan, pranting of any extension of options, warrants or rights to purchase
any sceurties,

C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

No matter will be taken up involving any issuance or exchange of securities.

Item 9. AUTHORIZATION OR ISSUANCE OF SECURITIES OTHER THAN FOR
EXCHANGE

There is nothing to disclose wilh respect to auwthorization or issuance of securifics,

Ttem 10. MODIFICATION OR EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES
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Mone
N OTHER MATTERS
Item 11. ACTION WITII RESPECT TO REPORTS & OTHER PROPOSED ACTION/S

The following matters shall be submitted to the vole of stockholders of the Company during the
stockholders” meeting,

1. Approval of Minutes of the previous mecling

2. Approval of Management Report und Audited Financial Statements ending Decernber 31,
2018

3. Ratilication of Managemont’s Acts

4. Election of Directors

5. Appointment of External Auditor

Matters not required to be submitted are the Call to Order and Certification of Notice and Cluorum,

Item 12. AMENDMENTS OF CHARTER, BY-LAWS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS

There are no matters to be taken up in relaton to the Amendment of the C ompany’s Arlicles of
Incorporation or By-laws.

ltem 13. VOTING PROCEDURES
(a) The vote required for approval or clection

A majonity of the subscribed capital present in person or represented by proxy, shall be
sufficient al a stockholders meeting to constitute a quoram for the ransaction of amy business
whatsoever, excepl in those cases in which the Corporation Code requires the affirmative vote
of a grealer portion.

{h) The method by which the votes will be counted

Al cach meeting of the stockholders, every stockholder shall be entitled to vole in person or by
proxy, for cach share of stock held by him which has voting power upon the matter in questian,

The voles for the election of directors, and, except upon demand by any stockholder, the voles
upon any question before the meefing except to the procedural questions deternmiined b the
chairman of the meeting, shall be by viva voce or show of hands. Representatives of Stock
Fransfer Services Ine. are authorized to count the votes to be cast during the meeting,

The directors of the Corporation shall be elected by plurality vote at the annual meeting of the
stockholders for that vear at which a quorum is present. At each clection for direclors, EVErY
stockholder shall have the right to vole, in person or by proxy, the number of shares owned by
him [or as many persons as there are directors (o be elected. or to cumulate his votes by giving
one candidate as many votes as the number of such directors multiplied by the number of his
share shall equal, or by distributing such votes at the same principie among any number of
candidates,
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MANAGEMENT REPORT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION ANIY ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATION

1. Business Development
(a} Form and year ol organization

Bright Kindle Resources & Investments, Inc. (the Company), formerly Bankard, Inc, was
incorporated and registered with the Philippine Sccurities and Tixchange Commission (SEC) on
December 4, 1981 as a eredit card corporation. On March 21, 1995, the Company listed its shares
with the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. (PSE). Prior to December 27, 2013, the C ompany is a
subsidiary ot Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation (RCBC).

On October 18, 2013, the Board of Dircetors (BOD) of RCBC approved the sale of its 89.98%
collective stake in the Company lo RYM Business Management Corp, (the Parent C pinpany) and
other investors. The Parent Company acquired 76.56% interest in the Company,

Iu November 201 3, the BOD approved the amendment to change the corporate name 1o Bright Kindle
Resources & Investments, Inc. and primary business purpose to a holding Company.

The Company’s principal office address is at 16™ Tloor, Citibank Tower 8741 Pasen de Roxas, Makati
City.

(b}  Any bankruptcy, receivership or similar procecding?
There were no bankrupiey, receivership or similar proceedings for the Corporation.

(c)  Any material reclassification, merger, consolidation, or purchase or sale of a significant
amount of assets not in the ordinary course of business?

RCBC sold its collective slake of 89.98% in the Corporation in favor of RYM Business Managemeni
Corp. and other investors. As a result, it transferred all or substantially all of its assels and certain
liahilities to RCBC and RBSC (refer to Note 1 of the 2015 Audited Financial Statements).

2. Business of Issuer
{a) Description of Registrant
i} Principal Products or Services

From 2007 to December 2013, the Corporation was a credil card servicing company whose prinary
customer was Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation (RCBC) and indirectly the RCBC Bankard
cardholders, to whom the cards arc issued. and its accredited merchants, As a servicing enlity, the
Corporation provided RCBC marketing, selling and distribution assistance, technical, collection
services and all transaction processing requirements arising from its credit cardholder and merchant
(ransaelions,

On October 18, 2013, the Board of Directors of RCBC approved the sale of its 89.98% collective
ownership in Bankard, Inc. to RYM Business Management Corporation and other investors (hrough
Philippine Business Bank, Ine. — Trust and Investment Center, The sale of shares was consummaled
on December 27, 2013, In view of the foregoing, RCBC's credit card operations were (ransferred to
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a related party, RBSC, and the Corporation ceased 1o operate any credit card related business as of
Dccember 16, 2013,

Considering the sale, the Company changed its primary purpose and now engages in the purchase,
cxchange, assignmenl, gl or otherwise, and hold, own and use for investment or otherwise, and scll,
assign, lransler, exchange, leasc, lel, develop, morlgage, pledge, deal in and with and otherwise
operate, use and dispose of, any and all properties of every kind and description and wherever
situated. as and to the extenl permitted by law, including, but not limited to, bonds, deben urcs,
pramissory notes, shares of capital stock, or other securities and obligations, created, negotiated or
issued by any corporation, association, or other entity, foreign or domestic and while the owner,
holder, or possessor thercol, (o exercise all the rights and powers, and privileges ol ownership or any
other interest therein, including the tight to receive. collect and dispose of, any and all dividends,
interests and income, derived therefrom, and the right to vote on any propriclary or other inlerest, on
any shares of capital stock. and upon any bonds, debentures, or ather securities, having voting power,
so owned or held, without however engaging in the business of an investment company under the
Investment Compeny Act or a finance company or a broker or dealer in sceurities of stocks,

Targe: Market/Segments of Business

The Corporation was previously engaged in providing services to credit cardholders of RCBC and
targeted cardable customers across all scgments. The company tapped merchants in different
geographical locations in the country in order fo acquire transactions of hath credit and debit card
transactions. As a service entity, Bankard provides business process outsourcing to interested clients

given its expertise in credit card payment processing.

At present, the Corparation is looking for viable investments which will provide atiractive returns to
ils shareholders,

Aceredited Establislments
MNone,
(i) Foreion Sales

None.

fiii) Distribtion methods of the products or services

None.

fiv) Status of any publich-announced new product or service
None,

(v} Competition

MNone,

(vi)  Disclose dependencies on single or limited mumber of suppliers for essential raw materials,
energy or other items

Inasmuch as the Corporation ceased to provide credil card services and considering the current
business of the Corporation as a holding company, it will have very limited need for raw materials.
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The Company is not dependent on single or limited number of suppliers and il sources materials from
various supplicrs as necessary,

fvit}  Disclose dependencies on single customer

Prior to the block sale last 27 December 2013, the Corporation only provided services to RCBC. The
service Tee denved from servicing the principal client, RCBC, was the main revenue source of the
Carporation.

Now, as i holding company, the Corporation is no longer dependent on a single customerielient.
(viti) Trawisactions with and/or dependence on related parties

Reter to note 13 of the Audited Financial Statements.

{ix) Summarize principal terms & expivation dates of all patents, trademarks, copyrights, licenses,
frunchises, concessions & rovalty agreements

Priorto sale last 27 December 2013, the Corporation has licenscs from MasterCard International, Visa
International, JCB Intemational Co, and Unionl’ay International which allows the company 1o issuc

credit cards and acquire transactions of merchants carrying said brands.

In view of the block sale and change in ownership and management, the Corporation has terminated
ils licenses from MasterCard, Visa, JCT and UPL

fx) Need for any govermment approval of principal products o services

The Corporation has no principal products or services that necd government approval.

(xi}) Effect of existing ov probuable government regulations on the business

"The Corporation’s business is nol alleeted by existing or probable government regulations.
fxii)  Indicate amount spent on research & development

The Corporation did not incur any research and development costs from 2012 to 2019,

{xiii) Cost & effects of compliance with envirosmental T

The Corporation intends to continue the implementation of cost-efficient methods 1o save paper and
encourage recyeling within the organization.

fxivi  Ntate the number of the registrant’'s present employees
Emplovees

Starting 2014, aside from the key management officers, all of the Corporation’s personnel performing
the Company’s daily operations are being outsourced

fxv)  Discuss the major risk/’s involved in each of the businesses of the company. Include a

disclosure of the procedures being undertaken fo identify, assess & manage such risks

Equity Price Risk
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Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equitivs deerease as a resull of changes in the levels
of the equily indices and the values of individual stocks, The Company’s exposure 1o equily price risk
relates primarily 1o its AFS investments listed in the PSE classified under linancial assets at OCL

The Company’s policy is to maintain the risk 1o an acceptable level, Movement of share price is
monitored regularly 1o delermine impact on the Company’s financial position,

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk ol loss thal may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a counterparty
default on its obligation. The Company's exposure to credit risk arises primarily from cash (excluding

cash cm hand), loans and receivables, and AFS linancial assets.

Exposure to Credit Risk. The carrying amount of cash, receivables, and AFS financial assets represent
the Conpany’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

Credit Quality. The credit quality of the Company’s financial assets that are neither past due nor
impaired are considered to be of high grade and expected to be collectible without incurring any credit

losses.

High grade linancial assets are those financial asscls from counterpartics with good financial condition
and with relatively low delaults,

{b) Additional Reguirements as to Certain lssucs or Issuers

Mone.

Item 2. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

The Company acquired @ Condomimum Unit at Unit 16 B Citibank Towcr, $741 Pasen de
Roxas, Makati City last August 2014 which is being used as office.

Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

All legal proceedings invalving the Corporation were trans{erred to RBSC

Item 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HHOLDERS

There were no matters submitled o a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter covered
by this report.

PART I -OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Ttem 5. MARKE] PRICE FOR ISSUER'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDERS' MATTERS

1. Market Information
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The Corporation’s shares of stock are heing traded at the Philippine Stock Fxchange under
Banks and Financial Tnstilulions and classified as Financials.

Q1 (2017) 1.15 1.55
Q2 (2017) 1.05 1.61
03 (2017) | .24 3.24
Q4 (2017) 1.90 3.03
Q1 (2018) 1.55 208
Q2 (2018) 1.27 1.83
Q3 (2018) .46 222
Q4 (2018) 128 1,86
Q1 (2019) 131 | 168
Q2 (2019) 1.14 | 138
Q3(2019) 111 1.43

The high and low prices of the Company’s sharc as of the latest practicable trading date of
05 November 2019 are PhP 1,33 and PhI® 1.14, respectively,

2. Iolders
The number of stockholders of record as of September 30, 2019 is 630, Common shares
oulslanding as of this date is 1,528, 474,000, The percentage of shares of stocks owned by the

public is 17.2% of the total outstanding shares

Top twenty (20) stockholders as of Scplember 300, 2019

1 PO WOMINEE CORPORATION(FILIPING) 1.517.226,785  00,26%
2 PUTY NOMINELE CORPORATION (NON-FILIFINOG 7336803 O0.48%
3 WILLIAM R, CU-IINIIENG OR CYNTHIA CU BUNAG 200000 00.01%
4 JARDINLE CMG LIFE 146,000 Q00T%
5 AMA RURAL BANK OF MANDALIIYONG, [NC. TOOGG 0001 %,
6 BIC CASTANEDA &OR IECTOR UY LODLOO0 Cinin %
7 SALAZAR, ERNESTO R, FO0GO0 00.07%,
bt WILLIAM R, CU UNIENG TOOLGOE (0] %
y BORBRES, JUN M. Q0000 00015
L ROLDAN, MARLIAN . 83,000 00.01%,
11 JARTHMNE CMG VALUL AO000 00.01%
12 CHUA. CATHERINE ANGSIONGA 5. T5,000  O0.00%,
13 TUN M, BOREES 8&/0R BUENAVENTURA CASENAS GOLOGO 00004,
14 GILLIR., GUILLERMO I, SO.000 D000,
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I5 TORRES, ROBERTO BELARMING 5, 0,000 DO00%

16 WVILAR, ANTONIONT. 0000 00.00%
17 LOPLZ, OSCAR M, 30,000 00.00%:
18 PUNZALAN, LARRY A, 43,500 00,00
19 SY. VICTOR GAN 40000 D0.00%
20 EalBUZ, PETER M, 40000 0005

3. Dividends

Mo dividends has been declared and paid for the year ended December 31, 2018, Subject to
the availability of unrestricted retained earmings and funding requirements of the Company, the
Board may declare cash dividends. Natably, the declaration ol stock dividends is subject to the
appraval ol the stockhalders,

4. Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities, Including Recent Issuance of
Securities Constituting an Exempt Transaction

Mone.

Item 6. COMPLIANCE WITI LEADING PRACTICE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Governance Statement

As a publicly-listed Philippine corporation, Bright Kindle Resources & Investments Inc. {formerly
Bankard Inc.) ("BKR") conforms to the corporate governance rules, requirements, and regulations of
Lthe Philippine (SEC) and the Philippine Stock Exchange (PST). BER submitted its I-FACGR in 2018
which is used as a ool to disclose Publicly-Listed Companies” compliance/non-campliance with the
recommendations provided under the Code of Corporate Governanee for Publicly-Listed Companies,
which [ollows the “comply or expluin™ approach., which is used in harmonizing the corporate
governance reportorial requirements of the SEC and the PSE,

BEKR is commitied to the highest standards of corporate governance and continues 1o benehmark its
procedures with recognized local and international best practices. The Board of Directars (BOTY) and
Management commil themselves to the principles and best practices of good governance based on its
Revised Manual on Corporate Governance, The BOD snd Management believe that good povernance
is a necessary component of what constitutes sound strategic business management, and therefore, take
every cllort necessary o creale awareness thereof within the organization. To ensure constant
improvement, BKR checks recent developments in corporale governance to elevate the Company's
corporale governance structures, processes, and practices.

BKR complies with the Code of Corporate Governance of the SEC and Corporate Governance
Guidelines and listing rules of the PSE. and endeavours to raise ifs corporale governance practices in
Tine with local and international best praclices.

Item 6. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

The [ollowing discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements and related notes as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 prepared in conformity with PFRS
herelo altached in the Exhibits,
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The tinancial mformation for the three vears ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 arc as
[ollows;

2018 vs, 2017

Resulis of operations

Audiled Incresse{Decrease)

2018 2m7 Amount %

fin millions)
Revenues FiLOO P0.15 (F0.13) (99.26)
Operating expenses 7.27 .84 (1,39 5.60
Share in net income (Toss) ol an
associale (77.37) 15.57 {92.95) (50679
Net income (loss) (P84.64) PR8I (P93.48)  (1.057.18)

The Company incwrred a net loss of P84.64 million during the vear, a decrease of
P93.48 million compared with last yvear's net income of P8.84 million. Significant changes in the
income statement accounts for the year ended December 31, 2018 versus the sume period last Vear are
as follows;

o Revenues are derived mainly from interest on bunk deposits, Revenues declined by $0,15
million compared with same period last year, due to lower level of eash this year than that of
prior year,

# General and administrative expenses increased by P0.39 million or 5.60% compared with
same period last year, The increase is attribulable to movemenis of the following accounts:
¢ More outsourced services were incurred this year than lust vear, resulting o increase in
Outside services account by POST million or 75.72%.
¢ The Company’s service vehicle has been fully depreciated last Tebruary 2018 (the same
vehicle has been disposed in April 2018). Consequently, depreciation expenses dropped
by P0.28 million or 12.03% compared with same period last vear.,
* Professional [ces mereased by PO.OT million or 11.14% compared with same period last
year, mainly due to increase in annual listing [ee and RSA token [ee paid to PSE from
P0.26 million last yvear to P0.3 | million this vear.
= Communication, light and waler of £0.29 million, increased Ty 0,08 million as compared
will last vear of same period.
»  Other expenses this year is lower by PO.25 million or 29.50%. mainly due to payment for
PCD maintenance fee made last year,
- Share in net income (loss) of an associate — The Company’s share in nel loss of an associate

this year amounted to P77.37 million - a decline of P92.95 million from last year's share in net
income amounting 1o P13.57 million.

Financial Position

Audited Increase{ Decreasc)
2018 2017 Ammount Yo
{in millions)
Assols P2.632.61 P2.753.94 (12138 (4.41%)
Liahilities 1.672.96 1,710,232 (3727 (2.18%
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stockholders” Equity 959,65 104371 (84.06) (B.05%)

» Assets during the year of P2,632.61 million is lower by £121.34 million or 4.41%, compared
with same period las! year, Significant movements in the following accounts caused the decline
in assels:

* Due from related partics dropped by P42.26 million compared with same perod last year
(from P58.72 million Tast year to #16.46 million this vear). The Company collecied F2.0
million [rom MMDC, an entity under commen contrel. MMDO also advanced the
Company’s operating expenses totaling #1.34 million. which was offsel fom the
Company’s outstanding receivable. Lastly, the Company assigned the receivable from the
Parent Company to TMEE, to offsct with the note payable amounting (o #38.5 million.

*  Property and equipment decreased by P1.96 million or 4.34% compared with same puriod
last ycar, primarily due to depreeiation recognized during the vear,

*  Investment in an associate is lower by P76.80 million compared with same periad last
year, The decline in this account is mainly due to recognition of the share in net loss of an
associate during the year (see Share in net income floss) of an associate above),

¥ s Liabilities of #1.672.96 million is lower by P37.27 million comparing with sume period last
year, mainly due to assignment of receivable amounting to 38.5 million from Parent Company
to TMEE, which was offset with the note payahle,

g The movement in Stockholder’s Equity is alributable 10 the net loss during the year
amouniing to P84.64 million, This was slightly offset by the share in other comprehensive
income af an associate recognized this year, arnounting tcr
P07 million.

Cash Flow

Audited Increase(Decrease)
2018 2017 Amount Y
fin millions)
Cash used in operating aclivitics Pi.29 P13.93 (P13.6d4) (97.01)
Cash used in investing activities 0.06 4.07 {(4.01) (98.52)
Cash used in linancing activities - a0.00 (90007 (100.00}

The cash used in operating activitics this year is lower by £13.64 million or 97.91% versus same
period last year, No major disbursements were made during the year, except for \he Company’s
operating expenses,

There was a minimal addition in property and cquipment this yeur, compared with last Vear,
resulling to decrease in cash used in investing activitics by £4.01 million or 98.52%.

[n 2017, the Company paid P90.0 million of its notes payable, No pavment has been made this vear,
henee, a decresse in cash used in financing activities by 100%,

2017 vs, 2016
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Resulis of operations

Audited Inerease Deerease)
20T 20164 Admounl Yy
- fin meillions)
Revenues P15 P0.24 (P0.09) (37.50)
Operating expenses 6.88 4.65 2.23 47.96
Share in net income of an
associale 15.57 [.70 13.87 15 88
Net income (loss) P8.84 {P2.72) Pl1.56 (426.20)
Revenues

The Company incurred a net income of P8.84 million for the yvear ended December 31, 2017 as
compared 1o 20016 net loss of P2.72 mullion.

Significant changes in the income accounts for the vear ended December 31, 2017 versus the same
puried last vear are as Tollows:

#  General and administrative expenses increased by P2.23 million or 47.96% due to the
fullowing accounts:

e Taxes and licenses increased by PO.18 million mainly due to filling fee paid for tender
offer to SEC,

*  Outside services increased by PO.68 million or 144,25% pertains to publication of tender
offer to media, scrvices paid to installation of server room, scrvices for the appraisal of
property and the serviees of agency for maintenance of the ofTice,

= Director’s Fees increased by PO.03 million or equivalent to 24.59% due to lesser atlendee
during BOT meetings.

s Depreciation increased by P0.63 million or 37.91% duc (o the improvement of office
carly this vear.

= Professional fees nercased by PO.03 million or equivalent to 6.02% due to additional
legal expense in 2017,

e Communication, light and water increased by £0.03 million or equivalent to 28.25%. In
2016, the office space was vacunt due to termination of lease comiract to Prime Media
Holdings lne.

¢ Otlher expenses increased by P0.63 million. The increase pertains (o insurance paid Tor
directors and officers liability, pavment of PCD mainlenance fee and oflice decoration
in 201 7.

Lo

Share in net income of an Associate increased by P13.88 million duc 1o increase in net
income of Mareventures Holdings Ine. in 2017,

Financial Position
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Audited Increase(Decrense)

2017 2016 Amount %
o (i neillions)
Asgsels P1.753.94  PLERN.TS (126,79 (4.40%)
Liabilities 1,710.23 185023 (140.00) (7.57%)
_Stogkholders™ Tguity 1.043.71 1,030.50 13.2] 1.28%

The significant changes in the Stalement of Financial Position accounts during the calendar yuar
ended December 31, 2017 versus 2016 are as follows:

#  Total assets decreased by P126.79 million or equivalent to 4.40% from F2.88 billion in 2016 1o
P2.75 billion m 2017,

Signilicant changes were mainly due to the following:

*  Cash decreased by P108.01 million or equivalent 1o 99.44% mainly due to payment of notes
payable amounting to POO million.

*  Duc from related parties decreased by P41.39 million or cquivalent to 41.35% are due to
payment made to related partics.

*  Other current assets increased by P1.76 million or equivalent to 28.39% primarily from
accumulated Input VAT,

* Investment in an associate increased by P19.94 million or cquivalent to (1.76% the increase

15 altributable to the share in equity of MARC.

# Current liabilities deereased by P140.00 million or equivalent 1o 7.57% due to payment
ol P90.00 million and P50.00 assignment of receivable, Current liahilities comprise solcly
of PL7HLOO million current portion of loans with maturity date December 31, 2017, On
August 4. 2016, Philippine Business Bank (PBB) assigned the note payahle 1o Trans
Middle East Philippine Equities Inc. (TMEE).

#  The stockholders™ equity increased by £13.21 million or equivalent to 1.28% from P1.03
billion in 2016 to 104 billion in 2017, The increase is due to the Company's
comprehensive income ol #13.21 million,

Cash Flow
Audited Incrense({Decrease)
2017 2016 Amount Yo
fir miilfions)
Cash used in operating activitics P13.93 PIT.40 (P23.47) 6275
Cash used in investing activities 4.07 10,43 {6.36) il 98
Cash used in financing activities 9000 200,00 (116.00) 5500

The cash provided by operating activilics decreased from 3740 million in 2016 fo
£13.93 million in 2017, The company incurred a net income before income tax in 2017 of £8.84
million as compared to 2016 net loss of P2.72 million,

In 2017, the company’s net cash used in investing activities are the additional expenditures on the
improvement of office #4.07 million,

In 2017, the Company paid P90 million of its notes payable,

fnfiormeican Surtement
A0 Annual Stockhiolders” Meeting
SEC Foown 20 - 18



2016 vs, 2015

Results of operations

Audited Increase(Decrease)
216 2015 Amount Y
fin miiliions) )

Reovenues P24 P1.55 (B1.31}) (84.52)
Operaling Expenses (4.65) {15.30) (10.65) (p9.a1)
Rialized loss on ATS Tnvestment i (28.41) 2841 100,00
Share in ncl income of an associate

1.69 12.20 (10.51) (86.15)
MNet loss (FLT2y  (P29.97) (P27.25) (B0.92)

Revennes

The Company icurred a net loss of P2.72 million for the year ended December 31. 2016 as compared
to 2013 net loss of #2997 million.

Significant changes in the income accounts for the vear ended December 31, 2016 versus the same
period last vear arc as [ollows:

»  General and administrative expenses decreased by P10.65 million or 69.61% duc 1o the
following accounts;

e Taxes and licenses decreased by P10.28 million or equivalent to 99.29% mainly due (o
PTLIS million payment of Dacumentary Stamp Tax in relation to the Notes payvable entered
inte by the Company with Philippine Business Bank.

»  Director’s Fees decreased by PO.14 million or equivalent 1o 52.83% due to lesser directors
meetings.

s Depreciation increased by BOOY million or 5.54% due 1o the Condominium,

¢ Prolessional fees decreased by PO.13 million or cquivalent to 19.19% due low cost on PSE
listing [ce as compared to 2013,

¢ Conmumunication, light and waler decreased by P0O.02 million or cquivalent o 12.77%
because the office space was vacant duc 1o termination of lease contracl 1o Prime Media
Huoldings Inc.

e Other expenses decreased by PO, 14 million or equivalent to 40.79% the decrease pertains to
shorter period on [ees payment made to Philippine Central Depository fee.

Realized loss on AFS investments decreased amounting to P28.4 million due to reelassification
ol AFS to Investment in an Associate in 20135,

W

#  Share in net income of an Associate decreased by P15 | million due to decrease in net incomc
of Marcventures Haoldings Tne. in 2016,

Financial Position
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Audited Increasef Decrease)
i)

206 2015 Amount o

fim millicns}
Agsels P2.880.73 3.082.53 (20180} (6.55%)
Liabilities 1,850.23 2,050,233 (200,100 (9.76%)
Stockholders” Equity L0050 1.032.20 1.70 0.16%

The signilicant changes in the Statement of Financial Position accounts during the calendar year
ended December 31, 2016 versus 20135 arc as [ollows:

#  Tolal assets decreased by P201.80 million or equivalent to 6.55% from 3,08 billion in 2015 1o
P2.88 billion in 2016.

Significant changes were mamly due to the following:

*  Cash decreased by P247.52 million or equivalent to 69.53% mainly due to payment of notes
payable amounting to P200 million and advances to related partics.

*  Receivables increased by P32.85 million or equivalent to 48.84% are advances made by
related parties.

*  Other current assets increased by P2.58 million or equivalent o 70.85% primarily from
accumulated Input VAT and construetion deposit on office improvement.

* Investment in an associate increased by P2.71 million or equivalent to 0.10% the increase
is attributable to the sharce in equity of MARC,

#  Current liahilities increased by £1.649.90 million or equivalent to 823,59% comprise solely of
PL.650.00 million noncurrent-portion of Loans with maturily date December 31, 2017, On
August 4, 2016, Philippine Business Bank assigmed the note payable to Trans Middle Fast
Philippine Equities Tne,

» The stockhelders’ cquily decreased by PL.70 million or equivalent to 0.16% [rom

P1.05 billion in 2015 1o P1.03 billion in 2016. The decrease due to the Company s comprehensive
loss of B1.70 million,

Consolidated Cash Flow

Audited Increasc{Decrease)
2016 2015 Amount Yo
fim millions)
Cash used in operating activitics P3T7.40 #1.37 3583 228217
Cash used m invesling activities 10.43 1.57 5.86 36433
Cash used in financing activities 200.00 = 200 =

The cash provided by operating activities decreased from B1.57 million in 2013 to P37.40 millian
in 2016. The company incurred a net loss before income tax in 2016 of 2,72 million as campared
1o 2015 of P29.96 million. In addition, accounts receivable increased by P32.85 million.

In 2016, the company’s nel cash used in investing aclivities are the acquisition of properly and
equipment worlh £10.43 million,

In 2016, the Company paid P200 million of its notes pavable,
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Key Performance Indicarors

‘ 2016 2017 2018
Return on Asset (%) (0.00%) 0.00%; (0.03%)
Return on Hquity (%) | (0.00%) 0.01% (0.08%) ‘

{Retarn on assels (ROA) was computed based on the ratio of net income? (net loss) Lo average
iassels,
2/ Retum on equity (ROT) was computed based on the ratio of net income!’ (nel luss) to average
equiry,

Ttem 7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The hinancial statements and schedules listed in the accompanying Index to Financial Statements and
Supplementary Schedules are filed as part of this Torm 17-A (see atlached 2018 Audited Financial
Slatements),

Item 8. INFORMATION ON INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT AND OTHER RELATED
MATTERS

External Auditors

The Company re-appointed Reyes Tacandong & Co. (RTC) as its independent external auditor for the
calendar year ended December 31, 2018, RTC is a leading professional services firm with a proven
track rceord of high quality work, They provide value-added services to clients through their elicm
caring team of outstanding audit, tax and business professionals who ulilize leading-edge systems and
techmology and are guided by the highest standards of quality, integrity and competence,

For the audit of the Company’s Annual linancial statements and services provided in commection with
statulory and regulatory filings or engagements, the aggregate amounts to be hilled or already hilled
excluding VAT and out of pocket expenses (OPE) by RTC amounts/amounted to 0.30 million and
PU.25 million for 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The Audit Commillee recommends 1o the Board the selection of external auditors conzidering
independence and effectivencss.

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
The Company has no disagreements with its accountants.

Changes and adoption of new Accounting Standards are fully summarized under Note 2 to Financial
Statements,

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATION FOR THE 3rd QUARTER
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Item I — Finaneial Statenients

The unaudited Financial Statements of Bright Kindle Resources & Investments, Tnc. (“the Company™)
as at September 30, 2019 (with comparative audited Statements of Financial Position as at
December 31, 2018), and for the three months and nine months ended Seplember 30, 2018 is in
compliance with generally accepted accounting principles and there were no changes made in
accounting policies and methods of computation in the preparation of the interim financial statements.

Summary of statements of finaneial position as at Seplember 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018:

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018

{Unaudited) i Audited) Increase {decrease)
Amount Percentage
(P 0 (170000 (P 000}

Current assets P24,368 P26.025  (P1.657) (6.37%)
Woncurrent assets 2.579.612 2,606,583 (26,971} {1.03%)
Tolal Assets P2,603,9%0 2,632,608  [(P28.028) {1.09%)
Current Liabililics R 1,673,579 £1,672.960 619 (04
Equily 930,401 050 648 (29,247} (3.05%)
Total Liabilities and Equity P2.603,980 PLO32.608  (F28.628) (1.089%)

Summary of unaudited stalements of comprehensive income for the three months and nine months
period ended Scptember 30, 20019 and 2018:

FFor the three months ended For the nine months ended

September 3, September 30,
2019 2018 2019 2018
(B000) {2000 (P 000) {100
General and administrative cxpenses (F1.074) (P1.118) (P3,730) (P4.124)

Share in net income (loss) of an

associate 25,032 2,307 (23,517) 4,301
Interest income ] 0 ] l
Income (loss) P24.854 Pl,189 (P29.247) P178

summary of unaudited slalements of cash flows [or the three months and nine months period ended
Scplember 30, 20H 9 and 2018:

For three months ended  For nine months ended

September 30, September 30,
20149 2018 2019 A H
(P 000) (#7000 (P 000) (P 000
Cash provided by (used in) operating activities (1384) (P420) P155 (P2 16)
Cash provided by (used in) investing activities - = - -
Cash provided by (used in) financing activities = = - =
Net increase {decrease) in cash (384} {420 155 (21 6)
Cash al heginming of perind TY8 814 259 a1
Cash ut end of period Pdld P3Y4 Pal4 P304
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Ttem 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation

Rosulty of Operation

Ninc months ended September 30, 2019 compared with nine months ended September 30, 2018

Revenue
The Company is not yet operating, hence, revenues generated mainly comes from interest on bank
deposils. No significant movement in the Company’s inlerest income.

General and adminisirative expenses
Total general and administrative expenses for the period of #3.73 million is lower by £0.39 million or
9.50% compared with same period last year. Significant movements are attributed (o the following

i, Depreciation
The decline in depreciation by POO8 million or 5,13% compared with same period last vear,
1s mainly attributed to the fully-depreciated service vehicle of the Company, which was already
fully amortized since February 2018, The same vehicle was sold on April 20, 2018 (see Note
6).

b Professional fees
The decrease in professional fees by P0.06 million or 10.73% is mainly due to lower annual
listing fee this vear, as comparcd with sume period last vear.

o Chutside yervices
Outside services this period amounting to PO.32 million is lower by P17 million or 34.33%
compared with same period last vear. This is due to the payments made for the desien,
production and printing of the Company’s annual reporl last year.

Shave in net income (loss) of an asseciate

The Company’s share in nef loss of an associate amounted to 25,52 million this period, This is lower
by P29.82 million, comparing with same period Jast vear, MARC, an associate, is in net loss position
as of September 30, 2019, as opposed to net income posilion sume period in 2018,

Three months ended September 30, 2019 compared with threc months _ended

September 30, 2018

Reveme
The Company is not yet operating, hence, revenues generated mainly comes from interest on bank
deposits. No significant movement in the Company’s interest income.

General and administrative expenses

Total gencral and administrative expenses for the period amounting to £1.07 million has deelined
slightly by P0.04 million or 3.96% comparing with the same period last year. No signilicant expenses
has been incurred by the Company lor the period,

Shave in net income of an associale

The Company’s share in net income of an associale amounted to P25,93 million this period. This is
higher by P23.64 million, comparing with same period last year. MARC s resulls of operations has
improved during the three months of the vear,
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Statements of Flnancial Position

The significant changes in the statement of financial position accounts during the nine months ended
September 30, 2019 compared with the December 31, 2018 level are as follows:

o Cash
The Company cash balance has increased by P0.15 million or 59.77%. The movement is mainly
duc to collection of 2.0 million of receivable from a related party and P0.87 million advances
made by an affiliate for the Company’s working capital requircments, which was ofTset by
payments made pertaining {o the Company”’s operaling cxpenses.

o Duge from related partics
The decrease in this account by P20 million is mainly due to collection of receivables rom a
rilated party during the period,

] Chiker current assels
The increase in other current assels is mainly attributable 1o additions in Input VAT from purchase
ol domestic services. totaling P0.16 million during the period.

o FProperfy and equipment
Decrease in property and equipment by P1.45 million is mainly due to depreciation for the period.
No additions and/or disposals were made in 2019,

e [nvestment in an associale
The Company’s investment in an associale has declined by £25.52 million, which movement
represents the share el loss of an associate during the periad.

o Acerned expenses and other curvent lalilitics
This account deereased by £0.25 million or 33.93%. due to payments made on the previous
yeir's aceruals.

o Dweto a related porny
There 1s an increase of PO.E7 million or 86.60% due to additional advances from an alfiliate,
which was used by the Company for its working capital requirements.

o Refained carnings
The decline in relained eamings by P29.25 million, pertains to the net loss recognized [or the
period.

Statements of Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2019 amounts to
£0.15 million, while cash used in operating activitics in same perind last year was £0.22 million.
Increase in cash for the current period s the nel result of the following significant transactions:

e Pavment of operaling cxpenses during the period,
s Advances made by an affiliate totaling P0O.87 million.
e Colleetion of P2.0 million from a related party.
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HORIZONTAL AND VERTICIAL ANALYSIS

September M, 2019 December 31, 2018 Increase {Decrease)
{Unaudited) { Audited) Amount Percentage
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash P413,553 B25E. 845 P154.708  59.77%
Due from related parties 14,455,581 16,455,581 (20000007 (12.15%)
Other current asscls 9,498,550 _ Y9.310.757 187,703 2.02%
Tolal Current Asscls 24,367,684 26,025,183 (1,657.499)  (6.37%)
Noncurrent Assets
Properly and equipment 41,684,903 43,138,202 (1,453.299)  (3.37%)
Investment in an associate 2,537.927,153 2563444406 (25,517,253} (1.00%)
Total Moncurrent Assets 2.579.012,056 2,606,582 608 (26970,552) {1.03%)
P2.603,979.740 BLOI2,607.791 (P2R.62K.051)  (1.09%)
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liahilities
Accrued expenses and other
current liahilities P210.969 P457.0M6 (P246.937) (31.03%,)
De to a related party 1,866,031 1000, 000 866031 BOA0Y%
Note pavable ) 1,671,501,723 1,671.501,723 ~ -
Total Current Liabilities 1,673,578,723 1.672.959 629 619,094 {104%
Equity
Capital stock 840,660,700 840,660,700 = :
Retained eamings 82,393,947 TTL641.082  (29,247.145) (26.20%)
Other comprehensive income 7,346,370 7,346,370 = -
Total Tguity 930,401,017 959,648,162 (29,247.145)  (3.05%)
P2.603,979.740 B2L632,607,791 (P28,628.051)  (1.09%)
35
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Key Performance Indicators

September 30, 2019 Seprember 30, 2018

Net income (loss) (P29,247,145) P177.144
COuick assets 14,869,134 56,684,643
Current assets 24,367,684 65,316,067
Tolal Assets 2,603,979,740 2.754,101,053
Clurrent liabilities 1.673,578,723 1,710,211,589
Total lighilitics 1,673.578,723 1,710,211,589
Stockholders® Equity 030,401,017 1,043 K89 464
Mumber of commen shares outslanding L528.474,000 1,528.474.000

Liquidity ratios:

Clurrent ratio (1} 0.01:1 0.04:1
Quick ralio (2) 0.01:1 0.03:1
Solvency Ratios:
Debt ratio (3) 0.64:1 (L62:1
Dbt to Equity ratio {4) 1.80:1 1.64:1
Profitability ratios: )
_Belumn on equity (5) _ (0.03) 0.0002
Return on assets () _(0.01) 0.0001
Income (Ioss) per share (7) {1.02) (L0010

Other Tnformation

a.  Any known trends, demands, commitments, ¢vents or uncertainties that will have a material
impact on the issuer’s guidity.

Nothing to disclose

b Any events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation thal is material to the
company, including any defaull or acceleration of an obligation.

Nothing 1o disclose
All material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations {including contingent

obligations), and other relationships of the company with unconsolidated entities or other
persons created during the reporting period.

13

Nothing 1o disclose

d. Any material commitments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of such commitments
and the expeeled sources of funds [or such expendilures.

Mathing 1o disclose
Any known trends, events or uncertainties that have had ar that are reasonably expected 10 have

a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales/revenues/income from continuing
operations.

o

Mothing to disclose

6
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. Any significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the issuers conlinuing
aperations.

MNothing o disclose

UPON THE WRITTEN REQUEST OF THE STUCK_HDLDIT.R{S}, THE CORPORATION
UNDERTAKES TO FURNISH SAID STOCE HOLDER{S) WITH A COPY OF SEC FORM 1774,
FEEE OF CITARGE, EXCEPT FOR THE EXHIBIT ATTACHED THEEET(, WHICH SHALL RBE
CHARGED AT A COST. ANY WRITTEN REQUEST FOR A COPY OF SEC FORM 17-A AND
17-0 SIHALL BE ADDRESSED TO Atty. Maila Lourdes . De Castro- ¢éo 4% Floor Citibank Cleniter,
Paseo de Roxas, Makati City

SIGNATURE PAGE

Alter reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, 1 certify that the information set
forth in this report is irue, complete and correct. This report is signed in the City of Makati on (6
Mowvember 2019,

Bright Kindle Resources &
Investments Ine. (Tormerly Bankard Inc.)

—_—

WPyrsef—d

Maila Lourdes (i De Castro
Corporate Scerelary

a7
Inftermdion Suaremeni
2R Annual Stockhedders” Meating
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CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

|, Felix Cesar L. Zerrudo, Filipino, of legal age and with office Address at 2735 Zenaida St., Brey.
Poblacion, Makati City, after having been dulv sworn to in accordance with law do herebv deciare

that:

I, { am a nominee for Independent Director of BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS, INC.
{"BKR") for its Annual Stockholders’ Meeting on 10 December 2019,

o I am affiliated with the following companies or organizations (including Government-Owned

and Controlled Corporations):

COMPANY/ORGANIZATION POSITION/RELATIONSHIP PERIOD OF SERVICE |
ASIAN APPRAISAL COMPANY INC. PRESIDENT AND COO Since 2009 UP TO PRESENT
AMALGAMATED PROJECT MANAGEMENT PRESIDENT SINCE 2009 UP TO PRESENT
SERVICES INC. _ )
ASIAN ASSET INSURANCE BROKERAGE CORP. | PRESIDENT SINCE 2009 UP TO PRESENT
PROFESSIONAL FUNDING SERVICES INC. PRESIDENT SINCE 2012 UP TO PRESENT
AE PROTEINA INDUSTRIES INC. GENERAL SINCE 2017 UP TO PRESENT
MANAGER/TREASURER i |
TOP TEAM DYNAMICS INCORPORATED DIRECTOR _ | SINCE 2013 UP TO PRESENT |

3. | possess all the gqualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an Independsnt
Director of, as provided for in Section 38 of the Securities Regulation Code, its Implementing Rules
and Regulations and other SEC issuances.

4. | am related to the following director/officer/substantial shareholder of (covered company and
its subsidiaries and affiliates) other than the relationship provided under Rule 38.2.3 of the

Securities Regulation Code, (where applicable)

| NAME OF DIRECTOR/OFFICER/ COMPANY * NATURE OF RELATIONSHIP |
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER ['
NA 1 NA | NA ]

5. To the best of my knowledge, | am not the subject of any pending criminal or administrative
investigation or proceeding / | disclose that | am the subject of the following criminal/administrative

investigation or proceeding {as the case may be):

OFFENSE TRIBUNAL OR AGENCY STATUS
CHARGED/INVESTIGATED ~ INVOLVED
[ NA NA NA ]

6. (For those In government servicefaffiliated with a government agency or GOCC) | have the
required written permission or consent from the (head of the agency/department) to be an
independent director in, pursuant to Office of the President Memorandum Circular No. 17 and

Section 12, Rule XVIll of the Revised Civil Service Rules,



7.1 shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as independent director
under the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules and Regulations, Code of
Corporate Governance and other SEC issuances,

8. Ishall inform the Corporate Secretary of anv changes in the above mentioned information within
five days from ifs ocourrence.

) CITY OF makaT =
Done, this ' - 'bf 4') {} :fa%g at AT g /
o .
FELIX CESAR L. ZERRUDO
Affiant

NOv 0 620181 |
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of Lt F MRV Behbnt personally

appeared before me and exhibited to me his issued at on
and valid until

ATTY.VIRC AT SATALLA
NCTTRIN BLF o maawat) CiTy

Doc. No._|T¥ ; ARETE B0 P8~ iyt 199, 34, 2020
Page Mo. : A BT UL OF A7 Y NG dGdes
Book No : x 1.;"' E PUMPUANCE MO, w1000 0150 1.4 1001
. i . EHOLR N, 36T wET g SAEMNAER n "
Series of 2019, TR Naz333020. 4N 3, 20 .: f.hxluzfr'if:‘:}'rm:
FRECLIHVE BLOS contep Vet | AVECOR., IPITAR 5T
Bl 11 CED Y



REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES )
MAKATI CITY ) 5.5,

SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE

I, MAILA LOURDLS G. DE CASTRO, of legal age, Filipino, with office address al 4t
Floor, Citibank Center, Paseo de Roxas Ave., Makati Cily, being the duly elected and qualified
Corporate Secretary of BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS, INC. (the
“Corporation”), a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the Philippines
with principal office address at 16t Floor, Citibank Tower, Paseo de Roxas, Makati City,
hereby certify that as of the date of this Certification, none of the directors or officers of the
Corporation are employed by or connected with any government agencies or ils
mstrumentalities.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hamQ GI; 1 4 ?ﬁﬁa}* of

2014 gl A TLCET?

—_—

\ N\

MAILA LOURDES G. DE CASTRO
Corporate Secretary

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this da}QQT 14 ZDTQ‘ 2015 at
_ ARKATLGIMENt exhibited to me her Driver's License No, N02-95-206472 expiring on 18
Oclober 2021,

Doc. No. __~Z3.

Page No. 29

Bm?k ND&@Q PIR ..;;":"1;.::'.-1-“.1‘3r':._'il-l:-":-j-'?':h's' MAKAS
Series of 2019, EFND.GSA155 LIFETIME MEMBER

VT NOLER 104 20 T ROLL ND, 4008
BACLE COMELL NTENDN-000693Y
UHIT 102 FERINGULA COURT BLDE
715 MAKATIAVE. MAKAT) CITY



CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

I, CARLOS ALFONSO T. OCAMPQ, Filipmo, of legal age and with office Address a 28(h
FMoor, Pacitic Star Building, Makat Avenue corner Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue, Makati City, afler having
been duly sworn to in accordance with law do hereby declare thae

1. 1 am elected for Independent Director

of BRIGITT KINDLE RESOURCES &

INVESTMENTS, INC. (“BER*) and have been its independent director since |anuary 2014

twhete applicable).

)

Crwned and Contralled Corporations):

I am alfiliared wdth the following companies or otganizations {ncludine Government-
i [ | £

COMPANY/ORGANIZATION

| POSITION/RELATIONSIITP

PERIOD OF
SERVICE

Mareventures Haldings, Tne.

lndependent Direcror

Augl_sr 2013 to Present

{.-}c:arnpn & Manalo Law Tirm
[

Senior Partner

Odotober 1997 0
present

MAA General Assurance ljluie‘.., Ine. Director Marel 20003 1o Present
" South Forbes City (_:_n]]fage. Corporation Director May 2009 to Present
Astun Carmakers Carporation Director April 2008 m-T‘resr:nr_
It Transit, Ine. Diirecror July 2009 to Present
Prestipe Cars, Ine, Dirccror June 2006 to Present

Timebound 'radizg Corporatdon
! it R Bt = I

hrector

| Apnl 2013 o Present

Monpierre loads Cormporation

Dirvetor

Decetmber 2001 10

Present

Adrianse Phils, loe,

Director/ Corporate Scoretary

March 2012 1 Pr[:m‘-‘ﬂC

Bluelion Morors E;m]:.

Director/ Corporate Sceretary

Fﬁbruur}' 1999 1o
Present

| First Charrers & Touts Tra nsport Corp.

Director/ Corporate Secretasy

July 2012 to Present

Birvel Resorts Tnternadonal Tne.

Dircctor/ Corporate Secretary

i |l 2009 e Prezent

Autohaus Quezon Ciry, [ne,

hrector) Cotporate Secreta ry

_r"aprii 2008 1o Prezent

| AVE Phibppines, Tric.

Dhirector/ Corporate Secreta v

[aly 2000 to Presert

[arn Taner, lne,

- Directar/ Corporate Secretary

July 2009 10 Present

Manila Golf & Country Club

| Cotpotate Secretary

April 2008 1 Present

Solen Tnnovadons HMoldings L.

Trrecior

MNovember 2016 o
Prezen)

I_I_m;grn'_cr_.d f_:iar of the I‘h.i._i.ij:pim:s )

Metnbier

301 possess all the qualificanons an

i

d none of the disqualifications 10 serve as an Independent

Dircctor of, a5 provided {orin Secion 3% of the Secuzities Repuladon Code, its Implementing

Rules and Repulaunns and other

ST dssuanees,

4 1 am related o the following direcror/officer fsubstantial sharcholder of {covered company
and ils subsidiades and affliates’ other than the relafonship provided under Rule 3823 of
the Secundes Reguladon Code, {where applicable)




NAMT, OF ' COMPANY ! NATURD OF

DIRBECTOR OFFIC B REIATIONSHIT
RUBSTARMTTAL
SHARTTHOLIDER
o Na ] TTNA INA

5 To the best of my knowledge, 1 am not the subject of any pending criminal oradministradve
mvestigation or  proceeding /T disclose that 1 am the subject of the following
criminal fadrinistrative investigation or proceeding fus the case may bl

| OFFENSL TRIBUNAL OR AGENCY STATUS

CHARGLD/TNVESTIGATLED INVOLVED

| NA NA NA

0. (For those in government service/alfiliated with a government agency or GOCE T have
the required writlen permission or consent from the (head of the ageney/ departinent) to be an
independent director in, pursuant to Office ol the President Memorandum Circular No, 17
and Secrion 12, Rule XVITT of the Revised Civil Service Rules,

7.1 shall faithfully and diligemily comply with my  dutes and responsihilities a5 independent
ditector under the Securities Reguladon Code and its Itnplemendng Rules and Repulations,
Code of Corporate Governance and other SEC issuances,

% Dshall inform the Corporate Sccretary of anv changes in the above mendoned information
within five days from its vccurrence,

Done, Thl“ﬂzgﬁq

v of Af Bl

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN o before me this L _day of ar Makati ity

alfzant personally appeared before me and exhibited 1o me his Passport with Passport nurnber

P2OYGABAA 1ssued at TIVA Manila on 02 March 2017 and walid untl (1 Mareh 2027

1 ™o, EE :
Page: N, ;

Book Ne_ [T
Reties nf 2019,

Lintii 7 Decernbor 2
Ll Mo pesgd
PR No POR1A501/04 719 Manar City
TBE Do UAOB36; 01/ Th. 14 Makah ity
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-0)
QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF TIE SECURITIES
REGULATION CODE AND SRC RULE 17(2) (b) THEREUNDER
1. For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2019
2. Commission Identification Number 102165

3. BIR Tax ldentification No. 000-8(3-498-p00

4. Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter: BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES &
INVESTMENTS, INC.

LA

Philippines
Province. Country or other jurisdiction of  incorporation or organisalion

6. Industry Classification Code: D SEC Use Only)

7. 16™ Floor Citibank Tower, 8741 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City 1209
Address of issuer’s principal office Fostal Code

H. 632/ 8330760
Registrant’s telephone number, meluding arca code

9. Former name, former address. and former fiscal year, if changed since lust repart

1) Securities registered pursuani Lo Sections 8 and 12 of the Code, or Sections 4 and 8ol the
RSA
Number of Shares of Common Stock
Title of Each Class Outstanding and Amount of Thebt Oustanding

Comman Stock, PO.55 par value  1,528,474,000 (as of 9/30/19)
1. Arcany or all of these securities lisied on the Philippine Stock Fxchanuoe?

Yes [x] Mo [ ]

12, Indicate by check mark whether the regisirant:

() has filed all reports required 10 be filed by Section 17 of the Code and SKC Rule 17
thereunder or Sections 11 ol the RSA and RSA Rule | 1(a)-1 thereunder, and
sections 26 and 141 of the Comporation Cade of the Philippines. during the
preceding 12 months (or for shorter period the repistrant was required 1o file such
reparts):

Yes |x] No ]

(b} has been subject 1o such filing requirements for the past 90 davs
Yes [¥] No [ ]
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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Hem 1. — Financial Statements

The wnavdited Financial Staiements of Bright Kindle Resources & Investments, Inc, (“the Company™)
as at September 30, 2019 (with comparative audited Statements of Financial Position as al December
31, 2018), and for the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2018 is in compliance with
generally accepled accounting prineiples and there were no changes made in accounting palicies and
methods of computation in the preparation ol the interim financial statements.

Summary of statements of financial position as at September 30, 2019 and Deceber 31, 2008:

September 30, 2019 December 3 1, 2018

{(Unaudited) { Audited) Tncrease (decrease)
Amoun! Percentage
(P*000) #1000y @00
Current assets 24,368 P26,025  (P1,657) (6.37%)
Noncurrent aszets 2,579,612 2.606,583 (26,971} (1.03%)
Tolal Assets P2,603 980 P2.632608  (P28,628)  (1.00%)
Current Liahilitics P1,673,579 P1,672.960 PalY 0.04%
Equity 930,401 450,648 (20,247) (3.05%)
Total Liabilities and Equity P2,603.980 P2O32608  (P2R,628) (1.00%)

Summary of unaudited statements of comprehensive income for the three months and nine months
period ended September 30, 2019 and 2018:

For the three months ended For the ninc months ended

September 3, September 30,
2019 2018 2019 2018
- (P00 (£ 000 (B o0 {f’UUU‘]
General and administrative expenses {F1,074) (PL.IIE) {P3.730) (Pd,124)

Share in net income (lnss) of an

associate 25,932 2307 (25,517) 4,301
Interes! mcome { 8] { ]
Ancome (loss) P24,858 1,189 (P29,247) P17

Summary of unaudiled statements of cash flows for the three months and nine monihs period ended
September 30, 2009 and 201 8:

Fhr three months ended  or 'ninu months ¢nded
Seplember 30, September 310,

2ms 2018 2019 2014

(F*000) (#1000 (P 000) (P 000)

Cash provided by (used in) operating activities (F384) {F420) P155 (P216)
Cash provided by (used in) investing activilics - = - -
Cash provided by (used in) {inancing activities = = - -

Net increase (decrease) in cash (384) (420) 155 (216)
Cash at beginning of period T98 814 259 61
Cash al cnd of period ) P44 394 P414 P394

Lia



Item 2. Management's Discussion nnd Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation

Hesulis of Opervation

Nine months ended September 30. 2019 compared with nine months ended September 30, 2018

Revenne
The Company is nol yet operating, hence, revenues generated mainly comes from interest on bank
deposits. No sigmificant movement in the Company’'s interest income.

General and administrative expenses
Total peneral and administralive expenses for the period of P3.73 million is lower by PO3S million or
9.56% compared with same period last vear. Significant movements are atirnbuted to the following

a. Depreciation
The decline in depreciation by PO.OS million or 5.13% compared with same period last year, 15
mainly attributed 10 the fully-depreciated service vehicle of the Company, which was already
fully amortized since February 201 &, The same vehicle was sold on April 20, 2018 (see Note 6),

b, Professional fees
The decrease in professional fees by PO.OG million or 10,73% is mainly due to lower annual
listing fee this vear, as compared with same period last year,

e Chutside vervoes
Outside services this period amounting o £0.32 million is lower by P07 million or 34,33%
compared with same period last yemr. This is due to the payments made lor the desipn,
production and printing of the Company's annual report Inst vear.

Share in net income (loss) of an associate

The Company’s share in net loss of an associate amounted to 25,52 million this period. This is lower
by P29.82 million. comparing with same period last year, MARC, an assoviate, is in net loss posilion
as of September 34, 2019, ax opposed to net income position same period in 2018,

Three months  ended  September 30, 2019 eompared  with  three months  ended
September 340, 2018

Revenie
The Company is not yet cperating. hence, revenues generated mainly comes from interest on hank
deposits, No significan| movement in the Company’s interes! income,

Geneval and administrative expenves

Lotal general and administrative expenses for the period amounting e P1LO7 million has declined
slightly by PO.04 million or 3.96% comparing with the same period last year. No signilicant expenses
has been incurred by the Company for the periad.

Share in net income of an associaic

The Company’s share in net income of an associate amounted to 25,93 million this period. This 1s
higher by P23.64 million, comparing with same period lasi vear. MARC s results of operations las
improved during the three months of the year,



Statementy of Financial Poyition

The significant changes in the statement of financial position accounts during the nine months ended
september 30, 2019 comparad with the December 31, 2018 level are as [ollows:

»  Cash
The Company cash balance has increascd by #0.15 million or 59.77%. The movement is mainly
duc to collection of P2.0 million of receivable from a related party and P0.87 million advances
made by an affiliate for the Company’s working capital requircments, which was offset by
payments made perlaining to the Company’s operating expenscs.

o D from related parties
The decrease in this account by P2.0 million is mainly duc to colleclion of receivables from a
related party during the period.

o (hher current asiety
The increase in vlher current assets is mainly attributable 1o additions in Input VAT from purchase
of domestic services, totaling PO.16 million during the period.

¢ Property and equipment
Decrease in property and equipment by P1.45 million is mainly due to depreciation for the period.
Mo additions andfor disposals were made in 20149

® Tmvestemient inoan associaic
The Company’s investment in an associate has declined by £25.52 million, which mavement
represents the share in net Joss of an associate during the period.

s Acorued expenses and other current labilitics
"T'his account decreased by PO.25 million or 53.93%, due to payments made on the previous year's
accruals,

o Dweto arelared pariy
There is an inercase of PO.87 million or 86.60% due to additional advances from an attiliate, which
was used by the Company for its working capital requirernents.

o Refuined carnings
The decline in retained earnings by $29.25 million, pertains to the nel loss recogiized for the

period.

Statenients of Cash Flaws

Nel cash provided by operating activitics for the nine months ended September 30, 2019 amounts 1o
PO.15 million, while cash used in operating activities in same period last yvear was P0.22 million.
Inerease in cash for the current period is the net result of the following sipnificant transactions:

¢ Payment of operating cxpenses during the period.
s Advances made by an affiliate totaling P0O.87 million,
e Collection of #2.0 mullion from a related party,



HORIZONTAL AND VERTICIAL ANALYSIS

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018

lerease (Decreasc)

{(Unaudited) {Audited) Amaount Pereentage
ASSETS
Current Asscts
Cash P413,553 PI5k.B45 P154,708 50770
Due from related partics 14,455,581 16,455,581 (20000007 (12.15%)
Other current assels 9,498,550 9,310,757 187,793 2.02%
Total Current Asscls 24,367 ,p84 26.0125,183 (16574997  (6.37%)
MNoncarrent Assels
Property and cquipment 41,684,903 43,138,202 (1.453.299)  (3.37%)
Invesiment in an associale 2,537,927,153 2563444406 (25517.253)  (1.00%)
Total Noncurrent Assets 2.572.612,056 2,606,582.608 (26,970,552} 1.03%)
¥2.603,979,740 P2.032,607,791 (P2R628.051) (1.09%)
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other
current liabilities 210,969 PA5T7.006 (P246,937) (53.93%)
Due to a related parly 1,866,031 1L OO0 000 BOG.O31L  BO.60%
Note payablce . _ 1.671.501,723 1,671,501,723 = =
Total Current Liabilitics 1,673,578,723 _ 1,672.959.629 G1%.094 0.04%
Equity
Capilal stock 840,660,700 40,660,700 - -
Fetained earnings 82,393,047 11,641,002 (20247145 {26.20%)
Other comprehensive income 7.346,370 7346370 - -
Tolal Equity 930,401,017 959,648,162 (29,247 145)  (3.05%)
. ~ ~P2,603,979,740 P2,632.607,791 ($28,628.051) (I 09%0)




Kev Perfarmance Indicators

September 30, 2019 Scptember 30, 2018

Net income (loss) (P29.247,145) PL77, 144
CQuick assets 14,869,134 56,684,643
Current assets 24,367,084 65,316,067
Total Assets 2,603,979, 740 2.754,101.053
Current liabilities 1.673,578,723 1.710,211,589
Total liahilities 1.673,578,723 171,211,589
Stockholders™ Heuity 30,401,017 1,043 889,464
Number of commen shares outstanding 1,528.474,000 1,528 474,000

~ Liguidity ratios;

Current ratio (1) 0.01:1 0.04;1
Chuick ratio (2) 0.01:1 0.03:1
Solvency Ratios;
el ratio (3) 0.64:1 0.62:1
Debt to Equity ratio (4) 1.80:1 1.64:1
Profitability ratios: ] L
_Return on equity (5) {(.03) 0.0002
Return on assets (6) {(0.01) (O]
Income (loss) per share (7) (0.02) : (L0001

Other fnformation

i,

Any known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncerlainties that will have a malerial
impaet on the 1ssuer’s liquidity,

Mothing to disclose,

Any events thal will trigper dircet or comingent financial obligation that is material to the
company. including any default or acecleration of an obligation,

Nothing to disclosc.

All material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent
obligations), and other relationships of the company with unconsolidated entilics ar other
persons created during the reporting period,

Nothing 1o disclose.

Any material commuitments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of such commitments
and the expected sources of Tunds for such expenditures.

Nothing 1o disclose.
Any known trends, evenls or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have
a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net salesfrevenuesdincome from conlimuing

operations,

MNothing to disclose.



I, Any significant clements of income or loss that did not arise from the issuer's contiming
aperalions.

Mothing to disclose.

PART 11 - OTHER INFORMATION

The Company may, at its oplion, report under this item any information nol previously reported inoa
report on SEC Form 17-C. If disclosure of such infurmation is made under this Parl IL, it need not be
repeated in a report on Form 17-C which would otherwise be required 1o be filed with respeel 1o such
miormation or in a subsequent report on Form 17-0).

PART I11 - FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

Scptember 30, 2019 September 30, 2018

Liquidity Ratio

Crurreni Ratio .o 0.04
Current assets 24,367,684 65,316,067
Current liabilities 1,673,578,723 L710,211,580

Chuicl Rafio (L0 0.03
Chuick azsel 14,860,134 56,684,643
Currenl liabilities 1.673.578.723 1,710,211,584

Solvency Ratio

Db Ratie {164 .62
Total Habilities 1,673,578,723 1710211558

_ Total assets 2,603.979.740 2,754,101 053

Debt-ta-equity Ratio 1.80 .6l
Total liahitities 1,673,578.723 1,710,211,589
Todal cquity ) 930,401,017 1,043 889 464

FProfitability Ratio

Assei-to-equity Ratio 280 2.04
Tolal assets 2,603,979,740 2,754,101,053

Total equity

030,401,017

1,043,889 464

Return on Equin Raiio (0.03) (0.0002
Nel income (loss) {29.247.145) 177144
Averape shareholder's equity 045,024,591} 1.0143,800,892

Return on Assets (.01} {0,000
Met income (loss) (29.247.145) 177,144

Average total asscls

2,618,293,766

2,754.022470
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BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2015

Mote (Unaudited) {Audited)
ASSETS
Curreni Assets
Cash 4 P413,553 P25R,845
Lue from related parties 12 14,455,581 16,455,581
Other current assets 5 9,498,550 9310757
Total Current Asscls 24,367,684 26,025 183
Noncurrenl Assets
Property and equipment £ 41,684,903 43 138 202
Investment inan associale 7 1,537,927.153 2,563,444,406
Total Noncurrent Assels 2579612056 2,606,582 618
12,603,979,740 P2,632.607,791
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabililies
Accrued expenscs and other current liabilities 8 P210,964 PAST 006
[hae 1o a related party 12 1,866,031 1,000,000
Note payable 0 1,671,501,723 1,671,501,723
Total Current Liabilities 1,673.578,723 1.672,959.620
Equity
Capital stock 40,660,700 840,660,700
Eetained eamings 82,393,947 111,641,092
Other compreliensive income 7.346,370 7,346,370
Total iguity 930,401,017 050 648,102
#2,603,97 4.741) Pz,ﬁﬂﬁ[]?,?ﬁ'l

Se cecemnpaning Notes to Fieencial Siolements,
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BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS, INC,

) (A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.) )
UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF COMPRENENSIVE INCOME

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 34,
Note 2019 2018 2 2018
GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

EXPENSES 11 (FL.073.919)  (PLIIE234)  (P3.730,334) (#4.124.488)
SHARE IN NET INCOME (LOSS)

OF AN ASSOCTATE 7 25,931,749 2,306,779 (25.517,253) 4,300,755
INTEREST INCOME 4 - 252 313 442 w7
INCOME (LOSS) o P24,858,082 PLIZEASE  (P29,247.145) PI77.144
LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND
_ DILUTED - 13 P02 P0.001 {F0.02) PUGOOL

See gecsmpanine Nojos o Finanoial Starenienis.
¥ &



BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Nolc i

September 30, 2019 Seplember 30, 201§

CAPITAL STOCK - £0.55 par value
Authorized - 2,000,000,000 shares
Issued, subscribed and outstanding -

10

1,528,474.000 sharcs PEA0,660, 700 PRA0, 660,700
RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance at beginning of period H1.641,092 196,278 09]
Net income (loss) (29,247,145) 177.144
Balance at end ol period 82,303,047 196,455,235
Share in other comprehensive income of an

associale: 7.346.370 0,773,520
TOTAL EQUITY F930.401,017 P1,043,580 464

See pecompiang Noley fo Financial Stolewenis,



BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS, INC.

(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Nine Months Ended September 30,

Note 2019 - 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Income (loss) belore lax (£29,247.145) 177,144
Adjustments for:

Share in net loss (income) of an associate 7 25,517,253 {4,300,755)

Deprecialion 5 1,453,204 1,531, 84h

Interest income 4 (442) {877
Operating loss before working capital changes (2,277,035) {2,592.642)
Decrease (increasc) in:

Due from related partics 2000000 2418 D00

Ciher currenl assets (I87,793) (22,1500
Tnerease (decrease) in:

Accrucd expenses and other current liabilities (246,937) (19.978)
_ Due to a related party 866,031 =
Mef cash provided by (uscd in) operations 154,266 (Z216.770)
Interest received 442 RIT
INCREASL (DECREASE) IN CASH 154,704 {215,803)
CASH AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 258,845 610,059
CASH AT END OF PERIOD P413.553 P04 166

e gecampaltiing Netes to Financial Nerements,
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BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS, INC.
(A Quhmdmn of RY M Business M anagement Corp.)

UNAUDITED S TATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Three Months Ended September 30,

Nole 201v 20148
CASH TLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Income before tax 724,858,082 P1,188,858
Adjustments for:

Share in nel income of an associate 7 (25,931,749 (2,306,779

Depreciation £y 484,136 481,566

Interest income 4 {252) {313)
Operating loss before working capital changes (589,783) (636.068)
Decrease (increase) in

Due from related partics 500,000 373,000

Other current asscts (137.120) {156,900}
Increase (decrease) in:

Accrued expenses and other current liahililics (157,379) 214
Net cash provided (used in) by operations (384,282) (420.453)
Interest received 252 313
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH {384,030) (420,140
CASH AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 797,583 814,306
CASII AT END OF PERIOD P413,553 394166

See gecempaning Noves to Fimanetal Statcmenis



BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Corporate Information

General Information

Bright Kindle Resources & Investments, Ine. (the Company), formerly Bankard, Inc. was incorporated
and registered with the Philippine Securitics and Exchange Commission {(SIC) on December 4, 1981 as
a credit card corporation, On March 21, 19935, the Company listed its shares with The Fhilippine Stock
Exchange, Inc. (PSE).

Om October 18, 2013, the Board of Dircctors (BODY} of Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation (R{CBC)
approved the sale of its 89.98% collective stake in the Company to RYM Business Management Corp,
(the Parent Company) and other investors.  The Parent Cotnpany acquired 76.50% intercst in the
Company.

In November 2013, the BOD approved the amendment 1o change (he corporate name to Bright Kindle
Fesources & Investments, Inc. and primary business purpose to a holding company.

The Company’s principal office address is at 16ih Floor Citibank Tower, 8741 Paseo de Roxas, Makati
City.

Investment in Mareventures Holdinos, Inc. (MARC )

On December 15, 2014, the Company acquired 600,000,000 shares of MARC representing 33% equily
interest for 2,604.0 million from the Philippine Business Bank - Trust and Investment Center (I'BR)
(seenobe 7).

On December 29, 2017, the SEC approved the application of the merger of MARC, Brightercen
Resources Holdings Ine, (BII) and Asia Pilot Mining Phils. Corp. (APMPC), with MARC as the
surviving entily, MARC issued 1,125,000,000 shares to BHI and APMPC resulling to a reduction of the
Company’s equily interest in MARC to 20%. Tn 2018, MARC issued 45,731,706 shares at P1.64 shares
or a total of P75 million to a major stockholder resulting to a reduction of (he Company’s equity inlerest
in MARC 10 19.90%;,

On Febroary 13, 2017, Mareventures Mining and Development Corporation (MW 1C), a subsidiary of
MARC, received an order dated February §, 2017 from the Department of Ervironment and Natural
Resources cancelling its Mineral Production Sharing Agreement (MPPSA), The management and its legal
counsel helieve that the order has no basis and the outcome of legal actions taken will not have a
material adverse effect on the MMTXC's operations,

MMIXCs management will take all the necessary legal actions and exhaust all remedies avallable 1o
prevent the implementation of the order, The management and its legal counsel believe that the order
his no basis and the outcome of legal actions taken will be in favor of the Compatiy. MMDC has
continucd its mining operations in the areas covercd by the MPSA,

On February 22, 2017, MMDC has filed a Notice of Appeal Lo Office of the President



~

e

Summary of Significant Accounting Paolicies

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRS). This financial reporling framework includes PFRS, Fhilippine Accounting Slandards
(PAS) and Philippine Interpretations  of  issuances by the Inlemational Financial Reporling
Interpretations Committee, issued by the Financial Reparting Standards Council and adopted by the
SEC, including SEC pronouncements,

Measurcement Bases
The financial ststements are presented in Philippine Peso, which is also the Company’s functional and
presentation currency, All values represent absolute amounts exeept otherwise stated,

The financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost basis, Historical cost is penerally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in cxchanpe for an asset and fair value of the
consideration received in exchange for incurring a liability,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the transaction date, The Company uses valuation techniques
that are appropriate in the eircumstances and for which sufficient data are available o measure i
value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unohservable inputs,

The Company uses market observable data to a possible extent when measuring the fair value of an assel
or a liability. Fair values arc cateporized into different levels in a fair value hicrarchy based on inputs
uscd in the valuation techniques as follows:

e Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities,

* Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inpuf that is stgmificant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indireetly observahle.

¢ Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that 13 significant to the fair value
measurenient is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the [inancial stalemenis on a recurring hasis, the
Company  detennines whether transfers have ocourred  between  levels in the  hicrarchy by
re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is sigmificant (o the fair value
measirement #s a whaole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined elasses of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or lighility and the level of the fair value

hierarchy as explained abave.

Purther information about the assumptions made in measuring fair value is included in Note 15,
Financial Risk Managemens Obfectives and Policies.

16



Adoption of New and Amended PFIS

The accounting policies adopled are consistent with thase ol the previous (inancial year, except for the
adoption of the following new and amended PFRS which the Company adopted effective for annual
periods beginning on or aller January 1, 201 8;

PERS 9. Financial Instrwments — This standard replaces PAS 3Y, Financia! Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement (and all the previous versions of PFRS 93, 1 provides requircments
for the classification and measurcment of financial assets and liabilities, impairment, hedpe
accounting, recognition, and derecognition.

PFRS 9 requires all recognized financial assets to be subscquently measured at amortized cost of fair
value (through profit or loss or through other comprehensive income). depending on their
classification by reference 1o the husiness model within which thesc are held and its contractual cash
Now characteristics.

For financial labilities, the most signiticant effect of PTRS 9 relates to cases where the fair value
option is taken: the amount of change in fair valuc of a financial lability desigmated as a1 (air value
through profit or loss that is attributable (o changes in the eredit risk of that liahility is recognized in
other comprehensive income (rather than in profit or loss), unless {his creates an aecounting
mismatch,

For the impairment of financial assets, PFRS 9 introduces an “expected eredil loss”™ (ECL) model
based on the concept of providing for expected losses al inception of a contracl; recognition of a
credit loss should no longer wait for there 1o be an objective cvidence of impairment,

For hedge accounting. PTRS 9 introduces a substantial overhaul allowing financial stalements 1o
better reflect how risk management activities are undertaken when hedging financial and non-
financial risk exposures.

The derecopnition provisions are carried over almost unchanged from PAS 39,

Based on the Company’s analysis of its business model and the contractual cash flow characteristios
of its financial assets and liabilities as at January 1. 2018, the Company has concluded that all of its
[inancial assels and liabilities shall continue 1o be measured on the same basis as under PAS 39 but
shall be classified under PFRS 9, The Company has adopted PFRS ¢ retrospectively,

Financial assels clussified as loans and receivables under PAS 39 are classified as lnancial asscly al
amortized cost under PFRS 9. These financial assels include cash in banks and due [rom related
parties. Accordingly, there were no changes in the carrying amount of the [inancial assets upon
adoption of PIRS 9,

The Company assessed that the adoption of PTRS 9, specilically on determining impairment loss
using general approach, has no impact on the carrying amounts of the Company’s Tinancial assets
carried at amortized cosl,

There is no material impact on the basic and diluted earmings per share as a result of the Company’s
adoption of PIRS &,

PERS 15, Revenue fiom Confract with Custoners The new standard replaced PAS 11,
Constriction Contracts, PAS |8, Revenue and related imterpretations. 1t eslahlishes a single
comprehensive framework for revenue recognition o apply consistently across transactions,
industries and capital markets, with a core principle (based on a five-step madel 10 be applied 1o all
contracts with customers), enhanced disclosures, and new or improved guidance (e.g. the point at
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which revenue is recognized, accounting for variable considerations, costs of fulfilling and obtanmng
a contracl, ele).

The Company’s revenue mainly arises from interest income from cash in banks and share in nel
income from an associate, Accordingly, the adoption of PFRS 15 has no sipnificant impact on the
[inancial statements of the Company.

= Amendments o PERS 15, Revenue from Contract with Customers - Clarification to PERS 15 — The
amendments provide clarifications on the following topics: (a) identifying performance obligations;
(b} principal versus agent considerations; and () licensing, The smendments also provide some
transition relief for medificd contracts and completed contracts,

¢ Amendments to PAS 28, Investiments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Measuring an Asyociate ar
Joint Venture at Fair Valwe - The amendments are part of the Annual Improvements to PFRS 2014-
2016 Cyele and clarify that ihe election to measure at fair value through profil or loss an investment
in an associate or g joint venture that is held by an entity that is a venture capital organization,
mutual fund, unit trust or other qualifying entity, is available for each investment in an associale or
joint venture on an investment-hy-investment basis, upon initial recogmition,

The adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS did not have any material effect on the financial
statements, Additional disclosures have been included in the notes to financial statements, as applicable,

New and Amended PEFRS Issued Buit Nol Yet Effective
Relevant new and amended PFRS which are not vet effective for the yvear ended December 31, 2015 and
have not been applied in preparing the financial stalements are summarized below.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or afler January 1, 2019;

e Amendments o PFRS B, Financial Instruments - Prepavment Features with Negative Compensation
— The amendments allow entities {0 measure particular prepayable financial assets with nepative
compensation al amortized cost or al fair value through other comprehensive income (instead of af
fair value through profit or loss) if a specificd condition is met. 1t also clarifics the requirements in
PERS 9. Fingncial fnstruments for adjusting the amortized cost of a financial ligbility when a
madification or exchange does not result in its derecogmition (as opposed to adjusting the effective
inlerest rate).

o Amendments to PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Lawg-ferm fnterexts in
Associates and Joint Ventres — The amendments clarify that long-term inlerests in an associate or
joint venture that, in substance, form part of the entity’s net investment but to which the equity
method is nol applied, are accounted for using PFRS 9. Financial Tnsiruments.

Under prevailing eircumstances, the adoption of the foregomg new and amended PFRS is nol expected
to have any material effecl on the financial statements of the Company.

Financial Asseis and Ligbilities

Date of Recognition. The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the statements
of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument. In
the case of a regular way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition and derccogmition, as
applicable, 1s done using settlement date accounting.

Initial Recognition and Measuremens. Financial instroments are recognized imtially at fair value, which
is the fair value of the consideration given (in case of an assel) or received (in case of a liability). The
initial measurement of financial instruments, except for those desygmated af fair value through pralil and
loss (FVPLY), includes transaction cost,



“Day 17 Difference. 'Where the transaction in a non-aetive market is different from the fair value of
otlier ohservable current market transactions in the same instrument or hased on a valuation techmique
whose variables include only data from observable market, the Company recogrizes the ditference
between the transaction price and fair value (a “Day 17 difference) in profit or loss. In cases where there
is o observable data on inceplion, the Company deems the transaction price as the hest estimate of fair
value and recognizes “Day 17 dilference in profit or loss when the inputs become observable or when
the instrument is derccognized. For each transaction, the Company determines the appropriate method
ol recognizing the “Day 17 difference,

Classification and Subseguent Measurement Policies.  The Company classifies iis [nancial assets at
initial recoguition under the following categories: (a) financial assets at FVEL. (b} financial assets at
amortized cost and (¢) [nancial assets at 'VOCL  Financial labilities, on the ather hand, are classificd
as either financial liabilities at TVPL or financial liabilitics at amortized cost. The classification of a
financial instrument largely depends on the Company’s business model and its contractual ecash Dow
characteristics.

As al September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2008, the Company does nol have financial assets and
liabilities at FVPL, and {inancial assets at TVOCL

Financial Assets af Amortized Cast, Tinancial assets shall be measured at amortized cost if both of the
following conditions are met:

* the financial assel is held within a business model whose abjeetive is to hold Gnancial assels in order
i collect contractual cash flows; and

¢ the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

After mmitial recognition, finameial assets at amorlized cost are subsequently measured al amortized cost
using the effeclive interest method, less allowance for ECL, if any. Amortized cost is caleulaled by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees thal are an intepral part of the
effective interest rate. Gains and losses are recognized in profil or loss when the (nancial assels are
derecognized and through amorlizalion process. Financial assets al amortized cosl are included under
current assets if realizability or collectahility is within 12 moenths afier the reporting peried. Otherwise,
these are classified as noncurrent asscls,

As al Seplember 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018, the Company’s cash in banks and due from related
parties are classificd under this category,

Financial Liabilities ar Amoriized Cose. Financial liabilities arc categorized as financial liabilities at
amortized cost when the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Company having an
obligation either to deliver cash or another [inancial assel 1o the holder, or to setile (he obligation other
than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial assel for a fixed number of Hs own
couily instruments,

These financial liabililies are initially recopnized at fuir value less any directly attributable transaction
costs. Aller initial recognition, these financial labilities are subsequently measured at amorlized cost
using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is caleulated by taking inle account any discounl or
premium on the issue and [ees that are an inlegral part of the effective interest rale. Gains and losses are
recognized in profil or loss when the liabilities are derecognized or through the amortization Process,

As at Seplember 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018, the Company’s acerued expenses, duc lo o related
party and note payable are clagsified under this category.



Reclassification

The Company reclassifies ils financial assels when, and only when, it changes its business model for
managing those financial assets. The reclassification is applied prospectively from the first day ol the
first reporting period following the change in the business model (reclassification dulce).

Tor a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets al amortized cost calegory to financial assets
at F¥PL, any gain or loss arising from the difference between the previous amortized cost of the
financial assct and fair value is recognized in profit or loss.

For a financial asset reclassificd out of the financial assets at amorlized cost category 1o financial assets
at P'VOCT, any gain or loss arising from the difference between the previous amortized cost of the
linancial asset and fair value 1s recogmized in OC],

In the case of a financial assel that does nol have a fixed maturily, the gain or loss shall be recognized in
profit or loss when the financial asset is sold or disposed. If the financial asset is subsequently impairad,
any previous grain or loss that has been recognized in OCH is reclassified rom equity to profit or loss,

Impuirment Policy en Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

The Company records an allowance for ECL. ECL is based on the difference between the contractual
cash ows due in accordance with the contrac! and all the cash flows that the Company expects (o
receive. The difference is then discounted at an approximation to the assct’s original effective interest
rale.

For [inaneial instruments assets at amortized cost, the ECL is based on the 12-month ECL., which
pertaing to the portion of lifetime ECL that result from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months afler the reporting date. However, when there has been a significanl increase
in credil rsk since initial recogmition, the allowance will be based on the Liletime ECT. When
determining whether the credit risk of a financial asscl has increased significantly since initial
recogmilion, the Company compares the risk ol a default occurring on the financial instrument as al the
reporting date with the risk of a defaull oceurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recomition and consider reasonable and supporlable information, that is available without undue cost or
effort, that is indicalive of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

Derccognition of Financial Assets and Liabilitics

Finaneial Assets. A financial asset (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar [inancial assets) is dercecogmized when:

e the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired;

* (he Company retains the righl 1o receive cash fows from the financial asset, bt has assumed an
abligation o pay them in full without material delay to a third party under & “pass-through”
arranpement; or

» the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the financial assct and either {a) has
Iransterred substantially  all  the  risks  and  rewards  of  the assel,  or
(k) has neither trimsferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the gusel, but has
trunsferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from a financial assel or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of awnership of the financial asset nor trunsferred control of the financial assel, the finaneial
assel s recogmized to the extem of the Company's continuing invelvement in the financial asset.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred financial assel is
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measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the fnancial assel and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be reguired to repay,

Financial Liabilities. A financial liabilily is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged, cancelled or has expired, When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substiandially
moditied, such an exchange or modification 1s treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new liabilily, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recogmized
in the statements of comprehensive income.

A modification is considered substantial if the present value of the cash flows under the new terms,
ncluding net fees paid or received and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is diffcrent
by at Ieast 10%% from the discounted present value of remaining cash flows of the original liability,

The fair value of the modified financial Hability is determined based on its expected cash flows,
discounted using the interest rate al which the Company could raise debt with similar terms and
conditions in the markel. The difference between the carrving value of the origingl liability and fair
value ol the new liability is recognized in the statements of comprehensive income.

On the other hand, if the difference does not meet the 10% threshold, the original debt is not
extinguished but merely modified. In such case, the carrving amount is adjusted by the costs or fees
paid or received in Lhe restructuring.

Ollsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets and finaneial liabilities are offset and the nel amount reporled in the statements of
financial position if, and enly if, there is a curently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is infention to settle on a net basis, or 1o realize the assel and settle the liability
simultancously, This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related assets and
liabilities are presented gross in the statements of financial position.

Classification of Financial Instrument belween Liability and Lquity
A financial instrument is classified as lability iFit provides for a contraciual abligation to;

¢ Deliver cash or another financial assct to another entity;

* Exchange financial assets or financial liabilitics with another entity under conditions thal are
potentially unlavorable to the Company; or

* Satisly the obligation other than by the exchange ol a fixed amount of cash or another financial asscl
for a fixed number of own equity shares.

If the Company does not have an unconditional right 1o avaid delivering cash or another financial asset
Lo sellle ils contractual oblipation, the obligation meets the definition of a financial liahilify,

Other Current Assets
Other eurrent assets include nput value-added tax (VAT) current porlion of deforred input VAT,
creditable withholding tax (CWT) and prepayments,

VAT, Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VA, excepl [or receivahles
and payables that are stated with the amount of VAL included, The net amount of inpul YAT
recoverable from the tax authorily is included as part of “Other current asscls” account in the statements
of financial position,

Deferred input VAL In accordance with the Revenue Regulations (RR) Na, 16-2005, inpul ¥AT on
purchases or imports of the Company of eapilal goods (depreciable assets for income tax purposes) with
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an aggregate acquisition cost (exclusive of VAT) in each of the calendar month exceeding
P10 million are claimed as credit against outpul VAL over 60 months or the estimated useful lives of
capilal goods, whichever is shorler,

Deferred input VAT represents the unamentized amount of input VAT an capital goods. Deferred inpui
VAT that are expected to be claimed agains! output VAT for no more than 12 months after the reporting
date are classiticd as current assets. Otherwise these are classificd as noncurren! assets.

CWT CWT arc amounts withheld from income subject to expanded withholding taxes. CWT can be
utilized as payment for incomc taxes provided that these are properly supporied by certificates of
creditable tax withheld at source subject to the rules on Philippine income taxation.

Prepayments. Prepayments represent expenses paid in advance and recorded as assets belore these are
utilized. Prepayments are apportioned over the period coverced by the payment and charged 1o profit or
loss when incurred. Prepayments that are expected to be realized {or no maore than twelve months afier
the reporling date are classified as other current assets. Otherwisc. these are classificd as other
noncuarrent assets,

Investment in an Associate
Investment in an associate 1s recogmized initially at cost and subsequently accounted for using the equity
methaod,

An associale is an entity in which the Company has signilicant influence but not control. over the
financial and operating policies of such entity. The Company's share of its associate’s [ost-Acguisition
profits or losses is recognized in profit or loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recogmized in equity. The cunwlative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying
value of the investiment.

When the Company’s share of losses in an associale equals or cxceeds its interest in the associate.
including any other unsceured receivables, the Company does not recogmize further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behall of the associate. Unrealized gains on lransactions
between the Company and ils associate are elininated to the extent of the Company’s inlerest in the
associate.  Unrealized losses are also climinated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the assel translerred.

The Company determines al the end of each reporting vear whether there is any cvidence that the
investient is impaired. 1f this is the case. the amount of impairment is calculated as the difference
between the carrying value of the investment and recoverable amaunt,

Property nnd Equipmeni

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value.
The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, including impart duties, non-
refundahle purchase taxes after deducling trade discounts and rebates and any directly atiributable costs
ol bringing the assel 1o ils working condition and location for its inlended use.  The east of seli-
constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor, nay other costs dircetly attributable 1o
bringing the assets 10 a working condition [or their intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing
the items and restoring the site on which thev are located. '

Expendilures incwrred afier (he property and cquipment have been pul into operation, such as repairs,
maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally charged to operations in the vear lhe costs are incurred. Tn
siluations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in the
future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property and equipinent
beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as additional
costs of property and equipment, The cost of replacing & component of an item of properly and
equipment is reeognized if it is probable that (he future economic benclits embodicd within (he
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compenent will flow to the Company. and ils cost can be measured reliably, The carrving value ol the
replaced component is derecognized.

When parls of an item of property and cquipment have differcnt useful Tives, they are accounted for as
separate iems (major components) of property and equipment.

[epreciation is calculated on a straighi-line basis over the following estimated useful lives of the
property and equipment:

Mumber of Years

Condominium unit 3]
OMfice fumiture and fixtures 3.5
service vehicle 3

The estimated uscful lives and method for depreciation are reviewed perindically to cnsure that the
petiods and method of depreciation are consistent with the cxpected pattern of economic benefits from
items of property and equipment.

When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated depreciation and
any impairment in value arc removed from the accounts. Any resulling gain or loss is credited to or
charged againsl current operations,

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

Nonfinancial assels arc reviewed for impairment whenever events ur changes in circumstances indicale
that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable, I any such indication exists and where the
carrying value of an assel exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset or cash-generating unit is wrillen
down ta its recoverable amount. The estimated recoverable amount is the higher of an assel’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimaled future cash Mows are
discounted 1o their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current marke! assessments af
lime value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not pencrale largaly
independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unil to which
the asset bolongs. Impairment losses are recognized in the statements of comprehensive income.,

An assessment 15 made al cach reporting date as (o whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or miy have decreased. If such indication exists, th
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed onl y il lhere has
been a change in the eslimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amoumt since the last
impairment loss was recognized, If that i the case, the carrying value of the asset is inereased 1o iis
recoverable amount. That increased ameunt cannol exceed the carrying value that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment Joss been recognized for the asset in prior years.
After such a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in fiture periods to allocate the asset’s revised
carrying value, less any residual value, on g systematic hasis over remaining useful life,

Equity

Capital stock. Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued, Incremental costs direet] W
attributable Lo the issnance of new shares are treated as deduction from equity, nel of tax.

Retained earnings. Retained carnings represent the cumulative balance of nel income o loss net of any
dividend declaration,

Other Comprehensive fncome (OC]). OCI comprises of items of income and eapense thal arc not
recogmized in profit or loss for the vear in accordance with PFRS. OCT of the Company pertains to share
in OCT of an associate.



Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contract with customers is recognized when the performance obligation in the contract
has been satisfied, either at a point in lime or over time, Revenue is recopnized over time if one of the
following eriteria is met: (a) the customer simultancously receives and consumes the benelits as the
Company perform its obligations; (b) the Company’s perlormance creates or enhances an asset thal the
customer controls as the assel is created or enhanced; or (c) the Company’s purformance docs not create
an assel with an alternative use to the Company and the Company has mn enforeeahle right to payvment
for performance completed to date. Otherwize, revenue is recognized at a point in time.

The Company also assesses ils revenue arrangements to determine if it i deting as a principal or as an
apent, The Company has assessed that it acts as a principal in all of ils revenue sources,

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

fnterest Income.  Interest income is recognized in profit or loss as it accrues, taking info account he
cllective yield on the asset.

Expenses Recovnition
Expenscs are recognized in profit or loss when there is a decrease in future economic benefit telated to a
decrease in an assel or an incresse in a liability that can be measured rel iabily,

General and  administrative expenses. General and  administrative expenses  constitule cosl of
administering the business. These are expensed as incurred.

Income Taxes

Current Tux, Current fax assels and liabilitics are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
Irom or paid to the laxation authorities. The tax rale used to compute the amount is the one that hus
been enacted or substantively enacted al the reporting date.

Deferred Tax. Deferred tax is provided on all temporary differences at the reporling date between the
tax bases of assels and liabilities and their carrying smounts for financial repaorting purposes.

Dieferred tax liabilities are recogmized for all taxable temporary dillerences. Theferred tax assets are
recognized lor all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward benefils of any unused tax credits
from the excess of minimum corporate income tax (MCT1) over the regular corporate income lax
(RCIT) and any unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), 1o the extent that il i probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible lemporary ditferences and carmy-forward
benelils of unused MCT1 and unused NOLCO can be utilized, Deterred lax, however, is not recognized
when it arises [rom the inflial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaclion that is not a husiness
combination and, at the time of the transaction, aflects neiiher the accounting profil nor taxable profit or
lovss,

The carrying value of deferved tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all ar parl of the
deferred tax asset 10 be utilized, Unrecognized deferred tax assets arc reassessed at each reporting dale
and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the
delerred tax asset (o be recoveread,

Doferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate thal are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realized or the lability is scliled. based on tax rate thal has heen enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deterred tax is recognized in profit or loss excepl 1o the extent that il relates (o  business combination,
or ilems directly recognized in equity as other comprehensive income.



Deferred tax assets and habilities are ofTsel, if a legally enforceable rpght exists to offset curreént tox
assels against current tax liabilitics and the deferred 1axes relate to the same taxable entity and {he same
taxation aulhority.

Basic and Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income (loss) Tor the vear atiributable to
common shareholders by the weighted average number of commaon shares outstanding during the year,
with retroactive adjustments for any stock dividends declared and stock split and excluding common
shared purchased by the Company and held as treasury shares.

Diluted earnings (loss) per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average umber of common
shares oulstanding to assume conversion of all potential dilutive common shares,

Where the earnings (loss) per share effect of patential dilutive common shares would be anti-dilutive,
basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share are stated at the same amount.

Operating Serment

An operaling segment is 4 component of the Company thal engages in business activities from which i1
may earm revenues and inecur expenses, including revenues and expenses thal relate to the transactions
with any of the Company’s other components.

The Company has no eperating segment other than being a holding COTPHIY,

Related Party Relationship and Transactions

Related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to contral, directly, or indirectly through
ane or more intermediarics, or exercise significant inflluence over the other party in making [(nancial and
operating decisions.  Such relationships also exist between andéor damong entities which are under
conunton control with the reporting entity. or between, andfor among the reporting entity and its key
management persannel, directors or ils stockholders.  In considering each possible related parly
relationship, altention is directed to the substance of the relationship. and not merely 1o the legal form.

Related party transactions are transfer of resources, services or obligations hetween the Company and its
related parties. regardless whether a price is charged,

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or consiructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an oot low of resources embadying ceconomic benetits will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimale can be made of the amount of the obligation,

Confingencics

Contingent liabilities are nol recognized in the financial statements, They are disclosed i the noles 1o
financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources cmbodying ceconomic benefits is
remote. Contingent asscls are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed whin an
mflow of economic benefits is probable.

Events after the Repaorting Period

Post year-end evenls that provide additional information aboul the C ‘ompany’s financial position at the
end of reporting period (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements, Posi vear-end evenis
that are non-adjusting arc disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material,
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. Significant Judgments, Accounting Estimates and Assu mptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements in compliance with PFRS requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported i the financial
statements. The judgment, estimates and assumptions vsed in the financial statements are hased upon
management’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as at the reporting date.  While the
Company believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences in the
aclual experience or significant changes in the assumptions may materially affeet the estimated amounts.
Actual results could differ from such estimates,

The following arc the significant judgments, accounting estimates and assinplions made by the
Company:

Classifying Investment Property and Owner-occupicd Property, The Company considers a property as
an investmeni property when the properly generates cash flows which are largely independent of other
assels held by the Company and a properly as owner-occupied property when cash {lows generated by il
pertains not only to the properly but also to other assets used for operations or administrative purposes.

A property may comprise of portions held for capital appreciation and portions wsed in operation or
administrative purpose. If these portions cannot be sold separatcly, the properly is accounted for as an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in operation or for adminisirative
pLIPOSC,

The Company classified its condominium unit under property and equipment,

Dietermining Significant Influence over MARC. When an entity holds 20% or more of the voting power
{directly or through subsidiaries) on an investee, it will be presumed that the investor has stgmificant
influenee unless it can be clearly demonstiraled that this is not the case, If the haolding is less than 202,
the entity will be presumed not to have significant influence unless such influence can be clearly
demonstrated. A substantial or majority ownership by snother investor does not necessarily preclude an
entity from having sigmificant influcnce.

The existence of significant inflluence by an entity is usually evidenced in one or more of the following
Ways:

representation on the board of divectors or equivalent governing body of the mvestee;

= participation in the policy-making process, including participation in decisions about dividends or
other distributions;

= material fransactions between the entity and the investee: interchange of managerial persomel: or

e provision of essential technical information

The Company has determined that ihe decrease in ownership interest in MARC in 2018 resulting to a
less than 20% ownership interest would not affect its significant infuence by virtue of the existence of
the above indicators in the Company™s dealings with MARC,

Assessing Madification on the Terms of the Note Pavable, The C “ommpany comsiders its note payable 1o
be substantially modificd if the present value of the cash flows under the new lerms, ineluding net lees
paid or received and discounted using the original effective interes| rate, is dilTerent by at least 10%
from the discounted present value of remaining cash flows of the ori pinal Hability, Such modification
will result to derceognition of original liability and the recognition of a new lability,

On the other hand, if the difference docs not meet the 10%, threshold, the original debt is not
extinguished but merely modified, In such case, the carrying value is adjusted by the costs or fees paiid
or received in the restructuring.



The Company assessed that there 1s no substimtial modification on the lerms of the note pavahble,

Determining Operating Segnents, 'The Company determines and presents operating sepments hased on
the information that is internally provided to the BOD. As at June 30, 2019 and December 31 L2018, the
Company has determined that it has no operating segment other than being a holding company,

Assessment of Impaivment of Financial Assets at Amortized Cost. The Company determines the
allowance for ECIL based on the probability-weighted cstimate of the present value of all cash shorifalls
over the expected life of financial assels at amorlized cost. FCL are provided for credit losses that result
from possible defaull events within the next 12-months unless there has been « sigmificant inercuse in
credit risk since initial recognition in which ease ECL are provided based on lifetime FCI.

When determining if there has heen a sipnificant increase in eredit risk, the Company considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available withoul undue eost or effort and that is relevani
for the particular financial instrument being assessed such as, but not Hmited to. the [oltowing factors:

¢ actual or expected external and internal eredit rating downgrade:
¢ existing or forecasted adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions; and
* actual or expected significant adverse changes in the operating results of the hormower.

The Company’s financial asscts at amorlized cost are considered to have low credit risk, and therefore
the Inss allowance is determined as 12 months BCL. The Company has assessed that the ECL for other
financial assets at amortized cost is not material becansc the transactions with respect to these Nnancial
assels were entered into by the Company only with reputahle banks and counterparties with good credit
standing and relatively low risk of defaults. Accordingly, no impairment loss was recognized in 2019
and 2018,

The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial assets al amortized cost are as follows-

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2015

Nate {Uiaudited) {Audited)
Cash in banks 4 P408,553 B253,845
Due from related parties 12 14,455,581 16,455, 58]

Assessment of Impairment of fnvestment in an Associaie. The Company assesses the impairment of
investment in an associate whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
aount of investmenl in an associale may nol be recoverahle, Factars (hat the Company considered in
deciding when to perform impainment review include he following, among others:

¢ significant decline in business and operating performance in relation to expectalions: and
¢ sipnificanl changes in the business operations and strategies of the Company and ils associate,

Based on management assessment, there are no indicators for impairment that will warrant impairment
assesstient,  The management and its legal counsel believe that the order for the cancellation of
MMDC"s  MPSA  will not  have a material  adverse effect on M MDC's  operations
{see Nofe 1). Accordingly, no impairment loss was recopnized in 2019 and 2018, The CATTYING amonnt
of investment in associates amounted to B2,537.9 million and $2,563.4 million as at Seplember 30, 2019
and December 31, 2018, respectively (see Note 7).

Assessing Tmpaivment of Other Nonfinancial Asseis.  The Company assesscs impairment on olher
nonfinancial assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate thal {he carrying vilue of
these assets may nol be recoverable. The [actors that the Company considers important which could
trigger an impairment review inchude the following:

¢ significan! underperformance relative 1o expected historical or projected luture opersting results:;
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e sigmificant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assels or the strategy Tor overall business:
and
o sipnificanl negative industry or econonic trends.

The Company recognizes an impairment loss whetiever the carrying value of an assel exceeds il
recoverable amount. ‘The recoverable amount is computed using the valuc-in-use approach. Recoverable
amounts are estimated lor individual assets or, il 11 1z not possible, for the cash-gencrating unil to which
the assel belongs.  Determining such amount requires the estimation of cash {lows expected to be
generated from (he continued use and ultimate disposition of such assets.

No impairment loss was recognized in 2019 and 2015

The carrying amount of the Company”s other nonfinancial asscls are as follows:
¥ P

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2015

Note (Unaudited) (Audited)
Ohher current assets 5 PO.4U8.550 Po.310,757
Property and cyuipment i} 41,684,903 43138202

Lstimating the Usefil Lives of Property and Equipment. The Company estimates the usefu) lives of
property and equipment based on the period over which the asscts are expected to be available for use,
The Company annually reviews the estimated uselul lives of property and equipment based on faclors
that include assel utilization, internal lechnical evaluation, technological cha lges, cnvironmeral
changes and anticipated vse of the assets.

There is no change in the estimated useful life of the Company’s property and equipment in 2019 and
20K, Carrying  wvalue of property and  equipment amounted to P41 7million  and
43,1 million as at September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018, respectively (see Note 6).

Assessing Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets. The Company reviews ils deferred 1ax assets at each
reporting dale and reduces the carrying value to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or parl of the deferred tax assets 1o be utilized.

Delerred tax assets were nol recognized on NOLCO and excess of MCTL over RCTT as at Decenher 31,
2018 and 2017 because the management believes that there will be no sufficient taxable profits against
which deferred tax assels can be utilized.

The Company’s unrecogmized deferred lax assets amounted to BS.6 million and P7.8 million as al
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively,

Cash

This account consists of

September 30, 20019 December 31, 2018

{(Unaudited) i Audited)

Cash on hand 5,000} 5,000
Cash in banks B 408,553 253 Kd35
P413.553 - P258.845

Cash in banks earn interest at prevailing bank deposit rates. Interes! income earned amounicd 1o
P442 and PETT in 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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5. Other Current Assets
This aceount consists oft
September 30, 20019 December 31, 2018
{Lnaudited) {(Audited)
Input VAT P8, 776,044 PE.141 414
CWT 600,685 A, 68s
Current portion ol deferred input VAT - 474,990
Prepayments 101,685 74,523
Others - N33 19,136
. 19,498,550 P2.310,757
6. Property nnd Equipment
Balances and movements in this account are as follows:
September 30, 2019 (Unaudited)
Condomininm Office Furniture
MNole Umit and Iixtures Tatal
Cost
Balance al beginning of period 47,788,564 1,745,910 P49,584, 488
Additions - - -
Balance at end of period _ 47, 78E, 560 1,795,419 49,584,458
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance al hepinning of periad 5,772,153 674,133 6,446,286
Diepreciation ) I ) 1,184,350 268,943 1.453,.29%
Balanee at end of period 6,956,509 43,076 THU9,585
Carrying Amount 40832060 '852,843 41,684,903
December 31, 2018 [ Audited)
Condomininm  Cfce Furmilure
Mot LInir and Fixtures  Service Vehiele Tatal
Closi
Balance at beginning of year £47 TRE. 560 £1.735,61Y Pl.568.650 £51.0092 838
Additions - (0,300 60,300
[Hsposals - - {1,568.650) {1568,650}
Balance af end of year 47 THE, 504 1,795,919 A0 SH ARE
Accumulated Depreciation
Bulance at beginning of vear 4193012 324,999 1,481,503 5,999,514
Diepreciation 11 1,579,141 340,134 87,147 2015422
Dispasals - (1.568 650 (1,568.650)
Balance at end of vear 3772153 074,133 = B84 6,286
Carrying Amount P42.016,416 P1.121,78A B P43,138,201

On April 20, 2018, a fully-depreciated service vehicle was sold: subsequently, no gain or loss on the

disposal of the assct was recognized.
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7. Investmeni in an Associate

Movements in this account are as follows:

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018

e (Unaudited) (Audited)
Acquisition cost ) P1,604,000,000  $2.604.000.000
Accumulated share in equity:
Balanee at beginning of period (41,555,594) 36,244.182
Share in:
Met loss (25,517.253) (779,372,617
Other comprehensive income - 572,841
Balance at end of perind (660,072.847) (40,555 594)
Carrying amount PL537927153 P2.563,444 406

The Company has 600,000,000 shares of MARC representing  19.90%  equity  interesl as  at
September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018 (see Note 1). MARC's principal place of business is at
LUnit E, One Luna Place, L. Luna St., Butuan Cily, Apusan del Norte,

Summarized nancial information of MARC follows:

September 30 2019 December 31, 2018

(Unaudited) { Audited)
Total current assets PLOSD130,416 B551,145, 703
Tolal noncurrent asscts 5,261,282.220 S2TR,23T 21
Total currenl Hahilities 1,743,568.583 1,140,620,272
Taotal noncurrent liabilities B10.939.02% 795,616,529
Revenue T3T,148,665 URT.255.064
Net loss 128.227.402 38 BO7.119
Other comprehensive income - 2,778,594

8. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities
‘This account consists ol

September 30, 2019 Doecember 31, 2018

i {(Unaudited) {Audited)
Accrued expenscs P207,681 P455.220
Statutory pavahles 3288 2,680

- £210,969 457,506

Accrued expenses pertain to accrual of outside services, professional fees, and eleciricity, among athers,
which are expected to be settled in the next reporting period,

Statutory pavables pertain o withholding taxes that are to be remified fo the government within the nex)
reporting period.
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Nuote 'ayable
Movements in this accounl are as follows:

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018

(Unaudited) (Audited)
Balance at beginning of period ¥1.671,501,723 PLT10000,000
Assirmment of receivables (see Note 12) - (38, 498.277)
Balance al end of period _ P1,671,501,723 PL6TL 501,723
The noninteresi-bearing note was assigned by PBE to Trans Middle East Philippines Equities, Ine.
(TMIIL).  This lability represents the unpaid portion of the purchase price of the investment in an
associate. The note's original maturity date was December 31, 2015 but was extended. Latest extension
is until December 31, 2019,
10. Equity )

U March 21, 1995, the SEC approved the listing of the Company’s 118,000,000 million shares at an
offer price of P1.0 per share.  As at September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018, 1,528 474,000 shares

are listed in the PSE.

The following summarizes the information on the Company’s issued and subscribed sharcs as at

Seplember 30, 2019

Mumber of shares
155ued and

Percentage of

) subscribed shares
Mon-public shareholdings:
a. Relaled parties 1, 170,159,989 Th.A6%,
b, Affihates, directors and ofTicers 94,929 (010 6.21%
Public shareholdings 203,385,011 17.23%
Total ) ) 1,5285.474,000 LO0.00%,

The total number of sharcholders of the Company is 630 and 631 as af Seplomber 30, 2019 and

December 31, 2018, respectively.

The principal market for the Company’s capital stock is the PSE, The high and low trading prices of the

Company’s shares are as lollows:

Chaarter High Low
January te September 2019

irst ¥1.08 P1.31
Second 1.38 1.14
Third 1.43 1.11
January to December 2018

First PI.OX Pl
Sceond .53 1.27
Third 23 146
Fourth |56 .28




11. Gzeneral and Administrative Expenses

Thiz account consists of*

September 30, 2019

September 30, 2018

Mole {(Unaudited) {Unaudited)

Depreciation 6 PL453,299 1,531,846
Membership dues and other fees 1,051,736 1,051,736
Professional fees 482 800 540,829
Outside services 315,721 4E0. 758
Communication, light and water 198,933 193,788
Dhireclor’s fees 20,000 10,000
Taxes and licenses A0.426 73,507
Othery 168,419 242,024
P3,730,334 4,124 484

The Company has the following transactions with its Paren Company and other related parties;

. Related Party Transactions

Anioont of Trasactions

Dutstanding Talimoes

Matyr ol Seplember 3, 2008 Decemhes 50,2015
Itansaciun: 2009 (Lnawdited) 201 [ Avdied) (L nuadited) CAndiled
Dhae from Related] Partics
Parent Company
IER Y| Advances for
wirking capiial r P 16, 0000 000,020
Linigfor comonm canrol,
ML Mdvances [or
working capilal (2,000 fanry 3,455 54 bS5 501 F55 541
14455501 Plidas,58 I‘_
Dhae fo 2 Belated Party
Affilime -
Prine: Medin Holdings, Inc. Advanees T
working capilal FHii 03 | #1000, 000 F1.860,031 RGO

Due lrom related parties are nonintercsl-bearing, eollectible on denran
cash, Due o a related party is nominterest-hearing, unsecured, payable on demand and to be settled 1n

cash,

The Company assigned the receivahle from the Parent Com
payihle amounting 10 £38.5 million and $50.0 million in

Compensation of Koy Management Personnel

Compensation of key management persennel on short e
2005 million, R0L1 million in 2019, 2018

and 2017, respectively.

d, not impaired and to be settled in

pany to TMEE 1o offset with the nole
2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 9,

- emplovee benelits amounted 1o nil,
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Basic and Diluted Loss Per Share

Basic and diluted loss per share is computed as follow:

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018

) (Unaudited) ) {Audited)

Net loss (P29.247,145) (PE4,636.099)
Weighted average number of common shares

outstanding 1,528,474,000 1,528,474,000

Loss per Rhé}l’_ﬂ - basic and diluled (#0.02) (PO.055)

There has been no transaction involving common shares or potential common shares that oceurred
subsequent to the reporling dates.

. Contingencics

Lepal Claims and Assignment of Litigation Cases

The Company is & co-defendanl in a collection case for USS1.5 million filed in the Los Angeles
Superior Court by a foreign merchant and its Philippine alliliate in 2012, The plamtiffs have alleged
that they werc not paid the charge cards availments that the Company processed under a Tripartite
Merchants Agreements (TMA). Based on Company’s records, however, payments due to the foreign
merchant were wired to the latier’s designated agent. The Company did not breach any regulatory or
trade standurds in complving with the TMA. The Company’s management and i1s counsel helieve that
the case will nol give rise to or result in any lability or damage on the parl of the Corporation since
(a) RCBC posted a bond in the amount of US$3.1 million. by way of sccurity to stay the enforcement of
the Amended Judgment rendered by Judge Rafael, In case of Judgment against the Company, this bond
may cover the liabilily o the extent of US$3.1 million; and ( b} the Share Purchase Agrcement dated 18
October 2013 between Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation, RCBC Capital Corporation {collectively
referred herein as the “Sellers™ and PBB Business Bank Inc.- Trust and Investmcnl Center (ihe
“Buyer”) contains an indemnity clause from the Sellers in case (he Corporation or the Buyer Group i=
adjudeed liable.

- Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company has risk management policies that systematically view the risks that could prevent the
Company from achicving its ohjectives. These policies are intended 1o manage risks identitied in such a
way thal opportunities to deliver the Company's objectives arc achieved.  The Company's risk
management takes place in the context of day-to-day operations and normal husiness processes such as
strategic plaming and business planning, Management has identified cach risk and is responsible for
coordinating and continuously improving risk strategies, processes and measures in accordance with the
Company’s established business objectives,

Einancial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The Company’s principal financial instruments consisl of cash in banks, due lrom related parties.
accrued expenses, due to a related party and note payable. The primary purpose of these financial
instruments is o finance the Company's opetations.  The main risks arising from the use of these
financial instruments are credit risk and liquidity risk. Management reviews and approves the policies
for managing cach of thesc risks which are sunimarized below.
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Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding Nnancial instruments should a counterparty
defaults on its obligation. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises primarily from cash in banks
and due from related partics,

The Company’s maximum exposurc to credil risk on the financial assels as a1 amorlized cosl is the
carrying amount of those asscls as at the reporting date,

Financial Assety ai Amartized Cost

The Company limits ils credit risk from balances with banks hy depositing its cash with highly reputable
and pre-approved finaneial institutions, For due from related parties, credil sk is low since the
Company only transacts with related partics with slrong eapacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term

As discussed in Note 3 to the financial statements, the Company considers credit tisk in measuring ECT,
of financial assets at amorlized cost. Since the financial assets al amortized cost of the Company are

considered to have low credil risk, impairment loss is limited 1o 12-month ECL,

The table below presents an analysis of the eredit quality of the Company’s financial assels al amortized
CORL.

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018

) {(Unaudited) (Audited)

Cash in banks 408,553 P253.845
Dhue [rom related parties 14,455,581 16,455,581
P14,864,134 PL6,709,426

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will nod be able 1o settle o meel its financial obligations
when they fall due. The Company aims Lo mainiain flexiblity by maintaining sufficient cash to meet all
foreseeable cash needs.

The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities a1 amortized cost
as al September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018 based an contraciual undiscounted cash lows,

September 30, 2019 (Unaudited)

Less than Oue  One Maonth 1o Mare than
Month One Year One Year Total
Accrued cxpenses 07,681 ¥ B P207,081
Due to a related party = 1,866,031 - 1,866,031
Nole payable —  1,671,501,723 —  1,671,501,723
P207.681  PL673367.754 P- PI6T3STS435
: December 31, 2018 {Audited)
Less than Cne e Month 1o More than
M onth One Year Une Year Tatal
Acerucd expenses P455.220 P L B453220
e to a related party 1000 - 1000, 000
Mot payahls _ 1.671,501,723 - .671.501,723
P455.220  P1,472,501,723 P- 1672956043
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Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilitics
Set out below 1s a comparison by category of carrying values and {air values of the Company’s inancial
instruments that arc carried in the financial statemenis:

September 30, 2009 {Unaudited) Dhecember 31, 2018 { Audired)

Carrying Value Fair ¥alue  Carrving Value Fair Value
Financial Asscls at
Amaortized Cost
Cash 413,553 P413,553 £158 R45 P25K.B45
Due from related parties 14,455,581 14,455,581 16,455 581 16,455,581

F14.86%,134 P14.569,134 Pl6,714.426 B16,714.424

Financial Liabilities at
Amaortized Cosi

Accrued cxpenses P207,081 P207.681 455,230 £455,220
Due to a related party 1,866,031 1866031 1000000 1.0000,000
Note payable LG71,501,723  1,671,801,723  1671,501.723  1,671,501,723

P1,673.575,435 P1,673,575435 1672956943 P1,672.956.043

Financial Assets and Financial Liabifities. The carrying amounts of cash, due from related partics,
accrued expenses, due to a related party and nole payvable approximale their fair values duc to the shori-
term nature of the transactions. The fair value measurement of current financial assels and liahilities is
classified as Level 3 (sigmificant unobservable inputs).

, Capital Management Objectives, Policies and Procedures

The Company’s capital management objectives are 1o cnsure (he Company’s abilily Lo continue as a
going concermn and to provide an adequate return to sharcholders. The Company manages its capilal
structure and makes adjustments 1o it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust

the capital structure. the Company may returm capital lo shareholders or ivsue new shares.

The Company considers its total equity amounting 1o 9304 million and #9596 million ay =t
September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018, respecti vely, as ils capital,

There has been no chanpe in the objectives, policies and processes in 2019 and 2018,
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Bright ¥inda Fesourzes
& Iwpstments, Inc,

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Management of Bright Kindle Resources & Investments, Ine, is responsible for
the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements including the schedules
attached therein for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, in nccordance with
the prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsgible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters
related to going concern and using the going concemn basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or 1o cease operations, or has np
realistic altemative but to do so.

The Board of Dircctors is responsible in overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process,

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial siatements including the
schedules attached therzin, and submits the same to the stockholders or members,

Reyes Tacandong & Co, the independent auditor appointed by the stockholders for the
years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, has audited the financial statements of the
company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its repott to the
stockholders or members, has expressed its opinion on the fairmess of presentation upon
completion of such audit,

(eﬁi C. ZALAMEA
2 azan of the Boa

ISIDRO C. ALCANTARA, JR.

Presidej@/‘%

ROLANDO S. SANTOS

Treasurer AP R 1 2 2[”9

Signed this day of _
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INDEFENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directars
Bright Kindle Resources & Investrments, Inc.
16th Floor Citlbank Tower

2741 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City

Cpinfon

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Bright Kindle Resources & Investments, Inc.
{the Company), & subsidiary of RYM Business Managemen: Corp., which comprise the statements of financial
position as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of
changes In equity and statements of cash fiows for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, and
notes to financial statements, Including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinior, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, and its financial performance end its cash flows for the years
ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 in accardance with Philippine Financlal Reporting $tandards
{PFRS),

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Audting (PSA). Our responsibillties
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company In accordance with the Code of Fthics
for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical recuirements that
are relevant to the audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics, We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 1 to the financial statements which discusses that Marcventures Mining and
Development Corporation (MMDC), a subsidiary of the Company’s associate, Marcventures Holdings, Inc,
received an order from the Department of Environment and Natural Resources on February 13, 2017 but
dated February 8, 2017 cancelling its Mineral Production Sharing Agreement No, D16-33-X {MPSA),
The management of the Company believes that the order has ne basis and the outcome of legal actions taken
will not have a materizl adverse effect on MMDC's operations, as described In Note 1 10 the financial
statements. MMOC has continued its mining operations in the areas covered by the MPSA,
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REves Tacanpoxc & Co.

FIRNEPRINCIPT s WIS S0 100N,

Key Audlt Matters

Key sudit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most sign ficance in our audit
of the financial statement: of the current period. These matters were addressed in the contest of our audit
of the financial statements as a wholg, and in farming our opinian thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinlon on these matters.

Determination of Indicator of Impairment of Investment in an Assoclate

Tne investment In an associate is accounted for using the equity method In accordance with PAS 28,
Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures. The Company is required to assess at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the investmert |s [mpaired. This matter |s significant to our
audit because the investment in associate represents 97% of the Company's total assets.

We performed the necessary procedures by verifying the historical accuracy of menagement’s ast/mates
along with the [atest estimate of recoverable reserves and evaluated whether @ reasonably change in
assumptions could cause the carrying amount to exceed the estimated recoverable amounts.

Further disclosures are included In Note 3, Significant Judgments, Accounting Estimates and Assumptions and
Note 7, fnvestment in an Associate,

Other information

Management s responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the infarmation
included in the SEC Form 20-I8 (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A {&nrual Report) and
Arnual Report distributec to stockholders for the year ended December 31, 2018, but does net Include the
financial statements and our Auditors’ report theresn, The SEC Form 20-15 . SEC Form 17-A and Annual
Report distributed to stockholders for the year ended December 31, 2018 are expected to be made available
to us after the date of this Auditors’ report.

Our opinjon on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audits of the financial statements, our responsiaility 1s to read the sther information
identified above when it becomes available and, In doing so, consider whether the ather information i
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the sudits or otherwise
appears to be materlally misstated,

Responsitilities af Management ond Those Charged with Governance for the financial Statements

Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financisl statements in
accordanze with PFRS, and for such Internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material mlsstﬂerT-EﬂmhLM' due to fraud or efror.
F-H!Fi!l_,l OF INTFanA] T,
In preparing the financial statements, management is respensible for gﬂéﬁh‘gf :cgéﬂm'nihhf_iﬁ i hhility to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as appliceble, matters related th going ¢ e drd 18 the'going
concern basls of accounting unless management either interds to quy:[qrj theAﬁﬁﬂgaﬁvz E{gtu ease

operations, or has no reallstic alternative but to do so.
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Reyes Tacanpona & Co,
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Those charged with governance are resporsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financiol Statements

Our objectivas are to obtaln reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
Includes cur opinion. Reasonable assurance s a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audil
conducted (n accordance with PSA will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatemants
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, Indvidualty cr in the aggregate, these could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of thase financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and malntain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obain audit evidence that |s
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our ppinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstaterment resulting fram fraud s higher than for ane resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of Internal contral.

*  Dbtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit proceduras that
are appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s Internal control,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accountng policles used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by maragement,

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the golng concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence chtained, whether a material uncertainty axists related to everts or
tonditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s akility to continue as a golng concern. if we
conchlude that a material uncertalnty exists, we are reguired to draw attention in our auditors’ reaort ta
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion,  Our toncluslons are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as 3 going
LonLerm.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financlal statements, Including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
mannar that achleves falr presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any significant deficiencies In internal contral
that we identify during the audit.

BURT AL GF 10,7 apya) 61 o
Fﬂ-ﬂf_ll TAXEBAYE Bs 40 Jv e
LARGE TANVEYE RNy ARG R o 0

Date | APR 30 2019

R 15 Cm I D




Riyes Tacannpone & Co.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding Independence, and communicate with them all relationskips and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where aoplicable, related
safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most slgnificance In the audit of the financial statements of the current perlod and are therefore the
key audit matters We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, In extremaly rare circumstances, we determine that a matte-
should not be communicated in our repart because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to sutweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

ReYEs TAcANDONG & CoO,

L
Codaladr ¥,
CAROLINA P, ANGELES
Partner
CPA Certificate Mo, B69E1
Tay dentifcetion No, 205-067-976-000
BOA Accreditation Mo 4782; Valld until August 15, 2021
SEC Accreditation Mo, 0558-AR-3 Group &
Valid until May 17, 2010
BIR Accreditation Mo, 08-005144-007-2017
Valid untll Januasy 13, 2620
FTR No, 7334336
lssued Januany 3, 2018, Makatl Clty

April 12, 2019
Makati City, Metro Manila
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
% e RiEA T n’nwlivl l
b d kO LR TES]
December 31
MNote 2018 2017
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash 4 R258,845 B510,059
Due from related parties 13 16,455,581 58,717,477
Other current assets 5 9,310,757 8,803,846
Total Current Assets 26,025,183 63,131,382
Noncurrent Assets
Properly and eguipment B 43,138,202 45,083,324
Investment In an assoclate ¥ 2,563,444,406  2,640,244,182
Deferred Input VAT - net of current portion - 474,999
Total Noncurrent Assets - 2,606,582,608 2685812 505
R2,632,607,791 [E2,753943 887
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Lizbllities
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities B R457,906 §231,567
Due to a related party 13 1,000,000 =
Note payable 9 1,671,501,723  1,710,000,000
Total Current Liabilities 1,672,959,629  1,710,231,5G7
Equity
Capltal stock 840,660,700 840,660,700
Retained earnings 111,641,092 196,278,091
Other comprehensive income 7,346,370 6,773,529
Total Eguity 959,648,162 1,043 712,320
P2,632,607,791 R2,753,943 87

See gccompanping Notes to Finoncial Statements,
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BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS, INC,
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

Note 2018 2017 2016

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

EXPEMSES 11 |R7,265,480) {P6,880,122) (R4,649,767)
SHARE IN NET INCOME {LOSS) OF AN

ASS0OCIATE i (77.372,61 7) 15,574,432 1,693,703
INTEREST INCOME 4 1,088 147,973 240,430
INCOME {LOSS) BEFORE TAX (B4,636,999) 8,842,283 2,715,634}
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX 12 - - -
NET INCOME (LCSS) (B4,636,953) 8,842,283 {2,715,634)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Net to be reclassified to prafit or loss -
Share in other comprehensive income

of an assoclate 7 572,841 4,369,778 1,019,330
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

[LDSS] (P84,064,158) #13,212,081 {P1,656,304)
EARNINGS {LOSS) PER SHARE - BASIC

AND DILUTED 14 {FD.DEE} F0.006 (RO.002)
Sex aocompanping Nates 1o Finanela! Statements,
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BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Years Ended December 31

MNote

2018 2017

CAPITAL STOCK - RD.55 par value 10

Authorired - 2,000,000,000 shares

Issued, subscribed and outstanding -
1,528,474,000 shares

RE40,660,700 #840,660,700 BEAD 660,700

RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance at beglnning of year
Net income (loss)

196,278,091 187,435,808 190,151 442
(84,636,999) B,642,283 (2,715,634)

Balarce at end of year

111,641,002 156,278,081 187,435 808

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Not to be reclassified to profit or loss
Share In other comprehensive income
of 2n associate: 7

Balance at beginning of year 6,773,529 2,403,751 1,384,421
Remeasurement gain 572,841 4,360,778 1,018,330
Balance at end of year 7,346,370 B, 773,529 2,403,751

F959,648,162 #1,043,712,320

See gccompanying Motes o Finenclal Stetements

RURTALI OF |MTEHNAL RE i Yl
EAKGE TAKPAYVERS SF 2yl
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BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS, INC,
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

Mote 2018 2017 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM DPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income [loss) before tex (F84,636,995) RE.842 283 (R2,715,634)
Adjustments for;
Share in net loss [income) of an associate 7 77,372,617 [15,574,432) (1,693,703}
Depreciation E 2,015,422 2,291,043 1,661,267
Interest income 4 {1,098) {147,573] (240,430)
Operating loss before werking caplita changes (5,250,058) (4,589,079 {2,98E,500)
Decrease (Increase) in:
Due from related parties 3,763,619 (8,606,637) (32,84%,063)
Other assets (31,912) (BB7,418) {1,700,134)
Increase {decrease) in:
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 226,339 2,033 (101,394}
Due 10 related party 1,000,000 - -
Net cash used in operations (292,012) [14,08B1,101) (37,639,001)
Interes: recelved N 1,058 147,873 240,430
Net cash used in operating activities {290,914} (13,933,128] (37,398.661)
CASH FLOW FROM AN INVESTING ACTIVITY
Acquisitions of property and equipment 6 (60,300} {(4,072,604) (10,425,257)
CASH FLOW FROM A FINANCING ACTIVITY
Payment of note payable 9 -~ {90,000,000} (200,000,000}
DECREASE IN CASH (351,214) (108,005,732} (247,823,918)
CASH ATBEGINNING OF YEAR 610,059 108,615,791 356,439,708
CASH ATEND OF YEAR P258,845 610,059 R108,615 791
NONCASH FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Assignment of receivables to offset with
note payable g #38,498,277  #50,000,000 il
Lee orcompenylng Notes to Rnoncal Stetements,
BURTALIOF (NTLANAI K orh
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BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS, INC,
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

General Information

Bright Kindle Resources & Investments, Inc. {the Company), formerly Bankard, Inc. was Incorparated
and registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on December 4, 1581
as a credit card corporation, On March 21, 1995, the Company listed its shares with The Phillppine
Stock Exchange, Inc. (PSE).

On October 18, 2013, the Board of Directors [BOD) of Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation (RCBC)
approved the sale of |ts 89.98% collective stake in the Company to RYM Business Management Corp.
{the Parent Company) and other Investors. The Parent Company acguired 76,56% interest in the
Company.

In November 2013, the BOD approved the amendment to change the corporate name to Bright
Kindle Resources & Investments, Inc. and primary business purpose to a holding company.

The Company's principal office address is at 16th Floor Citibank Tower, 8741 Paseo de Roxas, Makati
City.

The accompanying financial statements of the Compary as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 and for
the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 were approved and authorized for issuance by
the BOD en April 12, 2015,

Investment in Marcventures Holdings, Inc. (MARC|

On December 15, 2014, the Company gcguired 630,000,000 shares of MARC representing 33%
equity Interest for £2,604.0 million from the Phllipplne Rusiness Bank - Trust and Investment Center
[PBB| (sea Naote 7),

On December 25, 2017, the SEC approved the application of the merger of MARC, Brightgreen
Resources Holdings Inc. (BHI) and Asia Pllot Mining Phils, Corp. (APMPC), with MARC as the surviving
entity. MARC issued 1,125000,000 shares 1o BHI and APMPC resulting to a reduction of the
Company's equity Interest in MARC to 20%. In 2018, MARC issued 45,731 706 sharzs at #1.64
shares or a total of 875 million to a major stockholder resulting to a reduction of the Company's
equity interest in MARC to 19.90%.

On February 13, 2017, Marcventures Mining and Development Corporation {MMDC], a subsidiary of
MARC, received an order dated February 8, 2017 from the Department of Environment and Natural
Resources cancelling its Mineral Production Sharing Agreement (MPSA). The management and its
legal counse| belleve that the order has no basis and the outcome of legal actions taken will not
have a material adverse effect on the MMDC's operations.

MMDC's management will take all the necessary legal a:tiinE‘h’!{klF_E{#bﬁ?.k.‘;'aki;%h%\’g}%}éﬁi}éme 1o
al,

prevent the implementation of the order. The managem phane-its Jegol counsel helizve thay, Fe

order has no basis and the outcome of legal actlons takenl will be TR TEveT BT mpdny, MM
has continued Its mining operations in the areas covered byl (ha MMASA, APR 40 2019

On February 22, 2017, MMOC has filed Notice of Appeal to the Ofgeqaf g HE%" )
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policles

Basls of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financlal Reporting
Standards {FFRS). This financial reporting framework includes PFRS, Philippine Aceounting
Standards (PAS) and Philippine Interpretations of issuances by the International Financial Raporting
Interpretaticns Committee, Issued by the Finzncial Reporting Standards Council and adopted by the
SEC, including SEC pronouncements,

Measurement Bases
The financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, which is alsp the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. All values represent absolute emounts except otherwise slated.

The financial stalementls have been prepared using the historical cost basis. Historical cost i
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in excharge for an esset and fair value of
the consideration recelved in exchange for incurring a liability,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfor a liability in an
oraerly transaction between market pacticipants at the transaction date. The Company uses
valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient dals are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the ute of relevant observable inouts and minimizing the
use of unobservable inputs,

The Company uses market observable data to a possible extent when measuring the fair value of an
asset or a liability. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy bascd on
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

s Llevel 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active market for Identical assets or liabilitles,

s level 2 -Valuaticn techniques for which the lowest leve| input that is significant to the fair value
measurement |s directly or indirectly observable,

e level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabllities that are recognized in the financial statements on & recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorization {based on the lowest level Input that is significant to the fair value
meszsuremant as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or Hability and the level of
the fair value hlerarchy as explalnec above.

Further information about the assumptlons made in measuring falr value is included in hots 16,
Financial Risk Manggement Objectives ond Policies.



Adoption of New and Amended PFRS

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previcus financial year, except for
the adoption of the following new and amended PFRS which the Company adopted effactive for
annual pericds beginning on or after January 1, 2018:

» PERS B Fimoncia! Instruments - This standard replaces PAS 39, Fingnciol Instrumerts:
Recognition ond Measurement (and all the previous versons of PFRS 9. It provides
requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities,
impairment, hedge accourting, recognition, and derecognition.

FFRS 3 requires all recognized financial assets to be subsequently measured a: amortized cost or
fair value (through profit or loss or through other comprehensive income), depending an their
classification by reference te the business model within which these are held and its contractual
cash flow characteristics.

For financial liabilities, the most significant effect of PFRS 9 relates to cases where the fair valua
option is taken: the amount of change in fair value of a financial liability desigrated as at fair
value through profit o less that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that fiability is
recognized in other comprehensive income (rather than in profit or loss), unless this creates an
accounting mismatch,

For the impairment of financial assets, PFRS 9 introduces an "expacted credit loss” {ECL) mode!
based on the concept of providing for expected losses at inception of a centract; recognition of
a credit loss should no longer wait for there to be an objective evidence of impairment,

For hedge accounting, PFR5 9 introduces a substantial overhaul allowing financial statements 1o
better reflect how risk management activities are undertaken when hedging finaacial and
non-finarcial risk exposures,

The derecognilion provisions are carried over almost unchanged from PAS 39,

Based on the Company's analysis of its business model anc the contractual cash flow
characteristics of its financial assets and liabilities as at January 1, 2018, the Company has
cencluded that 2l of its financial assets and lizhilities shall continue to be measured on the same
basis as under PAS 39 but shall be classified under PFRS 9. The Company has adopted PFRS 9
retrospectively,

Financial assets classified as loans and receivalies under PAS 39 are classified as financial assets
at amertized cost under PFRS 8. These financial assets include cash in banks and due from
related parties, Accordingly, there were ro changes in the carrying amount of the financial
assets upon adoptlon of PFRS 9.

The Company assessed that the adoption of PFRS 8, specifically on determining imparmert loss
using general appreach, has no impact on the carrying amounts of the Company's ‘inancial
assets carnied at amortized cost,

Thete is no material Impact an the basic and diluted earnings per share as 3 result of the
Company’s adoptlon of PFRS 9,



# PERS 15, Revenwe from Contract with Customers — The new standard replaced PAS 11,
Construction Coniracts, PAS 18, Revenue and related interpretations. It establishes a single
comprehensive framewark for revenue recognition to apply consistently across transactions,
industries and capltal markets, with a core principle (based on a five-step model to be applied to
all contracts with customers), enhanced disclosures, and new or improved guidance (eg. the
point at which revenue is recognized, accounting for varlable considerations, costs of fulfilling
and obtaining 2 contract, etc.}

The Company's revenue mainly arises from interest income from cash in banks and share in net
income Trom an assocate. Accordingly, the adoption of PFRS 15 has no significant impac: on the
financial statements of the Campany.

»  Amendments to PFRS 15, Revenue from Contract with Customers - Clarification to PFRS 15 — The
amendments provide clarffications on the following topics; (a) identifying performance
obligations; (b} principal versus agent considerations; and {c} licensing. The amendments also
prowdde some transition relief for modified contracss and completed contracts,

+  Amendments to PAS 28, lnvestments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Megsuring on Associate
or foint Venture ot Fair Value — The amendments are part of the Annual Improvements to PFRS
20714-2016 Cycle and clarify that the election to measure at falr value through profit or loss an
investment in an assoclate or a joint venture that is held by an entity that is a venture capital
organization, mutual fund, unit trust or other qualifying entity, is availatle for each investment
inan associate or Joint venture on an investment-by-Investment basis, upon initial recognition.

The adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS did not have any material effect on the
financial statements. Additioral disclosures have been included in the notes to financial staterents,
as applicable.

New and Amended PFRS Issued But Not Yet Effective
Relevant new and amended PFRS which are not yet effective for the year ended December 31, 2018
and have not been applied In preparing the financial statements are summarized below.

tffective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015

* Amendments to PFRS 9, Financiol Instruments - Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensetion — The amendments allow entities to measure particular prepayable financial
assets with negative compensation at amortized cost or st fair wvalue through other
comprehensive Income (instead of at fair value through profit or loss) if a specified condition s
met, It also clarifies the requirements in PFRS S, Finoncial Instruments for adjusting the
amortized cost of a financial liability when a modification or exchange does nat result in Its
derecognition {as opposed to adjusting the effective interest rate),

+  Amendments to PAS 28, Investments in Associotes and Jaint Ventures - Long-term Interests in
Associates and foint Ventures - The amendments clarify that long-term Interests in an assocate
or joint venture that, in substance, ferm part of the entity’s net investment but to which the
equity method is not applied, are accounted for using PFRS 9, Finarciol Instruments,

Under prevalling circumsiances, the adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS is not
expected to have any material effect on the financial statements of the Company.



Financial Assets and Liabilities

Date of Recognition. The Company recognizes a financial asset cr a financial lizbikity in the
statemnents of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provicions of a financial
instrument. In the case of a regular way purchese or sale of financial Besets, recognition and
derecognition, as applicable, is done uslng settlement date accounting,

Initin! Recognition and Measurement, Financial instruments are recognized nitially at fair value,
which is the fair value of the consideration given {in cate of an asset] or received {in case of a
liabifity). The Initial measurement of financial Instruments, except for those designated at fair value
through profit and loss (FVPL), includes transact on cost.

“Day 1" Difference. Where the transaction in a non-active market Is different fram the fair value of
other observakle current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation
technigue whose variables include only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the
difference between the transaction price and falr value (@ "Day 1" difference} in prefit or loss. |n
cases where there is no observable data on inception, the Comparny deems the transaction price as
the best estimate of fair value and recognizes “Day 1" d fference in profit or loss when the inputs
become observable or when the Instrument Is derecognlzed. Fur each transaction, the Company
determines tae apprapriate mathod of recognlzing the "Day 1" difference.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement Policies. The Company classifies its financial assets at
intial recognition under the following categories: (a) financlal assets at Fv2L, (b} financia! assets at
amortized cost and (c} financial assets at FVOC). Financial liabilities, on the other hand, are classified
as either financial liabilities at FVPL or financial liabilitles at amortized cost. The classification of a
financial instrument largely depends on the Cempany's business model and its centractual cash flow
characteristies,

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company does not have financial assets and liabilities at
FVPL, and financial assets at FVOCL

Financial Assets ot Amortized Cost, Einancial assets chall be measured at amortized cost if both of
the following conditions are met:

» the financial asset is held within a business mode| whose objective is to hold financial assets in
o-der to collect contractual cash flows: and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and Interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After inizial recognition, financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured 2t amortized
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for ECL, if any. Amortized cost is caleulated
by taking into account any discount ar premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral pan of
the etfective Interest rate. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the financial assets
are derecognized and through amortizetion process. Financlal dssels 2t amortized cost are included
under current assets if realizabilty or collectabllity is within 17 months after the reporting perlad,
Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.

As at Decemnber 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company’s cash in banks and due from related parties are
classified under this catagory,



Financiol Liabilities at Amortized Cost. Financial liabilities are categorized as financlal liabilities a:
amortized cost when the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Company having
an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the heider, or to settle the
obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of its own equity ihstruments.

These finencial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value less any directly attributable transaction
costs. After initial recognition, these financial ligbilities are subsequertly measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest methed. Amortized cost s caloulated by taking into account any
discount or premium on the issue and feas that are an Integral part of the effective interest rate,
Gains and Iosses are recognized in profit or foss when the liabilities are derecognized or through the
amortization process,

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company's accrued expenses, due to a related party and
note payable are classified under this category

Reclassification

The Company reclassifies its financial assets when, and only when, it changes its business mede! for
managing those financial assets, The reclassification is applied prosaectively from the first day of
the first reporting peried following the change in the business model {reclassification date).

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at amortized cost category to financial
assets at FVPL, any gain or |oss arising from the difference between the previous amortized cost of
the financial asset and fair value is recognized in profit or lcss.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at amortized cogt category to finansial
assets at FVOLI, any gain or foss arising from the differznce between the previous amortized cost of
the financ'al asset and fair value is recogrized in QCL

In the case of a financial asset that does not have a fixed maturity, the gain or loss shall be
recognlzed In profit or loss when the financial asset is sold or disposed. If the financial asset i
subsequently impaired, any previous gain or loss that has been recognized in OC! is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss,

Impairment Policy on Financial Assets at Amartized Cost

The Company records an allowance for ECL, ECL is based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company BxXpects to
receive. The difference is then discounted at an approximation to the asset’s original effective
interest rate.

For financia| Instruments assets at amortized cost, the ECL is based on the 12-month ECL, which
periains to the portion of lifetime ECL that result from default events on a financial Instrumert that
are passible within 12 months atter the reporting date. However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the allowance will be based on the lifatime ECL. When
determining whether the credit risk of a finsncial asset has Increased significantly since Initial
recognition, the Company compares the rlsk of a default occurring an the financial instrumant as at
the reporting date wth the risk of a default occurring on the financial Instrument as at the date of
initia' recognition and consider reasanable and supportable information, that is available without
undue cost ar effort, that s indicative of significant increases In credit risk sinca initial recognition.



Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financigl Assets, A financial asset (or where applicable, a oart of a financial asset or part of a group
of similar financial assets)is dzrecognized when:

* Lhe right to receive cash flows from the asset has expred;

e the Company retains the right to recelve eash flows from the financial asset, but has assumed an
obiigation to pay them in full without material defay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or

# the Company has transferred its right 1o receive cash flows from the financial esset and either
(@) has tansferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b} has neither transferred ror retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset,

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from a financal asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset nor transferred control of the financial
asset, the financial asset is recognlzed to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement in the
financial asset. Cortinuing involvement that takas the form of a guarantes over the transferred
financial asset is measurad at the lower of the original carrying amount of the financial asset and the
meximum amount of consideration that the Company could ke required to repay,

Financlal Linbifities, A finandzl liabllity is derecognized when the obligation under the liahility |s
discharged, cancelled or has explred. When an existing financial liability Is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing lability are
substantially modified, such ar exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in the statements of comprehensive income.

A modification is considered substantlal if the present value of the cash flows under the new terms,
including ret fees pald or received and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is
different by at least 10% from the discounted present vaiue of remaining cash Rlows of the criginal
lighility.

The fair value of the modified financlal liability |s determined based on its expected cash flows,
discounted using the interest rate at which the Company could raise debt with similar terms and
canditions ir the market. The difference between the carrying value of the original liability and fair
value of the new liability s -ecognized In the statements of comprehensive income.

On the other hand, if the difference does not meet the 10% thrashold, the original debt is not
extingulshed but merely medified. In such case, the carrying amount is adjusted by the costs or fees
pald or received in the restructuring.

Dffsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reporiec in the statements of
financial position if, and only if. there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is intention to settle on @ net basis, or to realize the asset and settie the liability
simultaneously, This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related
assets and liabifities are presented gross in the statements of financial position.



Classification of Financial Instrument between Liability and Equity
A financial instrument Is classified as lishility if it provides fo- a contractual abligation to:

e Deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity;

= Exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentizlly unfavorable to the Company; or

» Satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a tixed amount of cash or another financiz!
asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.

If the Company does not have an unconditional right to avold delivering cash or anather financizl
asset to settle its contractual obligation, the obligation meets tae definition of a financial liabil ty.

Dther Current Assets
Other current assets include input value-added tax [VAT), current portion of deferred input VAT,

creditable withholding tax (CWT) and prepayments,

VAT Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, except for receivables
and payables that are stated with the amount of VAT Includes. The net amount of input VAT
recoverable from the tax authority is included as part of “Other currert asssts” account in the
statements of financiz! pesiticn,

Deferred input VAT, in accordance with the Revenue Regulations [RR) No, 16-2005, input VAT an
purchases or imports of the Company of capital goods {depreciable assets for income tax purposes)
with an aggregate acquisition cost (exclusive of VAT) in each of the calendar month exceeding
R1.0 milllon are claimed as credit against output VAT over 60 months or the estimated useful lives of
capital goods, whichever is shorter,

Deferred input VAT represents the unamartized amount of input VAT on capital goods. Deferred
input VAT that are expected to be claimed against output VAT for no more than 12 months after the
reporting date are classified as current assets. Otherwise these are dlassified as noncurrent assets,

CWT. CWT are amounts witnheld from Income subject tc expanded withholding taxes. CWT can be
utilized as payment for inceme taxes provided that these are properly supported by certificates of
creditable tax withheld at source subject to the rules on Philippine income taxatian,

Prepayments.  Prepayments represent expenses paid in advance and recorded as assets before
these are utilized. Prepayments are apportioned over the period covered by the paymenl and
charged to profit or loss when Incurred. Prepayments that are expected to be realized for na more
than twelve months after the reporting date are classified as other current assots, Ctherwise, these
are classified as other noncurrent assets,

Investment in an Associate
Investment in an associate is recognized initlally at cost and subseguently accounted for using the
equity methaod,




An associate Is an entity in which the Company has significant Influsnce but not control, over the
financlal and opzrating policies of such entity, The Company's share of its asssociate's
post-acquisition protds or losses s recognized in profit or loss, and its share of post-acqguisition
movements in reserves is recognized in equity. The cumulative post-acquisition mevermnents are
adiusted against the carrying value of the investment.

When the Company's share of losses in an associate equale or sxceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Company does not recognize further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. Unrealized gains on
transactions between the Company and its associate are eliminated to the extent of the Company's
Interest in the associate. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an Impairment of the asset transferrod.

Ihe Company determines at the end of each reporting year whethar there ‘s any evidence that the
irvestment is impalred  If this is the case, the smount of Impairment Is calculated as the difference
batween the carrying value of the investment and recoverable amount.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in

valse. The initial cost of property and equioment comprises Its purchase price, including import
duties, non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts and rebates and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use,
The cost of self-const-ucted assets includes the cost of maserizls and direct labor, nay ather costs
directly attributable to bringing the assets ta a working condition for their Intended use, the costs of
dismantling and remaoving the [tems and restoring the site on which they are lecated,

Expenditures incurred ater the property and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs, maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally charged to operations in the yvear the costs
are incurred. In sltuations where it can be clearly demaonstrated that the expend tures have resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtzined from the use of an item of
property and equipment beyend its ariginally assessed standard of performance, the experditures
are capitalized as additional costs of property znd equipment. The cost of replacing a component of
an item of property and equipment is recognized If it is probable that the future economic benefits
embodied within the component will flow ta the Company, and its tost can be measured reliably,
The carrying value of the replaced companent is derecognized.

When parts of an item of property and equipment have different usetul lives, they are accountad for
as separate items [major componests) of property and equipment,

Depreciation is calcu'ated on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives of the
prepearty and equipment:

Number of Years
Condomintum uait 3l
Office furniture and fixtures 3-5
Service yvehicle 3
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The estimated useful lives and method for depreciation are reviewed periodically to ensare thet the
periods and method of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits
from items of property and equipment.

When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated
depreciation and any impalrment in value are removed from the accounts, ANy resulting galn or loss
is credited to or charged against current operations.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

Nonfinancial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in clrocumsiances
indicate that the carrying value of an asset may net be recoverable, If any such indication existe and
where the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset or cash-generating
unit is written down 1o its recoverable amount. The estimated reccverable amount Is the higher of
an asset’s falr value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using B pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time velue of money and the risks specific to the assel. For an asset that
does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable armount s determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Impairment osse: are recognized in the
statements of comprehensive income.

An assessmant |s made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognizad impairment Insses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount Is estimated, A previously recognlzed impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since
the las: impaiment |oss was recognized. |f that is the case, the carrying value of the asser is
increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot axceed the carrying value that
would have been determined, net of depraciation, had ao impaiment loss been recognized for the
asset in prior years. After such a reversal, the depreciaticn tharge is adjusted in future periods to
allocate the asset’s revised carrying value, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over
remzining useful life.

Equity

Capital stock. Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issved. Incremental cests directly
attributable to the issuance of new shares are treated as deduction from equity, net of tax.

Retained earnings. Retained earnings represent the cumulative balance of ne: lrcome or loss net of
any clvidend declaration.

Other Comprehensive Income (OC1). OC| comprises of items of income and expense that are not
recognized In profit or loss for the year in accordance with PFRS. OC! of the Company pertaing to
share in OC! of an associate.
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Revenue Recognltion

Revenue from contract with customers is recognized when the performance obligation in the
contract has been satisfied, either at a point in time or over time. Revenue Is recogaizad over time if
one of the following criteria is met: (a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits as the Company perform its obligations; (b) the Company’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset 's created or enhanced; or {c) the
Company’s performance does nol create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and the
Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date, Otherwise,
revenue is recognized at a point in time.

The Company also assesses its revenue arrangements to determine if it is acting as a principal or as
an agent. The Company has assessed that it acts as a principal in all of its revenue sources.

The fellowing specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Interest Income. Interest income is recognized n profit or loss as it accrues, taking into acccunt the
effective yleld on the asset,

Expenses Recognition
Expenses are recognized in profit or loss when thereis a decrease in future economic benelt related
to adecrease in an asset cr anincrease in a liabllity that can be measured reliably,

Generol and administrative expenses. Generzl and administralve expenses constilute cost of
administering the business. These are expensed as incurred.

Income Taxes

Current Tax. Current tax assets and liabilit es are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
frore or paid to the taxation authorities, The tax rate used to compuie the amount s the one that
has been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date

Deferred Tax. Deferrec tax is provided on all temporary differences at the reporting date hetween
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying ameunts for finarcial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assete are
recognized for all deductible tempaorary differences, carry-forward benefits of any unused tax credits
from the excess of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over the regular corporate Income tax
{RCIT) and any unused net aperaling loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it |s probable that
taxable profit will be avallable against which the daductible temporary differences and
carry-forward benefits of unused MCIT and unused NOLCO can be utilized. Defe-red tax, however,
is not recognized when it arises from tae initial recognition of an asset or liability n a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects nelther the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying value of deferred tax assets is reviewed 2t each reporting date and reduced to the
exlent thal it i& no longer probable that sufficient Laxable profil will be availeble (o aliow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognlzed deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognired to the extert that it has become probable that future taxable
profit will allow the deferred tax assel to be recovered.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected 1o apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liaoility is settled, based on tax rate that has been enactad
or substantively enacted at the report:ng date.

Deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business
combination, or items directly recognized in equity as other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, If a legally enforceable right exists lu offset current tay
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes rolate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Basic and Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic earnings (loss) per share is computad by dividing net income {loss} for the year attributable to
common shareholders by the welghted average aumber of commoan shares ocutstanding during the
year, with retroactive adjustments for any stock dividends declared and stock split and excluding
common shared purchased by the Company and held as treasury shares.

Diluted earnings {loss) per share Is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all potential dilutive comman shares,

Where the earnings (loss) per share effect of potential dilutive common shares would be
anti-difutive, basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share are stated at the same emount,

Operating Segment

An cperating segment is a component of the Company thet engages in business activities from
which It may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to the
transactions with any of the Company’s other components.

The Company has ne operating segrment other than being a halding company,

Related Party Relationship and Transactions

Related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to control, directly, or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Such relationships also axist hetween and/or among entities
which are under commeon contral with the reporting entity, or between, and/or among the
reporting entity and its kxey management personnel, directors or its stockholdars. In considering
each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship,
and not merely to the legal form.

Related party transactions are transfer of rescurces, services or obligations ketween the Company
and its related parties, regardless whether a prce Is charged,

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present osligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it |s probable that an outflow of resources embotying econamic benefits will
be required to seitle the obiigation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
chligation.
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Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized In the financial statements They are disclosed in the notes

to financial statements unless the possibility of a4 outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits Is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but are
disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probatle.

Ev er the Reporting Period

Post year-end events that provide additional infarmation about the Company's financial position at
the end of reporting period (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post
year-end events that are non-adjusting are disclosed in the notes to financial slatements when
materizl.

The preparation of the Company’s financlal statements in comoliance with PERS regulires
management 1o make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in
the financial statements. The judgment, estimates and assumptions used in the financial statements
are based upen management’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as at the reporting
date. While the Company believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant
differences In the actual experience or significant charges In the assumptions may malerially affect
the estimated amounts, Actual results could differ from such estimates,

The following are the significant Judgments, accounting estimates and assumptions made by the
Company:

Classifying lnvestment Property and Owner-occupied Praperty. The Company considers a property as
an investment property when the property generates cash flows which are largely independent of
other assets held by the Company and 2 property as owner-cecupied property when cash flows
gencrated by it pertains not only to the property but also to other assets used for cperations or
administrative purposes.

A property may comprise of portions held for capital appreciation and portions used in operation or
administretive purpose. If these portions cannot be sold sezarately, the property is accounted far as
an investment property only if an insignificant portien is aeld for use In cperatian or for
administrative purpose.

The Company classified its condominium unit under property and equipment.

Determining Signfficant influence over MARC. When an entity ho'ds 20% or more of the voting
power (directly or through subsidiaries] on an investee, It will be presumed that the investor has
sigrificant influence unless it can be clearly demenstratad that this is not the case. I the halding is
less than 20%, the entity wil! be presumed rot to have significant influence unless such influence
can be clearly demonstrated, A substantial or majority ownership by another investor does not
necessarily preciude an entity from having signlficant influence,
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The existence of significant influence by an entity s usually evidenced in one or mare of the
following ways:

» representation on the board of directors or equivalent governing body of the investee:

* participation In the policy-making process, including partizipation In decisians about dividends
or ather distributions;

s msterial transactions between the entity and the investee; interchanpe of managerizl
personnel; or

e pravision of essential technical information

The Company has determinec that the decrease in ownership interest in MARC in 2018 resulting to
a less than 20% ownership interest would not atfect its significant influence by wirtue of the
existence of the above indicstors in the Company's dezlings with MARC,

Assessing Modification on the Terms of the Note Payable. The Company considers its note payable
to be substantially modified if the present value of the cash flows under the new terms, including
net fees paid or received and discounted using the arigingl effective interest rate, Is dif'erent by at
least 10% from the discounted present value of remaining cash flows of the original liability, Such
madification will result to derecognition of original Fability and the recognition of a new liability.

On the other hand, if the differerce does not meet the 10% threshaold, the original debt it not
extinguished but merely modified. In such case, the carrying value is adjusted by the costs or fees
paid or received in the restructuring,

The Company assessed that there is no substantial modification on the terms of the note payable,

Determining Operating Segments. The Company determines and presents aperating sepments
hased on the information that Is Internally provided to the BOD. As at December 31, 2018 and 2017,
the Company has determined that it has no operating segment other than being 2 holding company.

Assessment of Impolrment of Financiol Assets at Amortized Cost. The Company determines the
allowance for ECL based on the probability-weightad estimate of the present value of all cash
shortfalls over the expected life of financial assets at amortized cost. ECL are provided for credit
losses that result from possible default events within the next 12-moaths unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition in which case ECL are provided based on
fifetime ECL,

When determining I there has been a slgnificant increase in crediz risk, the Company considers
reasonable and supportable information that is avallable without undue cost or effort end that is
relevant for the pearticular financlal instrument being assessed such a5, but not limited ta, the
following factors:

* actual or expected external and internal credit rating downgrade;
¢ existing or forecasted adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions: aad
s actual or expacted significant adverse changes in the operating results of the berrower,

The Company's financial assets at amortized cost are considered to have low credit risk, and
therefore the loss allowance is determined as 12 months ECL, The Company has assessed that the
ECL for other financlal assets at amortized cost Is not material because the transactions with respect
to these financial assets ware entered into by the Company only with reputable barks and
counterparties with good credit standing and relatively low risk of defaults. Accoerdingly, no
impairment loss was recognized in 2018, 2017 and 2016



The carrying amounts of the Company’s financlal assets at amortized cost are 3s follows:

, Note 2018 2017
Cash in banks 4 E253,845 REDS, D52
Due from related parties 13 16,455,581 58,717,477

Assessment of Impairment of Investment in on Associgte. The Company assesses the impairment of
investment in an associate whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the cerrying
amount of investment in an associate may not be recoverable Factors that the Company
considered In deciding when to perform impairment review include the followi ng, among others:

* significant decline in busiress and aperating performance in relation to expectations; and
= significant changes in the business operations and strategies of the Company and its associate

Based on management assessment, there are no indicators for impairment that will warrant
impairment assessment. The management and its legal counsel belleve that the order for the
cancellation of MMDC's MPSA will not have a materia adverse effect on MMDC's pperations
[see Note 1), Accordingly, no impairment loss was recognized fn 2018, 2017 and 2016, The carrying
amount of Investment in associates amounted to B2,563 .4 million and £2.640.2 million ac at
December 31, 2018 and 2017 [see Note 7).

Assessing Impairment of Other Nonfinancial Assets, The Company asscsses impairment on other
nonfinancial assets whenever events or changes In circumstances indicate that the carrying value of
these assets may not be recoverabile. The factars that the Company considers important which
could trigger an impalrment review include the following:

= significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating
results;

» significant changes in the manner of use of the goguired assets or the strategy for overall
business: and

e significant negative industry or economic trends,

The Company recognizes an impzlrment less whenever the carrying value of an ssset exceeds it
recoverable amount.  The recoverable amount is computed using the value-in-uze approach,
Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if it is not possisle, for the
casfi-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Determining such amount requires the estimation
of cash flows expected to be geherated from the continued use and ultimate disposition of such
assets,

Mo impairment loss was recognized in 2018, 2017 and 201E.

The carrying amount of the Company’s other nonfinancial assets are as follaws:

) o Note 2018 2017
Other current assets 5 R#3,310,757 #8203 840
Praperty and equipment & 43,138,202 45,093,324

Deferred input VAT - net of current portion - 474,535
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Estimoting the Useful Lives of Property and Eguipment, The Company estimates the useful lives of
property and equipment based on the period over which the assets zre expected to be availasle for
use. The Company annually reviews tha estimated usetul lives of property and equipment based on
factors that include asset utilization, internal technical evaluation, technelogical chanpes,
environmental changes and anticipated use of the assets,

There is no change In the estimated useful life of the Compaty's property and equipment in 2018,
2017 and 2016.  Carrying value of property and equipment amounted to B43.1 million and
B45.1 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note B!,

Assessing Realizability of Deferred Tox Assels. The Company reviews its deferred tax assots at each
reporting date and reduces the carrying value to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all ar part of the deferred tax assets to ba utilized.

Deferred tax assets were not recognized on NOLCO and excess of MCIT over ROT as at
Pecember 31, 2018 and 2017 because the managenent believes that there will be no sufficient
taxable profits against which deferred tax assets can be utllized,

The Company's unrecognized deferred tax assets amounted to 5.6 million and R7.8 millicn as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 12).

Cash

This account conslsts of;

2018 2017

Cash on hand R5,000 ES.Dﬂ_ﬁ_
Cash in banks 253,845 605,054
R258,845 PE10,059

Cash in banks earn interest at prevailing bank deposit rates, Interest income earned amounted to
1,038, #147,573 and R240,430 in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Other Current Assets

This account consists of;

T— 2018 2017
Input VAT F8,141,414 B7,113,281
CWT 600,685 B00,6E5
Current portion of deferred Input WAT 474,999 824,744
Prapayments 74,523 -
Others 19,136 265,136

F9,310,757 FE,B03 846
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6. Property and Equipment

Balences and movements in this account are as follows:

2018 ey L
Condominium  Offlce Furniture
Mate Unit and Fixtures Service Vehicle Total
Cost
Batance at baginning of year Ra7,T8B,569 ®1,735,619 Fi,568,550 K51,052 B35
Additions - E0,300 - 60,30
Dlsposals - - {1,568,550) {2,568,650)
Balance at end of year 47,788,565 1,795,919 - 49,584,488
Accumulated Depreciation
Baluneo at boginning of year 4.193,012 374,994 1,481,503 5,999,514
Depreciation 11 1,579,141 349,134 B7,147 2,015,422
spasals - - (1,568,650) {1,568, 650)
Balance at end of year 5. 772,153 /4,133 - bk, 286
Carrying Amount B42,016,416 R1,121,786 [ Pa3,138,202
2017 s
Office
Condominlum Fuerniture Lonstructon

o Mote Linit ared Fatures Semvice Yehicle In Propress Tolal
Cost
Erbanca ot beginning of year F34,975,625 R209.212 R15EE 650 PI0256,73%  @47,020,254
Additions - 1526407 — 2,545,197 4,072,604
Reclassification 12,812,934 - - {12,B12. 49341 -
Balance at end of year 47,788,509 1,735,619 1,558,650 - 51,591,£
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year 2,726,505 13,257 958,619 - 3,708,471
Deprecation 11 1465417 301,742 522884 = 2,251,043
Balance al end of vaar 4,153,012 324,909 1,481,503 - 5,005,514
Carrying Amount #43,545 857 Bla10,620 FE7,147 F—  B45003 324

In 2017, the construction In progress was completed and reclassified to condominlum unit,

On April 2G, 2018, a fully-depreciated service vehizle was sold; subseguently, no pain or loss on the
disoosal of the asset was recognized.

Investment in an Assaciate

Movements in this account are as follows:

2018 2017

Arquisition cost B2,604,600,000  R2,604,000,000
Accumulated share in equity:
Balance et beginning of year 36,244,182 16,200,072
Share in.

Net income {loss) {77.372,617) 15,574,437

Other comprehensive income 572,841 4,369,778
Bzlance at end of year (40,555,594) 35,244,182

Carrying amount

B2,563,444,406

R2,640,244,182




The Company has 600,000,000 shares of MARC representing 19.90% and 20.00% equity interest as
at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 1). MARC’s principal place of business is at
Unlt £, One Luna Place, E. Luna St., Butuan City, Agusan del Nerte,

Summarized financlal Information of MARC follows:

S 2018 2017
Tolal current assets R551,145,763  R645,861,140
Total noncurrent assels £,278,237,211 4,670,257,221
Total current liabilities 1,140,620,272 444,607 449
Total noncurrent liabilities 798,616,529 663,580,760
Revenue 587,255,064  2,040,859,226
Met income {loss) (388,807,119) 47,281,213
Cther comprehensive income 2,878,596 13,265 870

8 Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities
This accouni consists of:
2018 IDIL

Accrued expenses R455,220 B227,303
Statutory payables 2,686 4,264
— R457,906 R231,567

Accrued expenses pertain to accrua of outside services, professional fees, and electricity, among
others, which are expected to be settled in the next reporting period,

Statutory payables pertain to withholding taxes that are to be remitted to the Eovernment within
the next reporting period,

Note Payahble
Movements in thiz account are as fellows:

MNote 2018 2017
Halance at beginning of vear B1,710,000,000 Fl,BEU,DDD,DE
Assignment of receivables 13 {38,498,277) {50,000,000)
Payment during the year - {90,000,000)
Balance at end of year R1,671,501,723 R1,710,000,000

The noninterest-bearing note was assigned by PBB to Trans Middle East Philippines Equities, Inc,
(TMEE}. This liability represents the unpaid po-tion of the purchzse price of the investment in an
associate. The note's orlginal maturity date was December 31 2015 but was extended. Latest
extension |s untll December 31, 2018,
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10. Equity

On March 21, 1895, the SEC approved the listing of the Company's 118,000,000 shares at an offer
price of R1.00 per share. As &t December 31, 2018 and 2017, 1,528,474,000 shares are listed |n the
P5E.

11, General and Administrative Expenses

This account consists of:

Mote 201k 2017 2016
Cutside services P2,029,603 ®1,155,011 RA72.E76
Depreclation 6 2,015,422 2,291,041 1,661,267
membership dues and other fees 1,285,456 1,402 640 1,402,315
Profassional fees 649,129 54,089 550,979
Taxes and licenses 295,017 248,609 73,159
Communication, light and water 290,668 200,616 161,100
Director's fees 110,000 155,000 129,412
Others 590,185 837,114 203,709

R7,2654B0  PG,880,122 #4,649,767

12, Provision for Income Tax

There is no provision for income tax in 2018, 2017 and 2016 due to the Company's taxable |oss
poslition.

The reconciliation ef provision for income tax at the statutory income tax to the provision for iIncome
tax shown inthe statements of comprehensive income follows:

2018 2017 2016
Provision for Income tax computed at
statutory tax rate {#25,391,100) F2.652 6RS {BE14,600)
Change in unrecognized deferred tax
assets (2,209,263) 1,082 489 1,394,930
Add 'deduct) tax effects of;
Share In net income {loss) of an
associate, not subject to tax 23,211,785 14,672,330) (508,111)
Expired NOLCO and excess of
MCIT over RCIT 4 366,407 981,248 -
Mondeductible expenses 22,500 300 -
Interest income already subjected
to final tax ) {328) (44,392) (72,29)

B= - F-
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Details of unrecognized deferred tax assets are as follows:

" 2018 2017

NOLCO R5,615,811 B7 809,093
Excess of MCIT over ROIT - 15,5981
k5,615,811 B7,825,074

Deferred tax assets on NOLCO and excess of MCIT over RCIT were not recognized as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017 because the management belleves that there may be no sufficiem
future taxable profits against which deferred tax assets can be utilized.

As at December 31, 2018, unused NOLCO shat can be claimed s deduction from future taxable
income are as follows:

Balance at

Beginning of Baiance at
Year Year Incurred Expired End of Year  Year of Expiry
2018 - B7,190,480 - 7,140,480 2021
2017 &,879,122 - — 6,879,122 2020
2016 4,649,767 - - 4,649 767 2019
2015 14,501,420 _ = 14,501,470 - 2018

26,030,300 27,190,480 #14,501,420 R18,719.369

MCIT incurred In 2015 amounting to 15,981 expired In 2018,

. Related Party Transactions

The Lompany has the following transactions with its Parent Company and other related parties:

Mature of Arnount of Transactiony Outstarsing Dalaneas
Trersattions 2018 217 2018 2017
Duz from Related Partios
Parent Compeany -
AYH Advancns for werking
capltal R- Wa20%) 458 #E 000,000 46,553 277

Under cormmen contra)l!
Advances for warking

WA capita 3455 581 - B.A55 501 5000 001
CHbarg Adhances [or worlking

capha - 237 = 4,000

Officers AdVARCES - - - 7,160,200

_F16,455,581 RSB T17.N77

Pue to a Related Party
Affate -
Prime Medea Holdings, n Ardvances for working
capltn F1000,000 Lis 1,000,000 B--

Due from related parties are noninterest-bearing, collectible on demand, not impaired and to be
settled in cash. Due to a related party is noninterest-bearing, unsecured, payable on demand and to
be settled in cash.

The Company assigned the receivable from the Parent Company to TMEE to cffset with the note
payable amounting to 38.5 million and #50.0 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 9)
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Compensation of Key Management Personnel

Compensation of key management personnel on short term employee benefits amounted to
F0.05 million, RO.1 million, RO.035 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

14. Basic and Diluted Earnings {Loss) Per Share

Basic and diluted |oss per share is computed as follow:

2018 2017 2016
Wet income (loss) {P84,636,999) BB 842 283 {F2,715 634}
Weighted average number of
cammen shares outstanding 1,528,474,000 1,528.474,000 1,528,474,000
Earnings {loss) per share - basic and
diluted - {R0.055) RD.D0E {FO.002}

There has been no transaction involving common shares or potential common shares that occurred

subseguent to the reporting dates.

15. Contingencies

Legal Claims and Assignment of Litigation Cases

The Company Is & co-defendant In a collecticn case for USS1.5 million filed in the Las Angeles
Supericr Court by a forelgn merchant and its Philippine affiliate in 2012, The plaintiffs have alleged

that they were not paid the charge cards availmerts t

hat the Company processed under a Tripartite

Merchants Agreements (TMA). Based on Company’s records, however, payments due 1o the foreign

merchant were wired to the latter's designated agent.

The Company did not breach any regulatory

or trade standards | complying with the TMA. The Company’s management and its counsel believe

that the collection case is legally defensible, and any

uitimate liability rezulting therefrom will not

materially affect the Company's financial position and results of operations. Moreover, under the

Share Purchase Agreement dated October 18, 2013,
court adjugge the Company liable,

RCBC will indemnify the Company should the

16. Financial Risk Management Dbjectives and Policies

The Company has risk management policies that syste

matically visw the risks that could prevent the

Company from achieving its objectives. These policies are intended to manage risks identi‘ied in

such a way that opportunities to deliver the Compary”

s ohjectives are achieved. The Company's risk

management takes place In the context of day-to-day operations and normal business proCesses

such as strategic planning and business planning.
responsible for coordinating and continuously impray

Management has identified each risk and is
ing risk strategies, processes and measures in

accordance with the Company's established business abjectivas,
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Cempany's principal financial instruments consist of cash in banks, due from related parties,
accrued expenses, due to a related party and note payable. The primary purpose of these financial
instruments is to finance the Company’s operations, The main risks arising from the use of these
financial instruments are credit risk and liguidity risk. Management reviews and approves the
policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a
counterparty defaults on its obligation. The Company's exposure to credit risk arizses primarity from
cazh in banks and due from related parties.

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk on the financial assets as at amortized cost i the
carrying amount of those assets as at the reporting date.

Finamcial Assets ot dmortized Cost

The Company limits its credit risk from balances with banks by depositing its cash with highly
reputable and pre-approved financial institutions. For due from related parties, credit risk is low
since the Company only transacts with related parties with strong capacity to meet i1s contractual
cash flow oblizgations In the near term

As discussed in Note 3 to the financial statements, the Company considers credit risk in measuring
ECL of finarcial assets at amortized cost.  Since the financial assets at amortized cost of the
Company are considered to have low credit risk, impairment loss is limiled to 12-month ECL

The table below presents an analysis of the credit quality of the Company's financial assets at
amartized cost.

i 1018 2017

Cash in banks R253,845 RGOS, 059
Due from related parties 16,455,581 E8,717,477
. P16,708,426 #50,322,536

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to settle ar meet its financial obligations
when they fall due. The Company aims to maintain flexibility by maintalning sufficient cash to meet
all foreseeable cash needs,

The tables below summarze the maturity profile of the Cempany’s financlal liabilities at amortized
cost as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 based on contractual undiscounted cash flows,

2018
Less than One  Dne Month to More than
Month One Year One Year Total
Acorued expanses B455,220 == - R455,220
Due tg a related parly 1,000,000 1,000,000
Mote payable = 1,671,501,723 - 1,671,501,723
R455,220 R1,672,501,723 B~ F1,671.956,943
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2017
Less than One One Manth to Mare than
___Maenth One Year Cne Year Total
Accrued expenses F227,303 T s R227.303
MNote payable B - 1,716,000,000 - F1,710,000.000
' 227,303  P1,710,000,000 B~ F1,710,227,303

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Set out below is a comparison by categary of carrying values and fair values of the Company's
financial instruments that are carried in the financial statements:

2018 2mr
Carrying Valug Fair Valus Larrying Value Fak Value
Finarcial Assets al Amorlized Cost

Cash RI58, 845 F258,845 REI0,059 BBl 058
Due from related parties 16,455,581 16,455,581 5B, 717 477 .. 58, 717.4%7
R16,719,426 F1G, 714,426 F‘EE,HE?.ES&_ R59,327,536

Financlal Liabilities st Amortized Cost
Accrued erpanies RAG5 220 R455, 220 F227.303 F227,303
Dule to & related party 1,000,000 1,000,000 = K
Mate pavable 1,671,501,723 1,671,501,723 1,710 000,000 1,710,000, 000
P1672,056,943  PLE71956,943  RLTI0227.303  W1,710,227,303

Financial Assets ond Financiel Liobilities. The carrying amounts of cash, due from Felated parties,
accrued expenses, due to a related party and note payable approximate their fair values due to the
short-term nature of the transactions, The fair value measuremen: of current financlal assete and
liabilities is classified as Level 3 (significant unchsarvable inpLts).

17,

Capital Management Objectives, Policies and Procedures

The Company’s capital management objectives are 10 ensure the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern and to provide an adequate return to sharehalders. The Company manages its canital
structure and makes adjustments ta 11, tn light of changes In economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Company may return capital to shareholders or issue new sharos,

The Company comsiders its total equity amounting to P959.6 million and B1,043 7 million as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, as its capital,

There has been no change in the objectives, policies and processes in 2018 and 2017
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REPORT OF INDEPFENDENT AUDITORS
TO ACCOMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FILING WITH THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Bright Kindle Resources & Investments, Inc.
16th Flaor Citihank Tower

B741 Pasec de Roxas, Makati City

We have audiled the accompanying financial statements of Bright Kindle Resources & Irvestments, Inc,
(the Company), a subsidiary of RYM Business Managemant Carp., as at December 31, 2008 and 2017
and for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 on which we have randered our repart
dated April 12, 2019,

In compliance with Securities Regulations Code Rule 68, as amended, we are stating that the Compary
has £15 stockholders owning one hundred (100) or more shares sach.

REYES TACANDONG & Co.

L]
Conalear ¥,
CARCLINA P, ANGELES
Partner
CRA Certificate Mo, BEREL
Tax ldentification No. 205-067-976-000
BOA Accreditetion Mo 4782; Valld until August 15, 2071
SEC Acereditation Mo, DE58-AR-3 Group A
Welid untl May L7, 2020
GBI Accreditation Mo, 08-005144-007-2017
Yalid until January 13, 2020
FTR Mo, 7338336
lssued January 3, 2009, Makat| City

April 12, 2019
Makati City, Metro Manila
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
ON SUPPLEMCNTARY SCHEDULES

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Eright Kindle Resources & Investments, Irc.
16th Floor Citibank Tower

8741 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statements of Bright
Kindle Resources & Investments, Inc. {the Company), a subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp,, as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017 and for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, and have issued
our reporl thereon dated April 12, 2019, Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinian on
the financial statements taken as a whole. The accomparying Supplementary Schedules for submission to
the Securities and Exchange Commission are the responsibility of the Company's management. These
supplementary sthedules include the following:

*  Adoption of Effective Accaunting Standards and Interpretations

= Financlal Ratios

+  Reconcillation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration
*  Schedules required by Part I of SRC Rule 68, as Arrended

These schedules are presented for purposes of complying with Securities Regulation Code Rule 68 Part I, as
amended, and are not part of the basic financlal statements. This infarmation has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial Statements, including comparing such
information directly to the underlying accounting ano other tecords used to arepare the basic financial
staements or to the basic financial statements themselves, 14 our opinion, the information s fairly stated in
all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole,

REYES TACANDONG & Co.

Coralionr X.

CAROLINA P. ANGELES

Partner

Cha Certiflzate No, 85981

Tax tdentification ko, 205-067-976-000

BOA Accreditation Mo, 4782; Valid until Aupust 15, 2001

SEC Accreditatlon Mo, DE58-AR-3 Group A
Valid until May 17, 2030

BIR Accreditation No, 08-005 144-007-2017
Valid until January 13, 2020

FTR Mo, 7334336
st d fanvary 3, 2019, Makatl City

April 12, 2019
Makatl City, Metro Manila
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BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF ADOPTION OF
EFFECTIVE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

DECEMBER 31, 2018

PFRS 3 {Revispd)

Mot Mot
ti
Title | Adopted Adopted | Applicable
Framewaork tor the Preparation and Presentation of Financlal
Statements
Conceptual Framewark Phase A: Objectives and qualitative characteristics o
PFRSs Practice Statement Management Commentary +
PFRSs Practice Statement 27 Making Materiality Judgments
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PERS)
| Not Mot
PFR Title
5 AR | iaored | Applicabie
irst-ti ti lippi ial A [
PERS 1 (Revised) First-time Adaption of Philipgine Financial Reporting 2
Standards
Armendments to PFRS 1, Additianal Exemptions for v
First-time Adopters
L - e
Amendment to PFRS 11 Limited Exemption from
Lomparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time v
Adopters
Amencments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and @
Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters
Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans: ¥
Amendments to PFRS 1; Flrst-time Adoption of
Philippine Finarcial Reporting Standards - Delesion of v
Short-tarm Exemptions for First-time Acopters
FPFRS 2 Share-based Payment v
Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and 7
Cancellations
Amendments tc PFAS 2: Group Cash-settled
= : ¥
Share-hased Payment Transactions
Amendments to PFRS 2: Classification and Y
Measurement of Share-based Pavment Transactions
Busingss Combinations v




PFRS

Title

Adopted

Mot

Adopted

Nat ]
Applicable

Amendment to PFRS 3 Accounting for Contingent
Consideration in a Business Combination

W

Amendment to PFRS 3: Scope Exceptions for Joint
Yentures

PFRS 4

Insurance Contracts

Amendrments to FFRS 4: Financial Guarantee Cantraces

Amendments to PFRS 4: Applying PFRS 9, Finoncial
Instruments with PFRS 4, Insuronce Contracts

PFRS 5

Mon-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Dperations

Amendment to PFRS 5: Changes In Methods of Disaosal |

PFRS &

Exploration for and Cvaluation of Minzral Resources

PFRS 7

Financial Instruments: Disclasures

Amendments to PIS 7, Reclassification of Financial
Assete

Amendments to PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial
Assers - Effective Date and Transition

Amendments ta PFRS 7; Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments |

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfars of
Financial Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Oilsetting
Financial Assets and Financlz! Liabilities

Amendment to PFRS 7: Servicing Contracts

Amendment to PFRS 7: Apalicability of the
Amendments te PFRS 7 te Condensed interim Financial
Statements

PFRS 8

Operating Segments

Amencments 1o PFRS 8: Aperegstion of Dperating
Segments

Amendments to PFRS 8: Reconcillation of the Total of
the Reportablz Segments’ Assets 1o the Entity's Assets |

Consolidated Financlal Staterments

PFRS 10

Amendments to PFRS 10: Transition Suidance

lr.s'i".rner:dmunts to PFRS 10: Investment Fntities




[

PERS Title Adopted | , dr:;: 2 Apph:lf:hfe
Amendments to PFRS 10: Investment Entities: Applying "
the Consolidation Exception

FFRS 11 Jeint Arrangements
Amendments to PFRS 11: Transition Guidance ’ v
Amendments to PFRS 11: Accounting for Acguisitions -
of Interests in laint Operations
PFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities v
Amendments to PFRS 12: Transition Guidance
Amendments to PFRS 12; Investment Eptities v
| Amendments to PFRS 12: Investmert Entities: Applying i
the Consatidation Exception
Amendment to PFRS L2: Carif cation of the Scope of >
the Standard
PFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement v
Amendment to PFRS 13: Shart-;;rm receivebles and v
Payables
Amendment to PFRS 13: Partfalic Exceptlon v
PFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts v
PFRS 15 Fevenue from Contracts with Customers v
;L-m;ndme'-ts to PERS 15: Clarfications to PFRS 15
Philippine Accounting Standards [PAS)
PAS Title Adopted | , dts:g 5 AppTi:;bre
PAS 1 (Revised] | Presentation of Financial Statements ¥
o Amendments to. PAS 1: Puttable Financial Instrumoents v
and Obligations Arising on Liquidaticn
Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of items of Other v
Camprehensive Income
Amencment to PAS 1: Clarification of the -
REeguirements for Comparative Presertation
Amendments to PAS 1: Disclosure Initiative v
PAS 2 Inventories ¥
PAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows ¥




i Mot Nt
PAS Titie dopted ;
’ Adopted | , jopted | Applicable
Arnendments to PAS 7 Disclosure Initlative ¥
iting & R 15 | . in irmatps
PAS B Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates e
and Errars
nAs 10 Events after the Reporting Period v
PAS 11 Construction Cantracts v
PAS 12 Income Taxes v
Amendments to PAS 12: Recavery of Underlying Assets v
Amrendments to PAS 12; Recognition of Delerred Tax Y
Assels for Unrealized Losses
PAS 16 Fraperty, Man: and Equipment '
Amnendment ta PAS 16: Classification of Servicing 2
Equipment
Amendment to PAS 16: Revaluation Method -
Prapertionate Restatement of Accurmuiated v
Depreciation
Amendment to PAS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment
- Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation v
and Amortization
Amendment to PAS 16: Agriculture: Bearer Plants v
PAS 17 | Leases -
PAS 18 Revenus <
PAS 19 3
i T B v
(Revised) Employee Benefits
Amendment to PAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans: v
Employee Contributions
I Amentment to PAS 19: Discaunt Rate: Regional Market s
Iss 1
i f i } [
PAS IO Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of v
Government Asslstance
Pas 21 The Etfec:s of Changes in Farelgn Exchange Rates v
Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign Dperation ¥
PAS 23 [Revised) | Borrowing Costs v
PAas 24 {Revised) | Relsted Party Disclasures ¥
Amendment to PAS 24: Key Management Personnel ¥
PAS 26 Accountirg and Reporting by Retirement Berefit Plans v




PAS

Title Adopted

Mot
Adopted

Mot 1
Applicable

PAS 27

(Amended)

Separate Financial Statements

¥

Amendments to PAS 27; Investment Entities

v

Amencments ta PAS 27: Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

PAS 28

iAmended)

Investments in Associates and Joint Vantures v

Amentdments to PAS 28: Investment Entities: Applying 7
the Cansolidation Exception

Amendments to PAS 28; Measuring an Associate of v
Moint Venture at Fair Value

PAS 28

Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationzry Economies

PAS 32

Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation v

Finzncial Instruments: Presentation v

Amendments to PAS 32; Puttable Financial Instruments
anc Uoligations Arising on Liguidation

Amendment Lo PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues v

Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assats and v
Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PAS 32; Tax Effect of Distributian 1o
Holders of Equity Instruments

FAS 33

Earnings per Share ¥

PAS 34

Interim Financial Reporting

Amendment to PAS 34: Interim Financial Reporting and
segment Informatian for Total Assets and Liabilities

Armendment to PAS 34; Disclosure of Information
‘Elsewhere inthe Interim Financial Report’

PAS 36

Impairment of Assets v

Amendments te PAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Cisclosures for Non-Finznclal Assels

Pas 37

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets v

PAS 38

Intangiale Assets

Amendment ta PAS 38: Revaluation Methog -
Proportionate Restetement of Accumulated
Amartization




I Not Not
d
PAS Title Asgptad Adapted | Applicable
Amendment to PAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable ”
Methods of Depreclation and Amortization
FAS 39 Financial Inssruments; Recognition and Measurement v
Amerdments te PAS 39: Tranpsition and nitipl %
Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Amendments ta PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting .
of Forecast Intragroup Transactiors
Amendmerts to PAS 3%: The Fair Value Option v
Amendments to PAS 39: Financial Guarantee Contracts ¥
Amendments 1o PAS 39; Reclassification of Financial »
Mssets
Amendments to PAS 39: Reclassificaton of Financial v
Assels - Effective Date and | ransition
Amendments PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives v
Amendment to PAS 23: Eligible Hadged Items v
Amendmerits to PAS 39: Novation of Derivatives and P
Continuation of Hedge Accounting
PAS 4D Investment Property ¥
Amendment to PAS 40: Clarifying the Interrelatishship
between PFRS 2 and PAS 40 when Classitying Property v
as Investment Property or Owner-cccupied Froperty
Amendments to PAS 40; Transters of investment s
Froperty
PAS 41 Agriculture v
Arendment ta PAS 41; Agriculture: Bearer Flants v
Philippine Interpretations
Mot Not _]
13 Title Adopte :
itespoetation pted Adopted | Applicable
A Bl e : ing, F :
IFRIC 1 Changea.rn : lest:r:g Cecommissicning, Restoration and #
Similar Liabilities
s Members’ Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar 5
o Instruments
IFRIC 4 i}:;::émlning Whether an Arrangement Contains a 7




Mot 1

Not
Interpretations Titd Adopted
il e P& Adopted | Applicable
IFRIC € Rights to interests arising from Decommissioning, "
' Restoration and Environmental Rehahilivation Funds
FRICE Liabilities arising fram Participating in a Specific Market -
- Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment
\FRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 20 7.
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Ecanomies
IFRICS Reassessment of Embedded Derivatjves v
Amentments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-5: i3
Embedded Derivatives
IFRIC 10 Interim Financlal Reosorting and Impairment
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes
FRIC 14 FAS15- The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, ”
) Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction
Amendments to Philippine Interprelations ERIC- 14, v
Prepayments of a Minimum Funcing Reguirement
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Forgign Cperation v
IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners v
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets fram Customers v
IFRIC 15 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity "
Instruments
ripoi in the Pr P Surfa
IERIC 20 Slrrpn ng Costs in oduction Phase of a Surface ¥
Mine
IFRIC 21 Levies v
ERIC 22 F"urei.gn Cu.rr-:.rnw Transactions and Advance "
Lonsideration
Philippine Interpretations - SIC
; Mot Not
Interpretations Title dopted
iy AHcR Adopted | Applicable
SIc-7 Intreduction of the Euro ¥
S1C-10 Government ﬁ_ts?l:z.tanre - e Specifc Relation to P
Operating Activities
SIC-15 Cperating Leases = Incentives v




Mot Not
i Ti d
Interpretations itle Adopte Adopted | Applicable
§1C-25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity s
or its Shareholoers
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
SIC-27 v
Legal Form of a Lease
SIC-29 Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures ¥
sic-21 Reuajnue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising ”
aervices
51C-32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Coasts v




BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL RATIOS

DECEMBER 31, 2018

Below is & schedule showing financial soundness Indicators ir 2018 and 2017,

o 2018 2017
Current/Liquidity Ratio 0.02 D.04
Current assets F26,025,183 PGE,131,382
Current Habilities - 1,672,959,629 1,710,231,567
Solvency Ratio {0.05) 0.01
Income (loss) before income tax, depreciation, and
amortization (P82,621,577) #11,133,326
Tatal liabilities 1,672 959,624 1,710,231,567
Debt-to-equity Ratio 1.74 1.64
Tovzal liabilities P1,672,959,629 P1,710,231,567
Total equity 959,648,162 1,043,712 320
Asset-to-equity Ratio 2.74 2.64
Total assets B2,632,607,791 R2,753,943,887
Total equity 959,543,162N 1.043,712,320
Interest rate coverage Ratio - -
Pretax income {loss) before Interest (RB4,636,959) RE,B42 283
Interest expense - -
Profitability Ratio {0.088) 0.01
MNet income (loss) (PB4,636,009) RE,B42,283

Total equity

559,648,162

1,043,712 320




BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.|

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF

RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION

DECEMBER 31, 2018

Amount

Unappropriated retained earnings as shown in the financlal
statements at beginning of year
Cumulative share in net income of an assocls le

R196,278,091
(29,470,653)

Unappropriated retained earnings available for dividend

declaration, beginning 166,807,438
Net loss during the year (F34,636,999)
Share In net loss of an associate ,, 77,372,617 [7.264,382)
Total retained earnings avallable for dividend declaration ot end afyear R159,543,064
Reconciliation:

. Amount

Unappropriated retained earnings as shown in the financial statements at end of vear  R111,541,092
Cumulative share In net loss of an associate 47,901,564

Total retained earnings available for dividend declaration at end of year

158,543 056




BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS, INC,
(A subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)
SEC SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES AS REQUIRED BY PAR. 6 PART Il
OF SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2018

Table of Contents
Schedule Description

A Financial Assets

B Amaunts Recelvable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related
Partics, and Principal Stockholders (Other than Related Partias)

c Amuounts eceivable fn:cm Related Parties whicn are Eliminated during
the Consclidation of Financial Statements

3} Intanglble Assets - Otker Assets

E Leng-Term Debt

F Indebtedness to Related Parties

G Guaran:ees of Securitias of Other lstuers

H Capital Stock

Conglomerate Map
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